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“THERE IS NOTHING particularly sexy about Karrie International Holdings. Its factories
churn out metal and plastic products, principally computer casings, while an army of
staff in pale-blue anoraks runs operations from the bowels of a Tsuen Wan industrial
estate.

As a family-run business, the company barely survived the Asian financial crisis, banks
bailing out en masse when cash flow dried up. For many years, it languished as a penny
stock. Even to this day, investment banks have not penned a single research report on
its performance.

Yet it has tweaked the attention of fund managers, analysts, newspaper tipsters and
even die-hard critic David Webb, a man better known for railing against the evils within
most small caps than for singing their praises.

Karrie has done the unthinkable. It has gone above and beyond the bare minimum
when it comes to what passes as corporate governance among smaller companies in
Hong Kong. It has also done so of its own free will.”

Jane Moir, South China Morning Post published on 28 February 2005
Jane MoirBR —ZZERHF - A -+ \H<BEEH>
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A Thousand-Mile Journey Starts With A First Step

In deliberating the main theme of the current annual report, we have considered
many equally important and memorable events: record breaking turnover & profit,
2nd places in the 2004 Asiamoney Poll for the Overall Regional Best-Managed
Companies (Small Cap Category) and Overall Best Companies for Corporate
Governance in Hong Kong, the holding of first tea-breaks for individual investors
and so on. However, we come to the inevitable conclusion that in the history of
Karrie and in terms of impact of future development, none of them can be compared
to the decision to build a new plantin Yu Quan, Fenggang, Dongguan, China. The
size of the new site is more than double (over 200,000 sg. metres) the combined
site areas of our existing Yantian and Fenggang plants (89,000 sq. metres).

The Yu Quan Plant represents our collective commitment and confidence on the
future. We have endured the difficult period associated with Sars in 2003/04 when
turnover and profit attributable to shareholders dropped 3% and 25% respectively.
With the typical “can do’ attitude, in the current financial year we take the Group
into new heights with record turnover and profit. As usual, in the coming years we
expect numerous obstacles to the road of excellence. But we will not be deterred
by such challenges. In 1999/2000 our turnover was only HK$662,000,000. Now we
are looking forward to become a HK$3,000,000,000 company in the coming financial
year. We will continue to focus on long-term benefit to shareholders and stakeholders.
Yes, the thousand-mile journey is not easy for those who are weak and not
determined. But with your support we will take our first step today, just as we did
together years ago. We will join our hands in finishing this thousand-mile journey.
Someday. And then we will take another first step for our next thousand-mile
journey..........
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2005
Announcement of 2004/2005 results

24 June 2005
Last day to register for 2004/2005 Final Dividends

22 July 2005

Annual General Meeting
29 July 2005

2004/2005 Final Dividend Payment Date

11 August 2005

Financial Year End

31 March 2005
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE BRELBERRS> M2
AND SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION

As at 31 May 2005, the Company had 408,764,000 shares HE_ZTRFARARA=+—H XRa#
in issue of which approximately 45%® was held by the 1T 17 408,764,0000% + HA QA RFR =
public. As at that date, the Company had a total of 409 #{H45%0 - HZERH @ ARAHEAEMA
registered shareholders. The following table shows the R409% - RERREMEFREEI KR
distribution of ownership according to the register of GR_ZTERFRA=T—HEENZH
members and the Participants Shareholding Report ERERES  BMES TUATRESME
generated from the Central Clearing and Settlement System HIEEELE

as of 31 May 2005:

Number of % of % of
registered number of Number of  total issued
Category shareholders  shareholders shares  share capital
ot i i EERT
gl BRERYE RRYB A% FREE 1 42t Bl %
Pearl Court Company Limited 1 0.3% 172,200,000 42.13%
Ho's family®? ARKE 3 0.7% 49,102,000 12.01%
Directors® B0 4 1% 3,390,000 0.83%
Value Partners Limited® 1 0.3% 40,126,000 9.82%
Individuals AAREE 188 45.9% 13,918,250 3.40%
Institutions, corporates KEEEE b
and nominees REERREA 212 51.8% 130,027,750 31.81%
Total A&t 409 100.0% 408,764,000 100.0%
Note: i
(1) Public shareholding represents shares held by the public, (1) N E PR ERE (B Pearl Court Company
excluding those held by Pearl Court Company Limited, Ho's Limited - (IR RERA AT EEZFAFRNHE=E
family and Directors of the Company. SN RBATHHAENRGOEE -
(2) Ho's family comprises Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief (2) IR KRER A e L £ (EFBRTHBAE) - [
Executive Officer, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, Deputy Chairman and SREE (RIEEREELH) RAUBHR L+
Chief Operating Officer, and Ms. Ho Po Chu, the Chief (SMITHAE) KX -
Executive.
(3) Directors represent Directors of the Company excluding Mr. (3) FERE (BRAEBE S RMAEREEIN KA
Ho Cheuk Fai and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming. AlZES -

(4) Latest Information updated to 25 May 2004 as provided by

Value Partners Limited. (4) It J3Value Partners LimitedfTiR 2 E & =

“EZNEFRA+HABZEMER -
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE RELBRERRERS> W20 (&)
AND SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION (Cont'd)

As at 31 May 2005 Shareholders Shares of HK$0.1 each
R-ZZEZ2EEFHEA=+—H B®R SREEABTKRM
Number of Shares Held Number % of total Number % of total
FERGHE A HEE I #H HEHEI L
1-5,000 76 18.6% 154,074 0.0%
5,001 - 20,000 116 28.3% 1,550,000 0.4%
20,001 - 50,000 61 14.9% 2,243,929 0.5%
50,001 - 100,000 51 12.5% 4,075,130 1.0%
100,001 - 200,000 29 7.1% 4,510,000 1.1%
200,001 - 500,000 29 7.1% 9,425,322 2.3%
500,001 - 1,000,000 16 3.9% 12,202,000 3.0%
1,000,001 - 2,000,000 15 3.7% 20,135,995 4.9%
2,000,001 - 5,000,000 6 1.5% 19,413,735 4.8%
Over 5,000,000 £ 10 2.4% 335,053,815 82.0%
409 100.0% 408,764,000 100.0%

OUTSTANDING OPTIONS FOR ORDINARY ERFTENRITERNERKRE
SHARES GRANTED

As at

BZE
31 March 2005 15 June 2005
“ERHF —BBEF

=A=t-R  X~At+EA

at exercise price of HK$0.30 each 77{#{& A& M%0.30/8 T 820,000 820,000
at exercise price of HK$1.30 each 1T B A& K 1.30E T 400,000 200,000
at exercise price of HK$1.65 each 7{#{E A& 1.658 T 5,450,000 4,800,000
at exercise price of HK$2.475 each 17{# 8 A& % 2.475%8 7T 11,860,000 11,860,000
at exercise price of HK$1.90 each 7 E A& 1.908 T 3,742,000 3,594,000
at exercise price of HK$3.15 each 7 A& 3.158 T 5,450,000 5,350,000
at exercise price of HK$3.35 each 7{#{E A& M3.358 T 11,400,000 11,400,000
Please refer to P.76 to P.88 BREELETRENTNE
MARKET CAPITALISATION w1
As at 31 March 2005 (Closing Price: HK$3.575) BE-_EERARFE=A=+—RH (KT E:
3.575/% 7t)
HK$1,457,763,450 1,457,763,4507% 7T
As at 15 June 2005 (Closing Price: HK$3.35) BE-_ZZRFAA+HEB (KRTE:
3.35% 7t)
HK$1,369,359,400 1,369,359,400/% 7T



Key Information for Shareholders BR*xZE&H
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SUMMARY OF DIRECTORS'/ R-EZENFUNA—HEZ-ZEZFH
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S DEALINGS IN THE FRATHHLEZEERRETH
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY FROM AEEEARQAMNEF—BEXR

1 APRIL 2004 TO 15 JUNE 2005

Buy Sell
BEA B
Number Average Number Average
Name Date of Shares Price of Shares Price
% E H igig = FHE BR#H & B8 T E
(HK$) (HK$)
(A7) (L)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai August 2004
fa] 2 18 55 4 —ZEEMENA 396,000 2.290
September 2004
—_EETWFNA 100,000 2.450
January 2005
—“TTHFE—A 198,000 3.099
February 2005
—EFERF A 318,000 3.162
March 2005
—EERF=A 986,000 3.611
April 2005
—_ETHFMOA 594,000 3.222
Total & & 2,592,000
Mr. Tam Wing Hung December 2004
A ST A —TEME+TZA 200,000 2.705
Total & &f 200,000
Ms. Ho Po Chu May 2004
G- §73°¢=n —ETNFERA 474,000 1.764
July 2004
—ETWFLA 278,000 2.242
August 2004
—EETWFENA 80,000 2.250
Total & & 832,000
Note: For details of share options exercised or granted during the #i : RENBRITEREEREZFE - F23
period, please refer to P.76 to P.88. FELTARENTNE -
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF COMPANY

MEETINGS

The attendance records of Board meetings and Audit

Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥
AFERHELHE

UTR-ZZEN/ THFEEEFEEER

Committee meetings in 2004/05 are set out below: BERZEERNEF L

Attendance of individual Directors RN EREEESERRENES
at Board meetings in 2004/05 B E =

Number of meetings BHRIRE 4

Executive Directors HITEFE

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai fa] J& ¥ 5 A4 2/4 50%
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fa] £ ER 58 4 4/4 100%
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis ok B A& 3/4 75%
Mr. Tam Wing Hung oK A& 1/4 25%
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FRIBE A 4/4 100%
Mr. Wong Shun Pang™ = BN AEO 2/4 50%
Independent Non-executive Directors ¥ FF#7TE F

Mr. So Wai Chun HERELE 4/4 100%
Mr. Leung Wai Ho®@ REEFRED 3/3 100%
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond BoR ¥ 7% 55 A 3/4 75%
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing® F B ES 1/1 100%
Average attendance rate T HE R 77.5%

Attendance of individual members —EEN EEEEERZESERMER
at Audit Committee meetings in 2004/05 REWHER

Number of meetings BHRIRE 4
Independent Non-executive Directors ¥ FF#77E F

Mr. So Wai Chun HERELE 4/4 100%
Mr. Leung Wai Ho @ REEFRED 3/3 100%
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond PR 5 7R 58 A 3/4 75%
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing @ T ES 1/1 100%
Average attendance rate T E R 94%

Note:

(1) Appointed as Executive Director on 1 June 2004.

(2) Resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on 19 January
2005.
(3) Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on 7

December 2004.

(1 R-ZZEMNFERA-—BEZERNTES -

() R-ZETRF-ATNABREBIIFRTE
=o

3) R-ZBTNFE+ - At AERERBILIEANT
-
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STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Main Board 1050
BOARD LOT 2,000 Shares

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the registrar
of the Company:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-6, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8628

Fax: (852) 2529 6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries, please contact:

Ms. Winnie Tsang

Senior Corporate Communications Officer

Karrie International Holdings Limited

10th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building

611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan

New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2437 6830

Fax: (852) 2415 1608

Email: pytsang@karrie.com.hk/
ir@karrie.com.hk
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ANALYST CONTACT INFORMATION

SBI E2-Capital China Holdings Limited
Mr. Raymond Jook

Tel:  (852) 2533 3715

Fax: (852) 2533 3733

Email: raymondjook@softbank.com.hk

G. K. Goh Securities (H.K.) Limited
Ms. Renee Tai

Tel:  (852) 2532 1116

Fax: (852) 2537 1547

Email: tai.renee@gkgoh.com

Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥
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Purchase of the Yu Quan Site in Fenggang,
Dongguan, Guangdong, China with an area
of over 200,000 square metres for the
construction of the third plant

2004/05 1st Quarter Results Announcement

1st “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”

2004/05 Interim Results Announcement

2nd “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”

Mr. David Webb selected the Group as “The
2004 Christmas Pick”*

Asiamoney Poll 2004: 1st runner up in both
“Qverall Best-Managed Companies” (Small
Cap. Category) and “Hong Kong Best
Corporate Governance” Categories

“Corporate Day” attended by 100 senior
staff

2004/05 3rd Quarter Results Announcement

Scholarship program with School of
Business, Hong Kong Baptist University in
MSc
Directorship

in Corporate Governance and

3rd “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”

Establishment of a volunteer team to
promote social responsibility program

*  For details, please refer to www.webb-
site.com

Karrie International Holdings Limited
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Financial Highlights Bti#t=

Turnover percentage by Products

REmBINEXRERD R

Metal and Plastic Business

Karrie International Holdings Limited

TeZBBEK 2005 2004 57%
Electronics Manufacturing Services Business Ho%
EFEFERIED
Turnover percentage by Geographical Location
RERFERE I MNEXET D R
9% 10%
Japan
=N
Asia (excluding Japan) 2005 2004
oM (FBEEEAR)
North America
it M
Western Europe
75 B
2005 2004 % Changes
ZBEERE Z—ZTEME 2yaol
HK$ million B&E¥T
Turnover = 2,563 1,693 +51%
Gross profit E 7 317 231 +37%
Operating profit £ 5 A 183 107 +71%
Profit attributable to shareholders A% 5 FE A5 VK 150 90 +66%
Total assets BERE 1,654 984 +68%
Shareholders’ equity % R m 450 375 +20%
In Million B &K
Number of shares Iz 1h 8B 408 401 +2%
Per Share Data sRER
HK Cents B
Basic earnings AR5 F 37.2 23.0 +62%
Diluted earnings BEizm 36.7 22.1 +66%
Total cash dividends RIS E 21.0 20.0 +5%
HK$ Br
Net asset value per share EREESFE 1.104 0.936 +18%
Financial Ratios Mt =
Gross profit margin (%) EBERERN (%) 12.4 13.7 -9%
Net profit margin (%) BERAFR (%) 5.9 5.3 +11%
Net current ratio F B L 2 1.4 1.7 -18%
Net quick ratio F IR Bt 0.8 1.1 -27%
Net gearing ratio (%) FEAREBELEE (%) 52 2 +2,500%
Interest coverage A EOR &t & 24 23 +4%
Dividend payout (%) KB & (%) 57 90 -37%
Turnover to net bank borrowings EEFEFIRITAERLE 11 269 -96%

14
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Definitions E&
K i i Profit attributable to shareholders F% 3R P& 1 5 \
Ba5|chearn|ngs . SRR A F -
Per share Weighted average number of shares hn#E 15 AR 2
i i Profit attributable to shareholders PR 3R & 1 5
Dllutid earnings . | SRR L - _
per share Diluted weighted average number of shares e A TR E
Net assets B BEEFE
Net aﬁset value SREESE _
per share Number of shares as at year end FIRRE
Gross profit Gross profit . e E 7
- REM (% 100%
margin (%) s x 100% BEREF (%) prET x 100%
Net profit Profit attributable to shareholders 1009 L8 ] (% A% 5 P& 1 5 F 100
margin (%) Turnover X ° il G = § °
Current assets (less cash and mEEE (IR & &
\ _ bank deposits) SR RITE )
t t rat Eil e S
et current ratio Current liabilities (less cash and " mEBBE R & &
bank deposits) RITER)
Current assets (less inventories mBEE (HEFEE R
\ S~ and cash and bank deposits) S B MBITHER
t t iR ES —
N Current liabilities (less cash and mEBBE R & &
bank deposits) RITER)
Bank borrowings RITEE
Net gearing (less cash and bank deposits) AN G OR38 & RIRITF )
ratio (%) Shareholders’ equity PE 3 (%) PR R A 25
Earnings before interest, tax, HBRAMEXZH - FIE -
I depreciation and amortisation 1 5 & KB AR A
terest coverage SR & X
TR ey Interest paid ’ FMEXH
. o BRE
Dividend Dividends . =
X 100% K B K (% = x 100%
payout (%) Profit attributable to shareholders ° i B 1 R (%) B 3R £ 7
Turnover to net Turnover BEEER -
bank borrowings Net bank borrowings FARITARL* FIRITEE

k J
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Chairman’s Statement xE#H%

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present
the annual report of Karrie International Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS

The Group is principally engaged in

- Metal and Plastic Business: the manufacture and
sales of metal and plastic products including
computer casings, office automation products, video
cassette housings, moulds, plastic and metal parts;
and

- Electronics Manufacturing Services Business (“EMS”
Business): the manufacture and sales of laser
printers, magnetic tape drive and other computer
peripheral products.

Karrie International Holdings Limited
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2001/02
Rebirth: March Toward Excellence
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MOUNTING NEW HEIGHT

In the previous financial year ended 31 March 2004,
our turnover and profit attributable to shareholders
declined by 3% and 25% respectively. At that time we
have assured our shareholders and investors that there
was no gloom and doom here. Instead, the Directors
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treasured this golden opportunity to consolidate our
operations after a period of rapid growth since 2001. As
stated in annual report for the year ended 31 March 2004:

- we maintained our long-term business goal
made in 2001/02 of doubling our turnover of
HK$1,156,000,000 in three years time;

- we kept our dividend payment, providing
reasonable yield to our supportive shareholders; and

- we took the painful but courageous decision of
hiring more staff and investing further resources
in the development works for the long-term benefit
of the Group.

After 12 months’ hard work, now our efforts start to
bear fruit: “We Promise. We Deliver” (2002/03 Annual
Report main theme). Whilst most manufacturers suffered
from problems like rising raw material price, shortage of
labour and electricity etc, the Group’s turnover rose to
a record high of HK$2,563,190,000 (2003/04:
HK$1,692,960,000), while profit attributable to
shareholders surged to HK$150,344,000 (2003/04:
HK$90,440,000), representing an increase of 51% and
66% respectively.

REASONS FOR THE REBOUNCE OF
PERFORMANCE

Some of the principal reasons for the rebounce of
performance were as follows:

- Strong demands for computer and office automation
products with the worldwide recovery of
technology spending;

- According to the special characteristics of our unique
business model (see appendix 1 on P.58), the Group
is normally the sole supplier for the particular
projects confirmed with customers. Any increase in
demand of our customers’ products will be mostly
reflected as increase in the business of the Group;

- With the related engineering and production
problems of projects confirmed from customers
gradually solved after the SARS (Severe Acute
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Respiratory Syndrome, 2003/04 Annual Report, P.11)
period in 2003, shipments surged ahead to catch
up with the production vacuum in the previous
financial year;

- Under the Group’s versatile “Total Transparent Cost
Plus Pricing Mechanism” (2004/05 Interim Report,
P.24) most of the raw materials by value other
than electro-galvanized steel plates are sourced
through the customers or through suppliers
designated by the customers. A rise in raw material
price has only a marginal impact on our bottom line
(see "Risk Management” on P.35); and

- While gross profit margin is always under
pressure, the rate of decline has slowed down.
With the apparent stabilization of gross profit margin
at the moment, profit shot up under the positive
impact of strong operating leverage.

THE THREE EQUILIBRIUMS

Our moderate success, however, is not achieved without
sweat and hard work. We have to weigh and evaluate the
cost/benefits/risk of various alternatives. In charting the
course for 2004/05, the most important decisions we made
were the balancing of The Three Equilibriums.

The First Equilibrium: “Risk of Investing” vs “Risk
of Not Investing”

Two Fundamental Questions

By mid-2004 we knew that the promised recovery was on
track. Customers were pounding our doors demanding
more capacities and additional service support. We were
faced with two seemingly easy questions:

- Should we invest additional resources to cater for
the customers demand for additional support? (why
not?); and

- If the answer is yes, how do we actually execute
the plan and what budget should apply? (the more
the better!)

Karrie International Holdings Limited
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Risk of Not Investing

As a life long industrialist, | never underestimate the risk
involved in over-expansion and the problems associated
with a yearly growth rate of 30%. Such a rate of growth
year after year may not be sustainable as it puts enormous
pressure along the production chain. The weak point in
the production chain will lose its balance and create a lot
of problems affecting the whole chain itself. The ideal
growth path is to “grow”, “consolidate” and “grow”
again. Unfortunately, theory differs from practice. Here
lies the first challenge to find the right equilibrium:

- If we do not continue to invest and take new
projects from customers, they will take the new
business elsewhere. Over time our competitors
will threaten even our existing level of business.
So we have to continue to expand and to
accommodate customers’ requests in order to stay
in the game. We simply cannot stand still. We have
to run as fast as our customers; and

- However, "over-investment” would put the
Group into a precarious financial position (Rapid
Increase in Bank Borrowings on P.43) should the
economy take a sudden turn next year. Who
can speak with absolute certainty on the future state
of the world economy given a backdrop of rising oil
price and interest rate in the US?

Customers Come First

The answer lies in our guiding principle: servicing our
customers is the principal reason for our continued
survival and prosperity. We would therefore disregard
any short-term concerns over our bottom line or our
financial position and decide to:

- Increase our headcounts to recruit more engineers,
procurement officers and marketing, production and
other related personnel; and

- Raise our capital expenditure (“Capex”) budget
to a record level of HK$90,000,000 (2004/05:
HK$62,236,000) including the construction of Phase
1 of the new Yu Quan Plant.

20

Karrie International Holdings Limited

TER & /Y2 R

ER—UKREUBARNEESE  REX
BEEBEREREFERREINMS LD
Ml EEFHEFEEREEZE AR
B ASEHRNBELIERTRENEL
MEN  TEBTRPHIERERE 1§
MITERERE  FELEBRNERE
- REBZEREARIEER]  [E
B BER] A2 EREERARK
DRl EERTELE —EKE - AWM
BRI e T

- EHEMNEBFEFHNHEBRTELN
MRE BEFEE5REH  ERNE
EBFERGREBEAMBRKNEE
At E BEERERNER - HFIHE
BEBEMMABEETIHIER - BANLE
BREFPHMAEE  RMATEEFE
B0 AEBEMBANEEK: &

- MHEERAAFEERABR [BER
EIE<SEEEN—EABETRBNY
B (RTEESELEARFEN+
=H)  mmEREEENE A
RATET - S\HAHERNBHBTER
KEREENES?

KERE
EREREHEMOE—EZK: RBEEFRER
MREENGCEBEZ FAREEFHTE
EESUEFEREE  AHEHNEER
RERHTBERIOFEEHEIBERE -
BrEe -

- WEESZIRE KB MK L£EH
NABAAER + &

- PREEETEERENBEEEHLHEN
90,000,000 7T (ZEZEW ERHEF
€ 1 62,236,0008 0) © BIEEET
RHMENE—HERTR -



Together with our investment in Capex in 2004/05, the
Directors are convinced that we will have sufficient
production capacity to cater for the customer’'s demand in
the coming financial year.

Risk of Investing
The consequence can be analysed at two levels:

- an increase in operating overhead will have a
negative impact on our bottom line. To this end
we had largely succeeded in controlling the rate of
increase in the distribution and selling expenses &
general and administrative expenses at a lower level
than the rate of increase in turnover; and

- an increase in the asset side of the balance sheet

including:

a. increase in working capital requirements
including trade receivables and inventories;
and

b. increase in fixed assets.
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This resulted in an increase in the net gearing position
to 52% as at 31 March 2005 as compared to 2% as at
31 March 2004. Despite our confidence over the current
level of bank borrowings (see P.46), we have decided that
the Capex for the next financial year should be capped
at the amount allowed by “free cash flow” provided
by profit attributable to shareholders plus
depreciation less dividend payment. So instead of
announcing a grandiose multi-year factories building plan,
your prudent managers here decided that we should do it
in our time-honoured way of building up our ideal yet
pragmatic factories step by step.

The Yu Quan Plant

Purchase of the Yu Quan Site

In August 2004, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
has entered into an agreement with an independent third
party for the purchase of a piece of land of approximately
200,000 square meters (site areas of the existing two
factories: approximately 89,000 square meters)
situated at Fenggang of Dongguan, Guangdong, China
for a consideration of around RMB14,000,000.

Why Not Finding a Cheaper Place to Expand

The Directors have considered other possibly more remote
but cheaper sites for our third plant but finally settled in
Yu Quan, Fenggang area because of:

- the pro-business atmosphere in the local Fenggang
community;

- its proximity with the existing plants which makes
logistic support easier; and

- the nature of the Group’s business which focuses
on serving customers in niche market rather than
mass production.

Karrie International Holdings Limited
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The Painful Lessons of the Asian Financial Turmoil

The commencement of the construction of the Yu Quan
Plant represents an important milestone of the Group after
the completion of Yantian Plant (1986) and Fenggang Plant
(1999). We have learnt the painful lessons last time during
the Asian Financial Turmoil back in 1997 and 1998 when
we started to construct the Fenggang Plant. It took us 5
years to complete the construction program as we
simultaneously dealt with the most severe credit squeeze
from banks in the Group’s history.

Phase 1

Hopefully, the enormous size of the Yu Quan site will
be sufficient to cater for the expansion of the Group
for the next 5 to 7 years. Construction of Phase 1 will
commence in mid-2005 and is expected to be completed
by mid-2006. Upon completion, there will be 4 buildings
including a plastic injection moulding shop, an assembly
lines building, a dormitory and a power plant with a gross
floor area of around 34,700 square meters.

Yu Quan Plant £ R H &=

1st Phase construction (Marked in red circle)
E—HIR(LBLE)

Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥
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We expect by then we would have sufficient production
capacity to cater for the projected increase in shipment
volume. Depending on the state of the global economy in
mid-2006, we will make the decision on whether to start the
construction of Phase 2 of the Yu Quan Plant in due course.

Enterprise Value

From the above discussions on our decision-making process
on “customer relationship management” and the
“construction of the Yu Quan Plant”, we hope that investors
would start to appreciate that manufacturing is always a
multi-year business. As such, our focus is always on the
long-term interests of the shareholders and stakeholders
(including customers, suppliers, bank, employees and
others) but not on short-term share price performance.

Karrie International Holdings Limited
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Hung Siu Lam, The Hong Kong Economic Journal published on 15 March 2005
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As custodian of your investment, we put more emphasis
on our business model, organization, people, relationship
with customers and suppliers and so on than the bottom BRECEERRAXEESF RN Z2EILLE
line figures in the annual accounts. Under the existing REE -ZIREZEARAMR - F58
accounting convention, the historical accounting records SHREBHUAKBECXEEELLERE &
FTHREBEAMNEMELELE  REBLES
HERS BAMBEXRBEENEEF
o ERELEERREEZFE  FE
BUKR mHEUREBEMANLEEE -

cannot capture such enterprise value. This is one of the main
reasons why we have been spending so much efforts in raising
the corporate transparency. By going beyond the statutory
disclosure requirements under our unique mode of
corporate governance, we do hope that some time in
the future, the market will duly recognize our enterprise
value.
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Karrie Indermational Hnldings Limibed

My Executive Committee: Do you know which Chinese song most aptly describe our feelings?
Tips: lady singer, four words.
BT EZEE] IR EMEEBZRTHERRIMEEIRMORE ?
Bt A;HF RE2EEF -

Pure Luck?

And it does, to a certain degree and at least by some
professionals. For the second consecutive year institutional
shareholders and research analysts honoured the Group in
the annual poll organized by the Asiamoney magazine. In
the 2004 Asiamoney Poll announced in January 2005,
the Group was voted as the first runner-up in both
the Overall Regional Best-managed Companies (Small
Cap Category) and Overall Best Companies for
Corporate Governance in Hong Kong. The Corporate
Governance award is particularly gratifying as the champion
and the second runner-up are both blue chips giants which
are tens to hundred times bigger than the Group.

Corporate Governance

Why Corporate Governance

Luck is of course important but we cannot run our business
based on luck alone. We did not suddenly embrace
corporate governance because it is a good public relation
gimmick. One of the reasons of our success is due to
a change in the mode of governance since 2001.
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Professional Management*
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Karrie’s Franchise
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Corporate Governance

TrEER

* Details of the function of each refers to Appendix 2 on P.61
* BAZBEDEBFZ2HEST -—BEWRE =

Back in 2000 with the burst of the internet bubble, we
knew that we could no longer depend on our traditional
business for growth. While the new EMS business goes
from zero in 1999/00 to HK$1,390,384,000 in the
current financial year, its complexities and special
requirements demand an entirely new mode of
governance. So long before the local regulatory
requirements demanding the separation of the
functions of the chairman and CEO, we established
an Executive Committee in 2001 staffed mostly by
professional managers running the daily operation of the
Company. While we are still far from perfect, in
essence we have transformed the Group from a
family-run business to a professionally managed
modern enterprise. (For a more detailed version of the
changes, please go to our website for the paper published
on 8 March 2005: “Karrie Story: A real life case study on
how Corporate Governance improves operating
performance”).
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

Corporate Governance, Turnover & Share Price
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“Karrie Story: A real life case study on how Corporate Governance improves operating performance” (a speech
delivered in a seminar organized by the Hong Kong Baptist University on 12 March 2005. For speech outline, please

refer to our website.)

EMNHE: CEERURBZZERAZEEAR] R=ZZF
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2001/02: Executive Committee was established
2003/04: Voluntary quarterly result announcement
2004/05: “Tea-break with individual investors”

Enhancing Transparency

Externally, we introduced various measures to enhance our
transparency including voluntary quarterly results
announcement and publication of detailed and yet easy-to-
read annual reports filled with graphs and useful statistics.
New initiatives for the current financial year include:

Voluntary Disclosure by the Substantial Shareholder
Confirming No Pledge of Shares in the Company

The Company was notified by Pearl Court Company Limited
("Pearl Court”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
that it has not pledged any of its interest in ordinary shares
of the Company as at 20 June 2005. Pearl Court first
made such announcement in the 2004/05 Interim Report
in November 2004. It has also undertaken to inform the
Board of such pledging status before each annual, half-
year or quarterly results announcement, and authorized
the Company to publish such information (please refer to
the section of “Substantial Shareholders” for details). As
at 20 June 2005, Pearl Court held 172,200,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each or 42.13% of the issued share
capital of the Company.
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The Karrie Information Exchange Platform
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One Way Information Flow
For All Investors
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— Easy to read annual reports with

interactive Mode
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— Frequently updated websites
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Tea-break with Individual Investors
Why tea-break?

Like other listed companies we do have constant
dialogues with institutional investors. Our website
provides updated information and presentation. But
why are individual shareholders not entitled to
the same level of access to the management as
institutional investors? ‘Tea-break with individual
investors’ provides a practical platform for individual
investors and the management to share views and
exchange information in a cost effective manner;

With the recovery of the local economy, investors
are looking for good investment opportunities.
However, as the Group is only a relatively small
company, press coverage is limited. Without
direct access to management, investors may not be
able to fully understand the Group before making
their decisions; and
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- The importance of the tea-breaks lies in the
symbolic value to those who have not attended
the function. While each tea-break could only
accommodate less than 100 shareholders/investors,
the willingness of the management team to meet
with individual investors conveys a strong positive
message of transparency.

1st, 2nd & 3rd tea-breaks

The first tea-break was held in September 2004 after the
first quarter results announcement. The number of
applicants was so high that we had to resort to drawing
lots. Some investors were even willing to come on a
‘waiting list basis’. The 2nd and 3rd tea-breaks were held
within one month after the interim and the third quarter
results announcement respectively. Despite the cooling
down of the initial enthusiasm and the imposition of a
HK$30 fee for charity purpose in the 2nd and 3rd tea-
breaks, we still had full houses. Most attendees have
done their homework and actively participated in the
Q&A session. Actually, the sophisticated issues they
raised during the meetings made a big impression on

us.
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Let’s march together to take the first step in a populist corporate governance movement.
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Why should individual investors not enjoying the same level of access to management as institutional investors?

BANEEETHERBREERASTEEBEEENKS ?

Are you going to join us this time?

The next tea-break with individual investors will be held
on 16 July 2005 at the Ching Room, 4/F, Sheraton Hotel,
20 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui. As part of the Group's social
responsibility program, participants will be asked to donate
HK$30 directly to charity and we will match the donation
dollar for dollar (at a maximum of HK$10,000 in total).
For those who are willing to donate HK$100 or more, we
will:

- arrange for the relevant charity to issue a receipt
for tax purpose on a best effort basis; and

- confirm seats availability for those top 10 donors
without the need of going through the procedure
of drawing lots (if required).

Interested investors are invited to visit our website at
www.karrie.com.hk for more details and download the
application form. Because of the limited seats available,
participation in the ‘tea-break’ is strictly by confirmed
registration only.

e LKL ?
BRENIRNEEETTFRRIBR=2ZZE
AFEA+NABRERADBEBRE=-T5%
EREBEMNEBTRERT  WEAMITES
BEETHEEEz—BH HERISEL2HE
AN EEEZEBYI0B T TEAZHE M
SEAERHAEREEE (LR A10,000%8
JL) o A ALFEERBEH 1008 Tk A £ -
BMEeg -

— BAREAERARSEEZRELRE
HEBAZ » &

- EeBRZETARALAERRBMH
BEF(WMFE)  BREMCREE -

MIEEH LM ESEEE - BUIAE
£ B4 B www . karrie.com hkZ B E F 41 &
BETEHREERSE BRGHEMER -
FIEEBERM AN BEELERERE
i AT ARE o
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It is worth!

In reviewing this pioneering mode of communication with
investors, we come to the inevitable conclusion that it
worths the money/effort we spent on this project, especially
when we received positive feedbacks from other non-
related parties in social functions. But while we are pleased
that senior officials from other listed companies have
attended our tea breaks to learn about the operation, we
were disappointed that such method has not yet become
the norm. We sincerely hope that individual investors
will have more and more opportunities to gain such
an important access to the management, through tea
breaks or other direct access platforms.

Encouraging Continuing Professional Education of the INEDs
While our INEDs are successful businessmen and/or
professionals themselves, we believe that in this fast-changing
world everybody must constantly stay ahead by continuing
education. As such, we actively encourage our INEDs:

- To become a member of the Institute of Directors;
and

- To log in at least 10 hours of continuing professional
education through the Group'’s sponsorship.

The Second Equilibrium: Dividend vs Capex and
Working Capital Requirements

Dividend for 2004/05
- The Directors have recommended a final
dividend of HK12.5 cents per share;

- Together with the interim dividend of HK8.5
cents per share, total dividends for the year
amounts to HK21 cents (2003/04: HK20 cents);
and

- The final dividend will be payable on or about 11
August 2005. This dividend payment is in line with
our policy of paying out 50% or more of the profit
attributable to shareholders of the year.
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Dividend Paid/Payable per Share
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Our biased view on corporate governance: sharing wealth created with all shareholders through dividend
BMECEECNBEEEEL HEEAREREE-—FBREESEZHE

Sharing Wealth with our Shareholders

We always believe that our willingness to share with the
shareholders the wealth created through distribution of
dividend is the greatest and most direct manifestation of
our corporate governance achievement. Since 2000/01,
the Group’s accumulated dividends paid/payable is
around HK$414,234,000 or 92% of the shareholders’
fund. Shareholders starting to invest in Karrie in 2000/01
should have received a total dividend of HK106.1 cents
per share (including the proposed final dividend of 2004/
05) by now.

BEETRE

BB EEERREREERRMS =
HE RRABENGRERERCEEARN
FHE-B-BEE /E-FEBBE &
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No Change in Dividend Policy

In our continuous dialogues with institutional investors and
in meetings with individual investors in tea-breaks, we have
been urged to raise the dividend level in view of the
substantial increase in profit attributable to shareholders.
As the largest shareholder of the Group, personally | will
not object to putting more cash in my own pockets.
However, our existing dividend policy was formulated
during a period of low Capex (2003/04 Annual Report,
appendix 4, assumption 1). With the commencement of
the Phase 1 of the huge Yu Quan Plant, a new Capex
cycle has begun. We can no longer rely on our free
cash flow (defined as profit attributable to
shareholders plus depreciation) to finance the
dividend and working capital requirements and the
Capex. The shortfalls would have to be financed by net
bank borrowings, which increased from HK$6,287,000 to
HK$233,630,000 or a net gearing of 2% as at 31 March
2004 and 52% as at 31 March 2005 respectively.

As such, it would be unrealistic to expect us to raise the
absolute amount of dividend substantially in coming years
in light of both the increasing cash requirement from Capex
cycle and working capital. So the real question is whether
we should cut, rather than to raise, the dividend. After
careful deliberation in balancing the requirements of the
shareholders and the capital requirement of the Group,
we are not yet convinced that we should change our
dividend policy at the moment because:

- The amount of cash flow saved through a low
double digits change of dividend payment would
not be significant as compared to the overall bank
borrowings of the Group (more detailed discussion
on the Financial Resources on P.43); and

- On the other end of the spectrum, we object to any
drastic cut in the dividend level as we fully recognize
the value of a constant stream of dividend to
our existing shareholders.
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In summary, barring any unforeseeable change of business MR - BREIR AR BN EE N

situation:

- We will adhere to our existing policy of paying -
out 50% or more of the profit attributable to
shareholders as dividend; and

- We will maintain our pledge to our shareholders —
made in 2003/04 (2003/04 Annual Report, P.35 and
the 3 general criteria on possible changes in dividend
policy) that should the Directors decide to change
the existing dividend policy, we would provide
an advance notice in the immediate preceding
interim or annual result announcements.

Risk Management

Other than normal
operating and financial
risks arising out of the
ordinary course of
business, the following
factors deserve special
attention (the problem of
gross profit margin

Fire Drill: Prevention better than damage control

decline is dealt with in JOEESEE B B

the Prospect Section on
P.41).
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Group’s Target ROE at 20% or above
EECZRRESOHEERAFEER20%I U £

Return on Equity
PR R fE 7 [E] R
(%)
40 -~
35}
30 +
25+
20 +
15
10

5L

O | | | | | | | | J
96/97 97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05

96/97 97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05
HK$(m)  HK$(m)  HK$(m) HK$(m) HK$(m) HK$(m) HK$(m) HK$(m) HK$(m)
BEBE BEBK BEBK BERK BEEK BEEK BEEEK BERE BEEK
Profit attributable to
shareholders

PR A s 81 28 25 21 26 78 120 90 150

Shareholders’ Equity

RRER 310 318 332 339 356 347 364 375 450

Return on Equity (%)

PR 5 (] R R (%) 26.2 8.8 7.6 6.1 7.4 22.6 32.9 24.1 334

RMB Appreciation ARKEE

As the Group's production base is in China, an appreciation MAREBEEEEMUARA - BILRE A

of the RMB will definitely have an impact on the Group'’s E’%ﬂ@ SECEERBAUARSIIE

performance. However, investors should note that: 2 HREEFEEOT :

- the impact is mostly limited to the overhead portion — ZRBREBRZLERN AR KEHZ
as under the Group’s business model, most of the R EEIBRIN HRUE PR ERETE
materials by value (other than steel) are either fEmpEH (RE=T1E8) - ¥E
purchased through the customers or designated HewZ2—RABBRREERS L
vendors (see P.39). For 2004/05, RMB payments MR—ZETN/ TREED - FHAA
represented around 10% of our total cost of sales; RERENRBHEBEBHEKAY

10%
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- the Group always maintains a surplus of its RMB
assets over its RMB liabilities. An appreciation of
the RMB would create a one-time capital gains that
may offset partly or wholly the short term negative
impact on the profit and loss account; and

- as most of the Group’s competitors are also
based in China, in theory over the long run, we
could raise price to cover the increase in costs
provided that the customers stick to their
present sourcing pattern.

Electricity Supply
We do not expect much improvement this summer. However,

- the Group has sufficient alternative electricity
supply to ensure uninterrupted production; and

- while the cost of generating own electricity is much
more expensive, the overall impact on the Group’s
performance is not material. Electricity charges
represented less than 2% of the total cost of sales
of the Group.

Labour

We have not experienced any serious trouble on this front
and the labour turnover ratio is consistent with the
past pattern. We speculate that this may be due to the
following reasons:

- our strong reputation in the local community
(introduction of such new features to attract workers
like the “culture workshop”, 2003/04 Annual Report,
P.38);

- the capital-intensive nature of the business requires
far less workers than other light industries given
the size of our turnover; and

- the heavy-duty nature of some parts of the operation
like metal stamping requires a substantial number
of male workers.

Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥

- SERREFSARBEESRARE
BE WARENHESRABESEARE
EfEEzD XSO KT2EEYE
BaiWEHERERE &

- HREEABOZBEFHFZLEER
wRRATE BwEtREMS @ &
REFNERBREAEZEKBEERX - 48
FEARBE-—FEAEFERME - A
WERELEAN -

B
BNAEHENHERSFESTEEAA
M

- EEEEBHERTRUABRKRLET
EWE R

- HARBEHENRLABASE BH
HEBEZEBPEEN  MENMAX
HEBEEHEKRAIN2% -

“T
FMREIMEF BT ABIERNE
1 MEIRAZHEBEIHEEEXAREE
B EMAGzIROTERERA :

- KBEREMHRAERFNEBEE(ZF
T=/ENEEFRE=T/\H &
BAB XD EIFESRSA
A)

- NUEXBEAEMmE  TREKERXREE
REEHEBZA - UL H 3
TEHETINHIRERD R

— Y ERHAEHHNIENAR ST
B HEETANFIREK -

37



Chairman’s Statement xE#H%

Middle Management

While we do not have a serious problem with labour, we
do have a problem of shortage of middle management as
a result of the rapidly expanding business. We need more
engineers, procurement officers, marketing executives,
production and other management personnel to maintain
our services to our customers. We have granted share
options, organized brainstorming sessions and other
measures to recruit, retain and motivate our middle
management ranks (for details please refer to the
Employment and Remuneration Policy section on P.49).

Inventories

The increase of inventories level from HK$166,474,000 to
HK$440,013,000 is a serious concern. Here comes the
Third Equilibrium: how to balance the customers’
requirements of additional inventory vs the risk
profile of the Group. This goes beyond the question of
financing as certainly we do not want to enter into a
period of business downturn with a high inventory level.
Unfortunately, as our business continues to expand, we
need to stock up more raw materials to ensure
uninterrupted production. Beside, some of our customers
also require an increase in the cushion level of inventory
in the just-in-time (“JIT") inventory warehouse to ensure
their own uninterrupted production.

As the sole supplier of the customers for particular
projects, we have no option but to comply with their
request. Under our existing business model, the
customer and its suppliers have to build up a mutual
trust under a “business partnership” both in name
and in substance: Customer has to trust its sole
supplier to deliver the goods on time while the
supplier has to trust the customer as the supplier
assumes high risks in delivering goods to the JIT

warehouse and/or in paying for the large amount of
components (2003/04 Annual Report, P.15).
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Generalised Price Movement Graph of Electro-Galvanised Steel Coil
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* Latest quotation for delivery in June 2005 is around US$870/MT.
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Steel Price

While our unique business model has shielded the Group
from the uncertainty of the fluctuating raw material price
in general, steel price fluctuation is another matter. As
steel price is mostly fixed at the time of the confirmation
of project, the rising steel price in the last two years had a
negative impact on the Group. However,

- Since 2003/04 we have raised our inventory level to
allow sufficient time for the Group to re-open
negotiation with customers should there be any
sudden drastic price increase. While there is no
guarantee that the customer would eventually accept
any price increase, it should be noted that steel
price increase is an industry problem, not problem
peculiar to Karrie; and

- The cost of steel represented less than 10% of
the total cost of sales.

#HHHE
HEAEBZBREBLLRATRELE
—RRHBERZDOERE - B ERSR
AP HRZEE-RRERERRBE
EERETE - M OmFEHERKXEL
o BEBELEETE I

- ROZET=TOFERMEEET
EKRFRA - MEHABBRRAS
R EENERAREETPENE
AR BEARMBEIRERFP &K
TEEMRMIEENFRFK - BEEX
REARHEMER LT DHBRERER
FrBZIMEE - MIERRAKEEBE
B R

- HHHTEAREERERDR10% -

39



Chairman’s Statement xE#H%

BUSINESS REVIEW
Metal & Plastic Business

The Metal & Plastic Business grew by 22% from
HK$963,002,000 in 2003/04 to HK$1,172,806,000 due to
the gradual worldwide resumption of technological
spending.

EMS Business

Sales attributable to this division previously suffered a 18%
decline in 2003/04 due to the delays in the launching of
new products to fill up the production vacuum created by
the expiry of life cycle of some of the products as a result
of the occurrence of SARS in 2003. In 2004/05, such
production problems were subsequently solved in due
course and new products were launched according to
schedule. As a result the growth of the EMS Division
resumed, with turnover showing a strong 90% increase
from HK$729,958,000 in 2003/04 to HK$1,390,384,000.
However, due to its low gross profit margin, the profit
contribution from this Division of HK$46,268,000 (2003/
04: HK$19,351,000) was still much less than the Metal &
Plastic Division of HK$123,922,000 (2003/04:
HK$80,591,000).

Geographical Distribution

Asia (excluding Japan) was still the largest market of the
Group with HK$1,096,507,000 in turnover (2003/04:
HK$781,751,000). Western Europe came in a close second
with sales of HK$808,937,000 (2003/04: HK$496,501,000)
while shipment to North Amercia only ranked third with
HK$429,867,000 (2003/04: HK$254,981,000). The
shipment pattern of Group continues to adhere to our
usual practice of geographical diversification.
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PROSPECT
2005/06: Maintaining the Growth Momentum

We have a relatively “long-term business visibility” because
of the project-oriented nature of our business (2003/04
Annual Report, P.14). With the engineering works
completed for the projects confirmed and as in most
cases the Group is the sole supplier for those
particular projects, our problem is therefore one of
production and not of marketing. In particular:

- We have revised upward the turnover growth
rate for 2005/06 from 20% to 30%;

- Despite the expected solid performance of the server
casings business in 2005/06, the Metal and Plastic
Division will be mainly flat in 2005/06 because
of the projected turnover decline in the personal
computer casings and plastic sides. However, we
are still open to the possibility of a slight rebounce
in this Division in the second half of the 2005/06
after a period of consolidation in the first half of
the financial year;

- Once again the low-margin EMS Business will
be the growth driver for the coming financial year
as we expect strong growth in the shipment of laser
printers, digital photo printers and fax machines;
and

- The unaudited turnover of the Group for two
months ended 31 May 2005 was HK$510,000,000
(2004/05: HK$350,000,000). As the unaudited
turnover for these two months may not represent
the final result for the year ending 31 March 2006,
investors and shareholders are advised to exercise
extreme caution when dealing in the shares of the
Company.
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2006/07: Cautiously Optimistic —EERBLEE BEHSH

While it may be unrealistic to project into the distant future, B NIRBFE MDA B IR BV G 2R B R
we decide to provide our sales target guidance for 2006/ LFBEHAZRER  BARAERH-ZZ
07 in the name of transparency. At this stage we think it NAELFEEEEANEIIEENERIR
is much better for us to set a more cautious turnover RBERAEIHE  RERBEMRAABEE
target of 10% revenue growth. BEREEZRI10%EBRAEZENGEE -

Not Worried over Expected Decline of the Overall Gross MIETRRIEEENE &2 NE
Profit Margin

Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin

ENRELANRESE

(%)
200 —A— Gross Profit Margin £ (%)

' -m- Net Profit Margin 4B 7% (%)
250
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(%) 97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05
Gross Profit Margin 23.3 20.7 24.8 17.0 19.4 15.0 13.7 12.4
eIk
Net Profit Margin 4.5 4.3 3.1 2.9 6.8 6.9 5.3 5.9
43 )
HK$(million) (& & &T)
Turnover 619 592 662 893 1,156 1,738 1,693 2,563
ERE
Profit attributable to

Shareholder 28 25 21 26 78 120 90 150
& BR M 5
As the sources of growth momentum will mainly come HREEERNEIERBEEFEERTL

from the EMS Business rather than the Metal and Plastic EBEZR L2 BRBER  BEIBFEER
business, the overall gross profit margin will decline TRV RRENREZE  BREINEH
due to the lower gross profit margin of the EMS SBHRTHA-

Business.
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While the projected performance of individual quarters may

vary, we expect that on a whole year basis the increase in
turnover should be faster than the rise in manufacturing
overhead and other operating expenses, thereby making a
positive impact to the bottom line. However, it would not
be possible to maintain the current year superb rate of
growth because of the relative low base of Y2003/04 and
the possible impact of other negative factors in the coming
financial year (P.35 Risk Management). In summary, given
the strength of the Group’s business model, support of its
customers and suppliers and zeal of its dedicated staff
and management team, the Directors are still optimistic
for the performance of the coming year.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Rapid Increase in Bank Borrowings

As correctly projected previously (2003/04 Annual
Report, the 1st quarter and interim results announcements),
net gearing ratio increased substantially from 2% on
31 March 2004 to 52% as at 31 March 2005. With the
February/March 2005 combined turnover figures of
HK$475,532,000 and an average 60 days collection period,
it is inevitable that the goods shipped have not been paid
as at 31 March 2005. These shipments contributed to a
HK$268,338,000 increase in the trade receivables which
roughly explains the increase in net bank borrowings of
HK$227,343,000 over the year.

HABMERNFENXZERRHGEER -
BE2FREEME2XBN LA RERER
LEM A ﬂﬁ% ﬁ%ﬁmﬂMXEﬁ

gwh Miﬁ@%ﬁl%waﬁﬁ‘+
TERBREE)  RRFENZELERGEXR
MRFIARERARIER - £FEME - AR
SEZEBRERAABEDS  TREM
ERGETXRERETEZEEEYH TIEN
B EFSYHRNKENFERRDER
BIZEER M o

B35 &R
ROBESRELFA

MBRMzERABERN(ZEZT= TMFF
® TN TRFEF—FTERPH
XERE)  FEEHEHBEHRK_-FTEN
EFZA=+—HZ2%EAZ-_BERE=
B=1+—HB252% - LZZEERF_AK
_Hz %%ﬁ 5+475, 532000,%75 JJW
:H—+—E%ﬁaﬁﬁm§%m$%@
EREUNEREY  SLERSEFHEYR
IR EF - F+268,338,000/8 7T+ A # Al AR 2
BIARFEFRITEEINE227,343,000% 7T

ZHIE -
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Shareholders Fund and Banking Facilities

RRECRRITEER

B Banking Facilities
220,000 RITIEER
2004/05

[ Shareholders' Fund
449,978 .
ERES
77,348
1997/98

314,419

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 HK$(,OOO)
0 200,000 400,000 600,000 800,000 Bt (Fit)

Why our banks place so much confidence in Karrie’'s Team?

A drink at 5:30 p.m. on 6 June 2005 and a speedy approval by one of our principal bankers at 8:35 a.m. the following day on a
temporary 2-months HK$40,000,000 loan facility to assist the Group Hong Kong dollars funding requirements because of our
unwillingness to sell down the US dollar holdings at the then foreign exchange rate.

RABTHERNE R WL T HE O ?

RZZEZRFRNARNEBN TFAR=THoEAR —HFZRITRE - REMNT E/\K =155 P 815 8L B K #740,000,000
BTMEACRPERE AEREMIAFEUNER EEBERFR2ETFR  #HEBENELESBERE -

Non-current Assets to Shareholders’ Fund Ratio ERBEEERRESLLREZTMIUT
Staying Below 1

Despite the huge increase in bank borrowings, there is no HARTEELH LA BEEFTENHEZE
cause for alarm. The Non-current Assets to Shareholders’ KCFMNDEEARFTES L XTEEERR
Fund ratio continues to stay below 1, meaning that the 1 REKEZHRDEEHBEZRAR
non-current assets of the Group were being financed RELHZEF UYRERHRESHEENE

by stable long-term shareholders’ fund with no mis- oo
matching of financing.
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Financing Options

AERE
Dividend Capex Working Capital
;=N BEEERE REES
Debt £ & Equity BRA5 5K

1. Bank Financing $R1TE 1. Scrip Dividend LAPEfR B
2. Factoring ZEZ=E4IR 2. Dividend f& 2

3. Placement #EA%

4. Warrants R &:E

5. Convertible Bonds AJ# A% &%

Financing for Growth

For 2005/06, we face 3 principal tasks for financing:

- Investors’ expectation of dividend payment;
- Commencement of the new Capex cycle; and

- Rising working capital requirements because of
the targeted 30% increase in turnover.

The choice is between debt and equity. We have mentioned
earlier that we are not going to change our dividend policy.
Under the existing circumstances, we still do not prefer
non-debt method because of its potential dilutive impact
on earnings per share. Even taking into account of rising
interest rate in the coming months, we still believe that the
debt alternative is the cheapest and the most optimal way of
financing for growth under the following guiding principles:

- Profit after tax plus depreciation should be equal to
or greater than the Capex plus dividend;

- If this is the case, then our Non-current Assets to
Shareholders’ Fund ratio should stay below one.
Short term bank borrowing will rise to fill in the
financing gap where increase in trade payables not
able to match the increase in inventories and trade
receivables; and

- Interest coverage (EBITDA/interest expenses) to stay
above 5.

RERRHESBEHE

R-ZZH/ZEXFE RESBESA
EMEH=KEH

- REZHRBERENHE
- HREBHHERKR

— FEREXBELANNTARBEEER
MR b0 -

BB MEREE  RITEEIEATS
HARF AR MBI P TERERE K
R AEBRIBRT  BEMMATHERA
FEERX  BEBEXBIRESRER
BE - AEEEIARRBAXBEMEDNT
Bt BPDARK/BTEERESBE
FREEMRARNTE  TEERUAT
JRAN

—  BREENNEFEZEN EEA%
A E AR % 2R 82 4D

- fHEM ERBEERKRRESLH
REERT AREHEMK IR
EFRFENEZREKR LT 8
BUEHRTEEEBESRE LW

= gh -
™ 2=

-  FEREXR(MMERMEXL - HE -
PrEREHEAMEN) + M8 ) BR
RS e AL -
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Bank Borrowings

TEE
- _ N
Three Principles =XKEA
1. Profit Attributable to Shareholders + 1. BREMLREH + 718 = BEE
Depreciation = Capex + Dividend EERE + KRB
2. Non-Current Assets to Shareholders Fund 2. ERBEEERREREE
Ratio <1
3. Interest Coverage > 5 3. M REERS
%

(S

Net Gearing Ratio Rising to 90%

With the 30% projected increase in turnover, we project
that the net gearing ratio will rise further from the current
52% level to around 90% towards the end of the next
financial year. Given our committed dividend policy
and the rising Capex, the net gearing ratio will only
fall if we are not able to achieve the sales target in
2005/06.

Additional Bank Financing Arranged

To cater for such working capital requirements, we have
further arranged sufficient short term banking facilities
with our bankers. As an additional precaution, we have
also secured 5-year medium term loan facilities of
HK$100,000,000 (HSBC, HK$70,000,000 and Standard
Chartered, HK$30,000,000). These medium term loan
facilities remained undrawn on 24 June 2005.

Resources Available

The Directors are confident that with the cash holdings of
HK$352,665,000 and banking facilities of
HK$870,000,000, the Group is able to meet its current
and operational and capital expenditure requirements.

As at 31 March 2005, part of the Group's banking facilities
were secured by mortgages over certain of the Group's
land and buildings in mainland China with a net book
value of approximately HK$16,424,000 (2003/04:
HK$16,825,000).
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BEELEBEANER A30%  KMETF
BELEEHB A Z52%KF @ BT —1E
FHRFELEREE - EAEI0%Z K
FoBERRMPMEARFBEZREBRERELRK
XM ERKEEZN -_FTETHEX
FEZEEXEEEN  ERFEELEST
EHRETH -

ZHENRITEER

RTEMNRBESF R HMADHERETR
BT RAMERERR - (ER/BIMRIE -
EMIAE%E T &4£100,000,0008 T2 H
FHzHrHERE(BEREERT
70,000,000 T & 7& 4T #& 7 30,000,000%
7)) BE_TTRFANA-_TEA - ZEF
THERBERABA -

B AER

LA BRI 5 5% A F IR £ 352,665,000
BT M IR1T & E58870,000,000/8 T 0 &

E2ERELEREHNENBEKREEERE
$|§Eﬁaﬂ§iﬂ’]m§é°
HE_ZZTRF=ZA=1+—H £@HH

BITEEBREANEBRNBAEEEEES
KRN MEBEEFEEDEY
16,424,000 T (—Z T = /TNFE :
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EXCHANGE RATE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated either in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar or
Reminbi. As the exchange rate of the Hong Kong dollar,
US dollar and Reminbi were relatively stable during the
year, the Group was not exposed to material exchange
risk at the moment (please refer to “Risk Management”
on P. 35).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2005, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
Community Interest

As a responsible corporate citizen, we continue to promote
social responsibilities program. We have made donation to
charities in both Hong Kong and China. Our staff in China
had also actively participated in a number of activities
including visiting senior citizens, students of School of Hope
(donated by the Group and its employees) in remote areas,

i
Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥

B 5 B

SEBRABONEE  BERIXZHNUE
T ELHARBE  BRFRBT
ELRARBZEXR-—HHFIRE - Ut
SERBYEEFNEANELRR - (F2
ME=tRAIRARER])

HZRAE

BE_TTAF=A=+—HIL  £EY
BERLREE -

TEHEER
HEAHE

FAER—ERETZEERAR  BAF
BEHETEEMEETEY  UNBELE
NIERERF  MEAE I AEZRS2ELS
LEE HRBREDZEARLERREE
wrzHFENE(HEBRBET —REB
2 HEEEHE R _TTRFRA B

Is profit the only objective for an enterprise?

BNRECENE—HIZ?
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planting of trees etc. In May 2005, our colleagues in Hong
Kong have formed a new volunteer group for charitable
works. We will continue to encourage our colleagues to
actively participate in community works.

Environmental Affairs

In 2001, the Group obtained the ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System accreditation. In 2006, electronics
products entering the European market will have to comply
with strict environmental guidelines (e.g. RoHS). A few years
ago, we have started working together with our multi-
national customers to ensure that our products will be in
compliance with such new regulations. We will continue
our best effort in using environmental-friendly raw materials
in products design, improving polluted air filtering system,
speeding up responses to customers’ queries on
environmental concerns in our products, reusing recycle
water in toilets etc.

Education

To promote the implementation of corporate governance
among small and medium sized enterprises in Hong Kong,
we have donated HK$270,000 to the Hong Kong Baptist
University (“HKBU") for the funding of its Centre of
Corporate Governance and Financial Policy, School of
Business, Hong Kong Baptist University and the provision
of three scholarships for students studying for the Master
Degree in Science of Corporate Governance and
Directorship Program. Our colleagues have also participated
in the seminars/discussions organized by the School of
Business of HKBU.

Karrie International Holdings Limited

ARENTABEINM2BEZEY - &
MedEsBE T BBR2ENREY -

B&ERIE

EER _ZEZE—FEEBFISOI4001REE
BREARE M _ZSTFHEMAS
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Extracted from Wen Wei Po published on 18 May 2005
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EMPLOYMENT AND RENUMERATION & & & % B BUSR

POLICIES

Our Staff is Our Greatest Assets LABR

We have been asked several times why the Group is able BMEZAEELREERSE EmE NA
to beat out our competitors many times of our size to REBRMAREEZHFEMDNERE, 2
secure new projects. The principal reason lies in the offering MIEE  ZEAENRESEMATPREM
of superb services to our customers. To maintain such BEORS - AERERFELDRY - &M
premium service, we must continue to recruit, motivate EERE HPRBBAEESENET -
and retain talented staff. This task is rendered more difficult METBANTRAZEFRE :

with:

With healthy and happy staff, we will have productivity.
HERLNET - TRBELEENHET

- the recovery of the economy and the end of — ABAAEKEEHRRBHEBELEER R
deflation in Hong Kong; and

- the rapid expansion of the Group’s turnover. - KBEEXEIREER-
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Since 2001, we have implemented a number of measures: SEE T FHREELZHEER £
R

Rewarding for Performance EZ-E2t

The standard 13th month pay was abolished. A new BEEBEMET=@ERAFH<  MmMRZHE

performance based bonus system and a more objective HERBEHBN RS H RREEHNHKREN

system of performance evaluation system were introduced. fh BHEERBENETAREZRLUAE

Employees with superior performance now received higher RAIBNES -

bonus than under the previous system.

Summary of Share Options Granted to Employees

ETRERBEREMESR
no of person
N
140 133
120 +
100
77

80 +

60 +

w0l 37

LI I
00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05

Linking the interest of our shareholders with a greater number of staff through share options
FRREEREZITESET  BREMIAREMMEELE —E

The Case for Staff Share Options ETRERE

| fully understand that issuing share options is no longer R SKSAREARNE M T &
fashionable in HK and elsewhere. | am also aware that the HEREETERE  BRMEHAIKER
Company has to treat share option as an expense item in TEgrFETEREREYEL (BRI
the next financial year. (We have not charged share option WARBHBRENKEIABREA - B
cost to the profit and loss account for the current financial EARBBBERATEEA - AN L
year. Had we done so, our profit would have been reduced 4,718,000 7T © mMAR R E/R & F B T2
by approximately HK$4,718,000 and the profit attributable 145,626,000 7T * RE/\NTNE) °

to shareholders would have been reduced to
HK$145,626,000. See P. 89).




iy . -1"' Wik |
_ ‘_ - . I‘l'l'll:l'.l I
——— — S .:..

But critics should appreciate that there are still no other REESRMACTEZRADEEBAAL X

alternatives available which are better than share options: REHMEBEEBREESENEE

- When the Group expands rapidly and recruits new — IFIEEEZRERMEBEEEA
managers, how do you ensure that they maintain g ABWAREMMEHUORO
the same entrepreneur spirit? Now with the issue WELCEHBIERLERER
of share options, we have a group of owners/managers s —MELETAEENZ AR
who really care about the interest of the Group; BWRER,ERE

Will there be the day when all our staff are shareholders?

SRA-RMAETHERASEMOBRR ?
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- When we use performance-based bonus system,
it is inevitable that people will focus on their
best short-term performance in order to get the
largest amount of bonus immediately. This is
human nature. But their individual achievement may
not be necessarily good for the overall long-term
interest of the Group. A share option scheme will
force our managers to think of the long term interest
from the Group’s perspective. Although it will not
entirely eliminate shortsighted decisions or
departmental conflicts, it will help; and

- While the accounting treatment may treat issue
of share options as an expense, no actual cash
flow is involved. This is especially important given
the high net gearing ratio of the Group. As such
share options are issued to staff at the market price
at the date of grant with no discount, our staff will
have to work hard to benefit along with other
existing shareholders.

Potential Dilutive Effect of Share Options

Share options are of course a “cost” as it dilutes
the earning per share. As the majority |
shareholder myself, of course | would tak
the interest of the shareholders into
account. Our staff share options
are granted over a long vesting
period to ensure that the
dilutive impact is kept to a
minimum.

Karrie International Holdings Limited

ERMERAURBEHBANRESHR
BEATEESRFERRUKRDE
NERZEE  AHAMRE  BE
AREH o BMPFIEARNLERER
BHEBREMNZEN - ROBRE
AR A BEEEABNREREN &
ERERE - #AR BB AR
VR TE 2 i 1 — LR AR BIR T Sk #B PT RY
ME - BRI HIELEMANGEE
BEY K

BASTHHERBRES —HEMAX
BERIEESEEIRERS - &5
HREERESFRELENERL
HEZ ANBERERREHERZ
MISERKETEIN - WEiGTE
i AHBTIMBAEEMES
Ao FAEREERMARZEFAR

BREEE 2 ENE

R B A 2 B BOE
MEEH - MERIEIK
Klz— AAEREEZ
BN EATSRBR
MAZmAEERE  EMm
EEFHEREZEBR
BT —BRRE
BATHE - UEREEX
FERERE -

Dropping a stone on my foot: Why should | agree
to issue more share options to dilute the
shareholdings of the majority shareholder?

WAOBEBH - BARRFAZIKEE S MRBREL
EERTEEEZRROBN#ES?
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(As at 15 June 2005, total number of issued share capital is 408,764,000 shares)
(BE-_TFTRFNATHABETREEE #5408,764,00048)

Number of exercisable
outstanding share options

RITEBREHRE
Percentage
over total
number
of issued
Exercisable during or Other share capital
after the period Directors Participants Total HERITRA
RBARZERATTEZFE E= Hih28RE By ZHEME
01/04/2005 - 31/03/2006 4,820,000 14,520,000 19,340,000 4.73%
01/04/2006 - 31/03/2007 1,680,000 7,824,000 9,504,000 2.33%
01/04/2007 - 31/03/2008 1,760,000 3,900,000 5,660,000 1.38%
01/04/2008 - 31/03/2009 1,760,000 1,760,000 3,520,000 0.86%
Cumulative total 5 10,020,000 28,004,000 38,024,000 9.30%

United we stand

BEERENE
Building up the New Corporate Culture By i)
Monetary reward alone cannot buy you performance BEESERBUYTHETEZRIETINRR
or loyalty. We need to build up a new corporate culture. BAEH BMABESNRIIFEEX
Since the establishment of the Executive Committee and ]l BEXREBRBKOEBMKZAITEER
&S FA —FFT ARvaY &' oy A

its staffing by professional managers in 2001, we have GR-FF-FRILUR - RATEEEE)
actively encouraged our staff to: 5L

AA X A Ny /% = 33 .
- make decision instead of the “passing the buck”; o BRRRRRBERNEENEE
- focus on benefits generated instead of cost saved; o TR ERA - FIEMENES
- share information to reduce departmental conflicts - — D Z AR D #PIF B MR

ZA N
and to minimize risk; and o &
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- change from “do nothing to avoid mistake”’ to
“more attempts even at the cost of making
mistakes”.

“Corporate Day” on 3 February 2005
—ETRF_A=HETZIXB]

In February 2005, we hosted our first brainstorming session
with around 100 mid-level managers whereby the Directors
outlined the future strategic direction and listened to
feedbacks.

A THOUSAND-MILE JOURNEY
STARTS WITH A FIRST STEP

We are not Perfect

We have run into a number of problems in staging such
an event. We had failed to ask all qualified mid-level
managers to attend, the feedback time was not sufficient,
some of the important topics were not covered and so
on....... But this is the first time a small company like us to
take such a first step. We are not perfect nor are we
the best. But by taking such important first step, we
will one day finish our “thousand-mile journey”.

A Clear Objective, but No More 3-Year Plan

With the successful completion of the 3-year plan to double
the turnover first announced in 2001/02, we have been
urged to announce a new 3-year plan to provide more
concrete guidance for the future. Tempting as it may be,
we reiterate that we are not in the game of short-term

glory:

Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥

Impersonating the God of Fortune: working hard for

the benefit of shareholders.

BhHEHE  FEBRRBRE
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- Firstly, with the increased size of the denominator,
a doubling of turnover will be an Herculean task
within the same time span from the production
standpoint; and

- Secondly, pushing the Group too fast will run against
my own prudent instinct in view of the various
uncertainties like production bottlenecks, high
interest rate, high oil price and so on.

Rather, we will aim at doubling our size without
specifying the timeframe. While it may be disappointing
to some, our management team here thinks that this is
the best for the long-term interest of all the stakeholders.
After all, if we are to take a one thousand-miles journey,
we have to take the first step. We would not be
burdened by the worry over the market reaction to
our short-term performance. Nor will we cut back
our investment in Capex and human resources, despite
the possible investors’ concern over the revenue
growth by the low margin EMS Business. We will keep
on building up our infrastructure in both hardware and
software. They will provide the solid foundation upon which
the Group will march toward its next target, eventually.

Let’s Take the First Step Together

There will always be concerns over rising cost of raw
materials, the appreciation of RMB, production bottlenecks,
rising interest rate, insufficient mid-level managers and
the apparent stagnation of the higher-profit margin Metal
and Plastic Business. Yes they are serious business
problems. But like sunset and sunrise (2003/04 Annual
Report, P. 26) they are also essential parts of our life.
We will not be afraid of any setbacks. We may be
down one day (like the drop of profit in 2003/04).
But very quickly we will stand up again. With the
support of customers, suppliers, staff, bankers and
others, we know that we will continue our march
toward excellence. One day we will finish our
“thousand-mile journey”. And then another
“thousand-mile journey”. But let’s take our first step
here. Today.
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APPRECIATION

I would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their invaluable
support to the Group, and my fellow Directors, managers
and all staff for their considerable contributions to the
Group. | would like to express our special thanks to Mr
Leung Wai Ho, who resigned as an independent non-
executive director (“INED") of the Company in January
2005, for his contribution in the past 7 years. | also take
the opportunity to welcome Mr Fong Hoi Shing, who joined
us as an INED in December 2004.

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman
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APPENDIX 1

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model

A

Hypothetical

Example

(Simplified and generalized for
easy understanding)
1. Quotation Phase

12 months prior to shipment,
Customer A sends out Request
for Quotation (RFQ) for a
project to all “qualified
suppliers”.

2. Project Confirmation Phase

Customer A confirms the
placement of the project to us;
Customer A also provides
shipment forecast for the next
18 to 24 months, which is the
normal life cycle of a project.

3. Moulds and Prototype Making
Phase

According to Customer A
specification, we start to
perform the design works,

make the moulds and
prototype;
This process would take

around 6 to 12 months;
Customer A would also work
with our purchasing
department on electronics
components and the list of
qualified suppliers for such
components.

4. Shipment Phase

Customer A finalizes and
revises the final shipment
schedule;

We start manufacturing and
ship goods to just-in-time (JIT)
inventory warehouses.

5. Sales Recognition and Payment

53

Customer A takes goods from
JIT warehouses;

We get paid after the normal
credit period (generally 60
days).

Quotation

Phase
HERKE

Project
Confirmation
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Moulds &
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Making Phase
RERMER R

Shipment Phase
RERR

Sales
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HERARRE
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APPENDIX 1 (Cont'd)

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model
(Cont’d)

As the related engineering works have largely been
completed and in most cases the Group is the sole supplier
for the confirmed project, our problem is therefore one of
production, and not of marketing (2003/04 Annual Report,
P.26).
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APPENDIX 1 (Cont'd)
Special Characteristics of Our Business Model

Some or all of the following characteristics apply in our
dealing with customers. Such characteristics have been
generalized/simplified to enable easy understanding:

1. We deal with projects, which can take one year of
development and engineering works from initial project
confirmation to final shipment of goods. A project’s
shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24 months.

2. We do not normally have a large orders backlog
because the customers’ adoption of either the just-in-
time inventory (JIT), rolling forecast, Electronic Data
Interexchange (EDI) or a combination of the above
methods.

3. Usually we are the sole supplier for a particular project
and therefore have the obligation to ship goods to
customers even if the sales volume is much higher
than the initial projection.

4. Most of our customers are not retailers, but
manufacturers themselves. Some of them even have
factories in China. Most of the electronic components
are either sourced through the customers or their
designated suppliers.

5. While the metal and plastic enclosures business is an
integral part of the computer and computer peripheral
sector, the industry thrives only in Taiwan but not in
Hong Kong.

6. Our customers are mostly multi-national companies.
Thus we frequently have the situation likes project
originated in Japan, components assembled in China
while the final products shipped to Asia or Europe.
Our definition of breakdown by market is by shipment
destination but not country of origin of the customers.
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APPENDIX 2
Corporate Governance

1. Three independent non-executive directors out of a
total of nine directors;

2. Establishment of an Executive Committee to improve
decision-making efficiency. The Group is now being
run on an operational basis by a group of professional
managers;

Stephen Wongi JIE i
Production “ E & 1

S K LeeZ= i H
Accounting & it
Investor Relations 1% & # [j 1%

Ho Cheuk Ming{d £ 83
Policy & Major Decision Making I 7 & & Z % F
Conflicts Resolution F & #5 P 5 15

Capex BElF BERE

Alfred Chow & Bl ##

Finance 81 7%

Strategic Planning & Risk Management 7 5 42 2 J% 2l & & 7%
Investor Relations # & % B %
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BERH—HEFREEABRRE

Francis KwokZp Xk B
Marketing 1 7

Silvia ChanBg & &k

Personnel & Administration A % 771
EDP & i & 71 & FF
Internal Audit A &8 &1
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APPENDIX 2 (Cont'd)

Corporate Governance (Cont’d)

3.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Efforts to improve transparency

— in annual report, made detailed explanation of
corporate strategies and the rationale behind;

— meeting with individual shareholders periodically
through a new “tea-break” program. The “tea-
breaks” were held on 25 September, 18 December
2004 and 2 April 2005 respectively;

Clearly defined dividend policy of payment of 50% or
more of the profit attributable to shareholders;

Clearly defined ROE objective of 20%;

Clearly defined future turnover targets;

Announcing quarterly results — Putting the
shareholders’ interest first in publishing a disappointing
quarterly profit drop in September 2003 instead of

just following the previous practice of publishing

turnover figure only (which showed an increase of
19% for the 1st quarter of 2003/04)......as if we were
not able to deliver according to plan, we will let the
investors know as far as practical,

Increasing the number of audit committee meetings
to 4 times a year,

Encouraging executive directors to hold at least
500,000 shares of the Group;

Including a social responsibility statement in the annual
report;

Estimating the cost of options granted,

Enhancing stock market liquidity with the major
shareholder’s placement of 60,000,000 shares to
institutional shareholders in May 2003; and

Willingness to share wealth created with all
shareholders through dividend. Since 2000/01, the
Group’s accumulated dividends paid/payable is around
HK$414,234,000 or around 92% of the shareholders’
fund.
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Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥

APPENDIX 3 Mg =

Dividend and Dividend Policy:
RERBREBX :
An unbroken 8 years record of dividend payment
84F LAk B 1€ K &
Group’s policy to distribute 50% or more of its profits attributable to shareholders as dividend

SEREEREBRERRREMLERS0%H U LAEIRS

All dividend paid shown below is in HK cents per share

THERKEZREZUEBUFE

Interim Final Special Dividend
Interim  Final Subtotal Special Special  Subtotal  Total Payout Ratio
8 A RIRE RE
E KH pit BERE  BARE pit A i dod
(Excluding)* (Including)*

(FEFEER) (BEER)?

1997/98 Nil % 1.00 1.00 Nil £ Nil £ Nil £ 1.00 13% N/A T iE R
1998/99 2.00 2.00 4.00 Nil % Nil Nil & 4.00 58% N/A 1 iE A
1999/00 2.20 2.20 4.40 Nil % Nil Nil & 4.40 77% N/A 1 iE A
2000/01 1.10 3.80 4.90 Nil % 6.20 6.20 11.10 69% 156%
2001/02 5.00 590  10.90 5.00 14.10 19.10  30.00 50% 138%
2002/03 8.00 11.00 19.00 Nil % 5.00 5.00 24.00 60% 75%
2003/04 8.00 12.00  20.00 Nil % Nil Nil &  20.00 87% N/A 1 iE A
2004/05 850 1250  21.00 Nil % Nil % Nil &  21.00 57% N/A 1 iE A
Remarks:  * Excluding special dividend # Including special dividend

it *NEFER RIS B Bl AR S
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

APPENDIX 4 Ff &% P9

Inventory & Debtor Turnover

FEREWIRBES

No. of days F &k :
O. ot aays ——a—— Inventory Turnover 17 & 882 £

100 1~ - - - - Debtor Turnover & i 8 425 HA

90 [—

80 [—

70 —

60 [—

50 —

40 —

30 I I I I I | j

98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05

(no. of days) (H &) 98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05
Inventory Turnover
FEREER 55 96 67 48 39 42 72
Debtor Turnover
JE Ui 1 38 2 HA 57 52 65 64 56 63 80
Inventory turnover (Base on year end stock value/Cost of Sales) x 365 days FEAEH (L FRIFEEHEKF)x 365H
Debtor turnover (Base on year end debtors/Turnover) x 365 days JE W 0 A 83 B (LA FFARFE UL e~ % 38) x 365 H

Inventory Turnover Days 77 & B &

(no. of days) (H &) 03/04 04/05 Change #i&
Raw Material R %} 21 33 +12
WIP 3 % 6 5 -1
Finished Goods FX fa 15 34 +19
Total & &t 42 72 +30
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 59, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in October 1996 and is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company as well as the
founder of the Group. Prior to founding the Group in
1980, Mr. Ho had over 10 years’ experience in factory
management and in manufacturing plastic, metal and
electronic products. He is responsible for the Group's
overall corporate strategies and objectives. He is also a
director of Pearl Court Company Limited, a corporate
substantial shareholder of the Company, and the brother
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and husband of Ms. Ho Po Chu.

He is fellow member of the Asian Knowledge Management
Association. He has been appointed as member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province in March of 2004. Mr. Ho is currently
participating in affairs of different association of foreign
investors, which including China Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment, Guangdong Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment, Dongguan City
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and
Dongguan City Fenggang Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment.

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming, aged 51, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in October 1996, and is a Deputy
Chairman and Chief Operation Officer as well as the
Convener of the Executive Committee of the Group. He is
responsible for overall supervision of the Group's operation.
He joined the Group in 1980 and has over 20 years’
experience in factory production. He is also a director of
Pearl Court Company Limited, a corporate substantial
shareholder of the Company, and the brother of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai and the brother-in-law of Ms. Ho Po Chu.
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Mr. KWOK Wing Kin, Francis, aged 43, was appointed as
a Director of the Company in October 2000, and is a
Deputy Chairman and the Marketing Director as well as a
member of the Executive Committee of the Group. Mr.
Kwok graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a
diploma in business management and is an associate
member of The Hong Kong Management Association. Prior
to joining the Group in 1989, Mr. Kwok had ten years’
experience in plastic manufacturing sector and procurement
work in electronics manufacturing sector.

Mr. TAM Wing Hung, aged 46, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in October 1996, and is the General
Manager of the Group’s manufacturing plant in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). He is responsible
for supervising the Group’s production activities in the
PRC. Mr. Tam has been working for the Company’s wholly-
owned subsidiary, Hong Kong Hung Hing Metal
Manufacturing Company Limited, since 1973 and has over
20 years' experience in the metal manufacturing business.

Mr. LEE Shu Ki, aged 49, was appointed as a Director of
the Company in December 1997, and is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Group. He is responsible for
overseeing the daily operation of the Group’s Accounting
Department. Mr. Lee graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) with a higher diploma in accountancy and is an
associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants of the United Kingdom. He has
over 15 years’ accounting and financial management
experience in manufacturing businesses. Mr. Lee joined
the Group in June 1995.
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Mr. WONG Shun Pang, aged 53, was appointed as a
Director of the Company on 1 June 2004 and is the Senior
General Manager in charge of the factories owned by the
Group in the People’s Republic of China and is a member
of the Executive Committee of the Group. He is responsible
for the operations of China factories. Mr. Wong graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) with a higher certificate in
Production and Industrial Engineering. Mr. Wong had
worked for the Group from 1981 to 1993 and rejoined
the Group in 2001. He had over 30 years’ experience in
engineering and manufacturing management for plastic,
metal and electronics industries.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SO Wai Chun, aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in
July 2001. Mr. So has been carrying on business in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China for over 20 years.
He is the major shareholder and director of three Hong
Kong companies. His businesses are mainly in financial
services and international trading. In 2000, Mr. So was
appointed as the China Representative of Forestry New
Zealand Limited, a subsidiary of Evergreen Forestry Limited
which is a listed company in New Zealand.

Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond, aged 65, was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in
February 1998. He graduated from Oklahoma Baptish
University in the United States with a bachelor degree in
Arts in 1964. Mr. Chan has over 30 years’ experience in
the construction industry. He is also a director of Chaplin
Chemicals Limited and Shelton Food Industry Limited.
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Mr. FONG Hoi Shing, aged 41, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in
December 2004. He has extensive experience in accounting,
finance and management. He holds a postgraduate diploma
in corporate administration and a higher diploma in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and an Associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

MANAGEMENT

Ms. HO Po Chu, aged 56, is the Director of Administration
of the Group. Ms. Ho is one of the founding members of
the Group in 1980 and has over 20 years’ experience in
office administration and purchasing. She is responsible
for supervising personnel and overall administration of the
Group. She is also a director of Pearl Court Company
Limited, a corporate substantial shareholder of the
Company, and the wife of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and sister-in-
law of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.

Mr. CHOW Kwok Hung, Alfred, aged 49, is the Chief
Financial Officer for treasury and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Group. Mr. Chow graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in Social
Science. Mr. Chow is an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and has
over 15 years’ experience in financial management. He
joined the Group in April 1998 and is responsible for the
Group’s financial management and strategic planning.

Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia, aged 33, is the Assistant
Administration Director of Administration Department and
responsible for overall operation of personnel,
administration and EDP department of the Group. Ms. Chan
is one of the members of Executive Committee and Internal
Audit Committee of the Group. Ms. Chan graduated from
The City University of Hong Kong majoring in Public
Administration and Management. She joined the Group in
1996 and has over 8 years’ experience in administration
and management.
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Mr. LI Cheuk Sum, aged 56, is responsible for supervising
the operation of sales and marketing department (division
3) of the Group. Mr. Li has over 20 years’ experience in
the manufacture and sale of video cassette housings. Prior
to joining the Group in 1980, Mr. Li had over 10 years’
experience in the electronics industry and in marine radio
communication.

Mr. WONG Siu Ching, aged 47, is the Marketing Director
(Division 1) of the Group, responsible for project
development and marketing for the Group. Prior to joining
the Group in 1988, Mr. Wong had over 10 years’
experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. CHEUNG Pui Kuen, aged 44, is the Material and
Logistics Director of the Group, responsible for the overall
operation of the Group's supply chain management and
logistics system. Mr. Cheung graduated from The
Loughborough University of Technology, United Kingdom
with a bachelor degree in Aeronautical Engineering and
Design. He also holds a master degree in Industrial
Engineering and Industrial Management from The University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung had worked for the Group
from 1996 to 1998 and rejoined the Group in 2001. He
had over 16 years' experience in manufacturing engineering
and procurement management.

Mr. CHAN Wah Ying, aged 40, is the Assistant Quality
Director of the Group. Mr. Chan graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) with a higher certificate in
Manufacturing Engineering. Prior to joining the Group in
1992, Mr. Chan had over 13 years’ experience in quality
management in an electronic manufacturing company.

Ms. YIU Yuet Fung, aged 40, is the Assistant General
Manager at the Group’s factories in China, responsible for
the overall personnel and administration management. She
joined the Group in 1984 and has over 15 years’ experience
in managing the production process of manufacturing
industries.
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Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 38, is the Assistant Marketing
Director of the Group, responsible for marketing
development work. He joined the Group in 1985 and has
over 15 years’ experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. WONG Fok Tsun, Albert, aged 53, is the Internal Audit
Manager of the Group, responsible for setting up of
internal audit function. Mr. Wong reports directly to Board
of Directors and Internal Audit Committee. Mr. Wong
graduated from Curtin University of Technology, WA with
a bachelor degree in Management and Marketing. He also
holds a master degree of Accounting from the same
University. He is an associate member of each of The
Association of International Accountants, UK and CPA
Australia. Also he is a member of The Institute of Internal
Auditors Inc. U.S.A. Mr. Wong has over 10 years’
experience in internal auditing and 12 years’ experience in
financial accounting. He joined the Group in March 2003.

Mr. HA Hon Leung, aged 45, is the Technical Director of
the Electronics Manufacturing Services (EMS) Department,
responsible for engineering capabilities and technology
development in electronic products and system integration.
Mr. Ha holds a bachelor degree from The University of
Windsor, Canada, and a master degree from The University
of Waterloo, Canada, both in Electrical Engineering. He
also holds a master degree in business administration from
Heriot-Watt University, UK. Mr. Ha has over 20 years’
experience in engineering and technical management in
the electronics industry.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) has the pleasure of EEg([E5g]) B E LEFBRBZR
presenting its report together with the audited accounts BERAB([RARQF]]) REKE AR (F5H
(the “Accounts”) of Karrie International Holdings Limited (AREFE]HZ2 -_ETERF=A=1+—H1t

(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the FE2HRERGCEZKR ([REB)) °
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEXK

The Company is an investment holding company. Its KRBz X EEBRIREER BB A
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture AFEREHERFEEERIIR  PAE
and sale of computer casings, office automation products, NiEEm BETIR - -BE - ZBEke
video cassette housings, moulds, plastic and metal parts BHH (GB AEBRBERK]) RIEHETF
(together referred to as “Metal and Plastic Business”) and BEERIRB (EFEXERIER]) -
provision of electronic manufacturing services (“EMS

Business”).

The Group's turnover by principal product category and AEERIZEMREPAAMEI D 2 &
geographical locations together with their respective ¥HERKRERNBE_ZETERF=HA=+
operating profit for the year ended 31 March 2005 is —BILEFEZHTWT :

analysed as follows:

1. By principal product category: 1. REEERINM
2005
—EERE
Metal and EMS
Plastic Business Business Elimination Total
HeBE ETE¥
E RIEK 8 A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FERT FERT FER
Turnover L
External G2 1,172,806 1,390,584 - 2,563,190
Inter-segment A 26 63,238 - (63,238) -
Segment results DEELE 123,922 46,268 - 170,190
Other revenue Hu g A 12,311
Operating profit 78 & A 182,501
Share of loss of an iR/
associated company BB - (10,234) (10,234)
Finance costs B 7% B 7R (8,720)
Taxation E (13,203)
Profit attributable to P R P
shareholders eyl 150,344
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued) FEE®K ©®)
1. By principal product category: (Continued) 1. BREXEEmON: (&)
2004
—EENF
Metal and EMS
Plastic Business Business Elimination Total
e BB BETEE
Ei RIEH e & #
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET FET
Turnover S
External S Ep 963,002 729,958 - 1,692,960
Inter-segment A 47,561 - (47,561) -
Segment results DEEE 80,591 19,351 - 99,942
Other revenue EH bl A 6,585
Operating profit A 106,527
Share of loss of an JE 1l Bt = A &)
associated company 18 - (1,766) (1,766)
Finance costs B 7 AR (6,145)
Taxation E (8,176)
Profit attributable to % 2R FE {3 F)
shareholders 90,440
2. By geographical locations*: 2. REFRF&EM*:
2005
—EERE
Asia
(excluding North Western
Japan Japan) America Europe Total
)|
(raH
B B &) k=M i ¢ af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER THER TR
Turnover 2ES 227,879 1,096,507 429,867 808,937 2,563,190
Segment results NEEE 16,445 51,035 41,442 61,268 170,190
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued) FEEXK @
2. By geographical locations*: (Continued) 2. REFRF&EM*: (&)
2004
—TTME
Asia
(excluding North Western
Japan Japan) America Europe Total
SN
(TBE
SN A7) JEEM (i GRS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TERT TERT FET
Turnover X 159,727 781,751 254,981 496,501 1,692,960
Segment results LEIEE 12,713 27,512 22,761 36,956 99,942
* Turnover by geographical locations is determined on * BHEOMZ EEERENE MERXD
the basis of the destination of delivery of merchandise. B 8 2RORTE o
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS FEHEDIK

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31 March
2005 are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account
on P.111 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK8.5 cents per ordinary share was
paid during the year. The Directors have recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK12.5 cents per share
for this financial year.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are
set out in Note 12 to the Accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 24 to the Accounts.

AEERE_TETRF-_A=1+—HILHF
EZ%E HARAFHRF—B-—+—H
ZEAERBR®EKRA

AU BRFEERZEFRHESEHEWSSE
- EFTCREZRERFBREAER
12.5%81l -

BEEE
EAMBFEAZBEEEEZSBERFH
MIRB 12 -

LN
AR R B AAE S R BN R BB R 24 o
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RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFIT

Movements in reserves and retained profit of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in Note 26
to the Accounts.

As at 31 March 2005, the Company’s reserves of
approximately HK$264,661,000 representing the
contributed surplus, retained profit and proposed dividends
were available for distribution to the Company’s
shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$337,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's shares
during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES
The Old Scheme

The old share option scheme of the Company (the “Old
Scheme”) was adopted on 27 November 1996 pursuant to
which share options were granted to employees and
Executive Directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. No
further options can be, or have been, issued under the
Old Scheme from 21 May 2002, the date of adoption of
the new share option scheme of the Company (the “New
Scheme”) and termination of the Old Scheme. The key
terms of the Old Scheme are summarised herein below:

(i) The participants of the Old Scheme include any
eligible employee (including any executive directors)
of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(i) The total number of shares subject to options
granted under the Old Scheme is 36,000,000 which
represents 8.81% of the existing issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this report;
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8.81% :



Report of the Directors Ex&#H&

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued)
The Old Scheme (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The maximum entitlement of any eligible employee,
when aggregated with shares issued and issuable
under all options granted to him, must not exceed
25% of the aggregated number of shares for the
time being issued and issuable under the Old
Scheme;

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Old Scheme at any time during a period
to be notified by the Board to each grantee and in
any event shall be not later than ten years from 1
December 1996;

A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is required
to be paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the
option;

The subscription price payable upon exercising any
particular option granted is determined based on a
formula: P = N x Ep, where “P" is the subscription
price; “N” is the number of shares to be subscribed;
and "Ep"” is the exercise price of the higher of (a)
the nominal value of the shares; or (b) 80% of the
average closing prices of the shares of the Company
quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the last five

trading days;

The Old Scheme was terminated on 21 May 2002
but in all other respects the provisions of the Old
Scheme remain in force and all options granted prior
to its termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance therewith;
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued) BRERE (®)

The Old Scheme (Continued) B8 (&)

(viii) Details of share option movements during the year (i) BEEFENEZ2_ZTRF=-A=
ended 31 March 2005 under the Old Scheme are as +—HLEFECEREZEEHFBED
follows: T

Number of Share Options

BREHA

Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
before  exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of date of at31March during  during during at 31 March

Name Grant Price Period grant options 2004 the year the year the year 2005
He BEEH  fRE TS RERE RERE -ZZ0F RAFE RAFE REAEE CZB21%
RABEA 6B =A=+-B ERT e %% ZA=1-H
2R 2R I R AT /B I R AT
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ("000) ("000) ("000) ("000) ("000)
(B7m) (B7) (Bx) (%) (%) (F) (%) (f)
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
BESRERTHAR
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 19/06/1999 0.335 19/06/1999- 0.41 2175 2,700 - (2,700) - -
fEHTE 30/11/2006
Mr. Tam Wing Hung 20/09/2000 0.300 21/09/2003- 0.35 2.7 520 - (200) - 320
RKERE 30/11/2006
(i) Employees 20/09/2000 0.300 20/09/2000- 0.35 - 150 - - - 150
8T 30/11/2006
20/09/2000 0.300 21/09/2001- 0.35 - 150 - - - 150
30/11/2006
20/09/2000 0.300 21/09/2002- 0.35 - 200 - - - 200
30/11/2006
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued) BRESE (2
The Old Scheme (Continued) B8 (&)
(ix)  Details of share option movements during the period (ix) HBEEFEN_ZEZTAFNHWA—HZE
between 1 April 2005 to 15 June 2005 under the NATHBIEZ B ESEFIE W
Old Scheme are as follows: Nk
Number of Share Options
BREYE
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised cancelled
Closing during the  during the  during the
Price  Price at period from  period from  period from
before  exercise  Outstanding 1 April 2005 1 April 2005 1 April 2005 Outstanding
Date of Exercise Exercise dateof dateof  at31March  to15June  to 15June to 15 June  at 15 June
Name Grant Price Period grant  options 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005
#% BHAY EE TES  RERE RERE “EERF WCOEBRE R-ZBRE R-EERE -BEEF

RiAE %8 ZA=t-B WMA-BE WA-HE MBA-BE AATEH
2Bk 2B# WATE AATEE AATER  ARBTER  HAAE

ERT T &%/
(HKS) (HKS) ~ (HKS) (000) (000) (000) (000) (1000)
(27) ()  (BR) () (F) (F) (F) ()
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
ESRBRTRAR
Mr. Tam Wing Hung 2000972000 0.300  21/09/2003- 0.35 - 320 - - - 320
FokERE 30/11/2006
(i) Employees 20/09/2000 0300 20/09/2000- 0.35 - 150 - - - 150
ET 30/11/2006
20/09/2000 0300 21/09/2001- 0.35 - 150 - - - 150
30/11/2006
20/09/2000 0300 21/09/2002- 0.35 - 200 - - - 200
30/11/2006
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued)

The New Scheme

The New Scheme was adopted on 21 May 2002 to comply

with the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) effected on 1

September 2001. The key terms of the New Scheme are

summarised herein below:

(i)

(iii)

/8

The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to eligible participants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any Invested Entity
(as defined in the New Scheme);

The participants of the New Scheme include any
employee, director (including executive and non-
executive director of the Group), shareholder,
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, other service
provider, partner and business or strategic alliance
partner of the Group or any Invested Entity (as
defined in the New Scheme) or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects may be any of the
above persons;

The total number of shares available for issue under
the New Scheme is 40,776,600 which represents
9.98% of the existing issued share capital of the
Company at the date of this report;

Karrie International Holdings Limited

BRESE (&)
et &

g RN —EE_FRA-T—BEH
AT —FhLA—BERZ(EBH
ARGIARARFESFLEMHRAD (K™
MADD B+EEZFHRE - FMetElzE2
BRBEELNT :

(i) HFABEESZBDARBAERDEE
HAEBELER M/ BB AEE
BEkGEEBRZEE  ARRAY
AEEEEAREHR (RGhErED
ER)BEEZIAT

(i EFHABYEIGREBETHTE
228N BRASEIEMKREY
KRERGIEED ER) AWM FR2HERT
EXm A EMeRER2EMNRE
SEF (BRAKE AT RIFAT
5% ERR f#E®m - EF R
M~ A EMRGHEER - T
RECEEH  EHNRBUEBES
BANARBARRB 2D

(i)  FRFETEI TR BRI ET Y
I 48 81 5 40,776,6000% » 8 R AR
HEAMARARTERTRAZ
9.98% :



Report of the Directors Ex&#H&

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued)

The New Scheme (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company at the date of adoption of the New
Scheme and thereafter, if refreshed shall not exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshed
shareholders. The number of shares which may be

limit by the Company’s

issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time;

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting,
no participants shall be granted an option if the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to such participant in any 12-month period up to
the date of the latest grant would exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. Options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in issue for
the time being and with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders;

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the New Scheme at any time during a
period to be notified by the Board to each grantee.
Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its
sole discretion, there is no requirement of a
minimum period for which an option must be held
or a performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised;
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(iv)

(vi)
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued)

The New Scheme (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

30

A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is required
to be paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the
option;

The subscription price payable upon exercising any
particular option granted under the New Scheme is
determined based on a formula: P = N x Ep, where
“P" is the subscription price; “N" is the number of
shares to be subscribed; and “Ep” is the exercise
price of the highest of (a) the nominal value of a
share in the Company on the date of grant; (b) the
closing price of shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange, as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of grant; and (c) the
average of the closing prices of shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant and
as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the New
Scheme; and

The life of the New Scheme is until the tenth
anniversary of the adoption date of the New Scheme.

Karrie International Holdings Limited
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(vii)
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued) BRERE (®)

The New Scheme (Continued) g (&)

(x) Details of share option movements during the year (x) BRIEFTEREEZ _ETERAF=A=
ended 31 March 2005 under the New Scheme are +—HLEFECEREZEEHFBED
as follows: T

Number of Share Options

BREHA

Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
before exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of date of at31March during  during during at 31 March

Name Grant Price Period grant options 2004 the year the year the year 2005
He RHAH  ARE TER RBRE NBRE -—3INE RFEE REAEE RNAEE -BTIRE
RABA fifB ZA=+-B EBRT T &M/BE =ZA=1+-R
ZBH® ZB#  HERGR i RATE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000)  ('000) ("000) (000) ("000)
(%) (B7) (B7) (F) (f) (f) (F) (F)
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
EERBBITMAR
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2007- 3325 - - 280 - - 280
G 06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2008- 3325 - - 560 - - 560
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2009- 3325 - - 560 - - 560
06/02/2015
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis ~ 22/05/2002 130 22/05/2003- 130 2.125 200 - (200) - -
BRERE 21/05/2012 (AVGT 1)
01/11/2002 1.65 01/01/2003- 1.65 - 750 - - - 750
3171072012
01/11/2002 1.65 01/01/2004- 1.65 - 750 - - - 750
3171072012
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2005- 1.86 - - 160 - - 160
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2006- 1.86 - - 320 - - 320
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2007- 1.86 - - 320 - - 320
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2007- 3325 - - 200 - - 200
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2008- 3325 - - 400 - - 400
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2009- 3325 - - 400 - - 400
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued) BRERE (®)
The New Scheme (Continued) ¥t 8l (&)
(x)  (Continued) (x) (#)

Number of Share Options

BREHA

Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
before exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of date of at31March during  during during at 31 March

Name Grant Price Period grant options 2004 the year the year  the year 2005
i REBH  RE e RERE RERE -ZEO0F WRAEE RAFE RAFE Z-Z21f
Rt A A 18 ZE=+-B EBT T %%/ =A=1-8
2R 2B®  HROE i R AT
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000)  ("000) ("000) ("000) ("000)
(&%) (&%) (E7) ® @ (F)
Mr. Tam Wing Hung 22/05/2002 1.30  22/05/2002- 1.30 - 100 - - - 100
HokERE 21/05/2012
Mr. Lee Shu Ki 22/05/2002 1.30  22/05/2003- 1.30 23 100 - (100) - -
FRELE 21/05/2012
01/11/2002 1.65 01/01/2003- 1.65 - 200 - - - 200
31/10/2012
01/11/2002 1.65 01/01/2004- 1.65 - 300 - - - 300
31/10/2012
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2005- 1.86 - - 80 - - 80
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2006- 1.86 - - 160 - - 160
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2007- 1.86 - - 160 - - 160
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2007- 3.325 - - 200 - - 200
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2008- 3.325 - - 400 - - 400
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2009- 3.325 - - 400 - - 400
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued) BRERE (®)
The New Scheme (Continued) ¥t 8l (&)
(x)  (Continued) (x) (#)

Number of Share Options

BREHA

Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
before exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of date of at31March during  during during at 31 March

Name Grant Price Period grant options 2004 the year the year  the year 2005
i REBH  RE e RERE RERE -ZEO0F WRAEE RAFE RAFE Z-Z21f
Rt A A 18 ZE=+-B EBT T %%/ =A=1-8
2R 2B®  HROE i R AT
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000)  ("000) ("000) ("000) ("000)
(&%) (&%) (E7) ® @ (F)
Mr. Wong Shun Pang 22/05/2002 1.30  22/05/2003- 1.30 1.78 200 - (200) - -
B 21/05/2012
01/11/2002 1.65 01/01/2003- 1.65 3.25 200 - (100) - 100
31/10/2012
01/11/2002 1.65 01/01/2004- 1.65 - 200 - - - 200
31/10/2012
01/12/2003 2.475 01/08/2005- 2.425 - 100 - - - 100
30/11/2013
01/12/2003 2.475 01/01/2006- 2.425 - 200 - - - 200
30/11/2013
01/12/2003 2.475 01/01/2007- 2.425 - 200 - - - 200
30/11/2013
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2005- 1.86 - - 160 - - 160
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2006- 1.86 - - 120 - - 120
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2007- 1.86 - - 120 - - 120
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2007- 3.325 - - 200 - - 200
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2008- 3.325 - - 400 - - 400
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2009- 3.325 - - 400 - - 400
06/02/2015
Ms. Ho Po Chu 07/02/2005 3.35 01/07/2005- 3.325 - - 800 - - 800
ERLL 06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued) BRERE (®)
The New Scheme (Continued) ¥t 8l (&)
(x)  (Continued) (x) (#)

Number of Share Options

BREHA

Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
before exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of date of at31March during  during during at 31 March

Name Grant Price Period grant options 2004 the year the year the year 2005
He RHuR®  HE TEE RERE RERE -2IRF REEE RAEE REAEE Z%21%
REBA ik ZA=+-8B ERT i X¥/BH =B=t-H
ZEH# ZBR  HERGR CEi:d
(HKS) (HK$) (HKS) ('000) ("000) ("000) ("000) ('000)
(B7) (B 7) (B7) (f) (f) (f) (f) (f)
(i) Other Eligible Participants
HhaER2EE
Employees 22/05/2002 130 22/05/2002- 1.30 2.331 320 - (120 - 200
BT 21/05/2012 (AVGT 1)
22/05/2002 130 22/05/2003- 130 1.977 400 - (300) - 100
21/05/2012 (AVGT 1)
01/11/2002 1.65 01/01/2003- 1.65 2.712 1,890 - (670) (150) 1,070
31/10/2012 (AVGT 1)
01/11/2002 1.65 01/01/2004- 1.65 2.7 3,550 - (1,320 (150) 2,080
31/10/2012 (AVGF 1)
01/12/2003 2.475 01/08/2005- 2425 - 2,408 - - (126) 2,282
3071172013
01/12/2003 2.475 01/01/2006- 2.425 - 4,806 - - (252) 4,554
30/1172013
01/12/2003 2.475 01/01/2007- 2.425 - 4,776 - - (252) 4,524
30/11/2013
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2005- 1.86 3.16 - 2548 (1,100) (96) 1,352
26/04/2014 (AVGT 1)
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2006- 1.86 - - 510 - - 510
26/04/2014
2710412004 1.90 01/01/2007- 1.86 - - 280 - - 280
26/04/2014
01/02/2005 3.15 01/01/2006- 3.15 - - 1,090 - - 1,090
310172015
01/02/2005 3.15 01/01/2007- 3.15 - - 2,180 - - 2,180
31/0172015
01/02/2005 3.15 01/01/2008- 3.15 - - 2,180 - - 2,180
31/01/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/07/2005- 3325 - - 1,800 - - 1,800
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2007- 3.325 - - 880 - - 880
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2008- 3.325 - - 1,760 - - 1,760
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35 01/01/2009- 3325 - - 1,760 - - 1,760
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued) BEREE B
The New Scheme (Continued) g (&)
(xi)  Details of share option movements during the period xi) BEHAENR_ZZTAFNHA—HZ
between 1 April 2005 to 15 June 2005 under the NATHBIEZ B ESEFIE W
New Scheme are as follows: T
Number of Share Options
BEREZE

Lapsed/
Granted Exercised cancelled
during the  during the  during the

Price at period from  period from  period from
Closing Price  exercise ~ Outstanding 1 April 2005 1 April 2005 1 April 2005 Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise before date  date of ~ at31March  to15June  to15June  to15June at 15 June
Name Grant Price Period  of grant  options 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005
i RHAE TEE ES RERE RERE  -221F R-Z2RF W-221F R-OZTRE -221F

RiAE %8 ZA=t-B WMA-BE WA-HE MBA-BE AATEH
2Bk 2B# MAT® AAETER AATER  ARBTER  HAGE

ERT i &M/BH
(HKS$) (HKS) (HKS) (1000 ('000) ('000) ('000) (1000)
(BT) (Bx)  (Bx) (%) (F) (F) (F) (F)
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
EERBR1RAR
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 07/02/2005 335 01/01/2007- 3.325 - 280 - - - 280
EELV 06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2008- 3.325 - 560 - - - 560
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2009- 3.325 - 560 - - - 560
06/02/2015
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis 01/11/2002 165 01/01/2003- 165 - 750 - - - 750
PERE 3171012012
01/11/2002 1.65  01/01/2004- 1,65 - 750 - - - 750
31/10/2012
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2005- 186 - 160 - - - 160
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2006- 186 - 320 - - - 320
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2007- 186 - 320 - - - 320
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2007- 3.325 - 200 - - - 200
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2008- 3.325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2009- 3.325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued) BRESE &)
The New Scheme (Continued) ¥t 8l (&)
(xi)  (Continued) (xi) (&)
Number of Share Options
BREYE
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised cancelled
during the  during the  during the
Price at period from  period from  period from
Closing Price  exercise ~ Outstanding 1 April 2005 1 April 2005 1 April 2005 Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise before date  dateof  at31March  to15June  to 15 June to 15 June  at 15 June
Name Grant Price Period  of grant  options 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005
tE REBH fTRE e RERE RERE  -2T1F W-F3DF W-ZRIF W-E3DF -2EIF
BAAAE ¥R =A=t-H MWMA-AE MA-HE WA-HZ R~ATEAH
2BR 2R MATE AETER AATER  AATER  HAGE
ERT 8 &%/BE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(7) (8x)  (B%) (F) (f) (f) (f) (F)
Mr. Tam Wing Hung 22/05/2002 130 22/05/2002- 130 - 100 - - - 100
KL 21/05/2012
Mr. Lee Shu Ki 01/11/2002 1.65 01/01/2003- 1.65 - 200 - - - 200
THEESE 3111012012
01/11/2002 1.65 01/01/2004- 1.65 - 300 - - - 300
31/10/2012
27/04/2004 1.90  01/01/2005- 1.86 - 80 - - - 80
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2006- 1.86 - 160 - - - 160
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2007- 1.86 - 160 - - - 160
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2007- 3.325 - 200 - - - 200
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2008- 3.325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2009- 3.325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued) BRESE &)
The New Scheme (Continued) ¥t 8l (&)
(xi)  (Continued) (xi) (&)
Number of Share Options
BREYE
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised cancelled
during the  during the  during the
Price at period from  period from  period from
Closing Price  exercise ~ Outstanding 1 April 2005 1 April 2005 1 April 2005 Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise before date  dateof  at31March  to15June  to 15 June to 15 June  at 15 June
Name Grant Price Period  of grant  options 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005
tE REBH fTRE e RERE RERE  -2T1F W-F3DF W-ZRIF W-E3DF -2EIF
BAAAE ¥R =A=t-H MWMA-AE MA-HE WA-HZ R~ATEAH
2BR 2R MATE AETER AATER  AATER  HAGE
ERT 8 &%/BE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(7) (8x)  (B%) (F) (f) (f) (f) (F)
Mr. Wong Shun Pang 01/11/2002 1.65 01/01/2003- 1.65 - 100 - - - 100
EL bt 3111012012
01/11/2002 1.65  01/01/2004- 1.65 - 200 - - - 200
31/10/2012
01/12/2003 2.475  01/08/2005- 2.425 - 100 - - - 100
30/11/2013
01/12/2003 2.475  01/01/2006- 2.425 - 200 - - - 200
30/11/2013
01/12/2003 2.475  01/01/2007- 2.425 - 200 - - - 200
30/11/2013
27/04/2004 1.90  01/01/2005- 1.86 - 160 - - - 160
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90  01/01/2006- 1.86 - 120 - - - 120
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90 01/01/2007- 1.86 - 120 - - - 120
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2007- 3.325 - 200 - - - 200
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2008- 3.325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2009- 3.325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
Ms. Ho Po Chu 07/02/2005 3.35  01/07/2005- 3.325 - 800 - - - 800
AERRL 06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued) BRESE (2
The New Scheme (Continued) et &l (&)
(xi)  (Continued) (xi) (&)
Number of Share Options
BREHE
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised cancelled
during the  during the  during the
Price at period from  period from  period from
Closing Price  exercise ~ Outstanding 1 April 2005 1 April 2005 1 April 2005 Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise before date  date of ~ at31March  to15June  to15June  to15June at 15 June
Name Grant Price Period  of grant  options 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005
i REBH fRE s RERE RBRE —33If R-22IEF R-RTIE MN-TBRE BRI

RWAE %8 ZA=t-B MA-BE WA-HE MBA-BE AATEH
LB 2k WAT® AATER AATER  ABTER  HAGE

ERT e &%/
(HK9) (HK$) (HKS) (1000) (1000) ('000) ('000) (1000)
(B7) (Bx)  (Bx) () (F) (F) (F) ()
(ii) - Other Eligible Participants
EAaEHSESE
Employees 22/05/2002 130 22/05/2002- 130 3.25 200 - (100) - 100
=h 21/05/2012
22/05/2002 130 22/05/2003- 130 3.25 100 - (100) - -
21/05/2012
01/11/2002 165 01/01/2003- 1,65 3.55 1,070 - (150) - 920
31/10/2012
01/11/2002 1,65 01/01/2004- 1.65 3.485 2,080 - (500) - 1,580
31/10/2012 (AVGEH)
01/12/2003  2.475  01/08/2005- 2425 - 2,282 - - - 2,282
30/11/2013
01/12/2003 2475 01/01/2006- 2.425 - 4,554 - - - 4,554
30/11/2013
01/12/2003 2475 01/01/2007- 2425 - 4524 - - - 4,524
30/11/2013
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2005- 1.86 3.01 1352 - (148) - 1,204
26/04/2014 (AVGEH)
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2006- 1.86 - 510 - - - 510
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2007- 1.86 - 280 - - - 280
26/04/2014
01/02/2005 315 01/01/2006- 3.15 - 1,090 - - (20) 1,070
31/01/2015
01/02/2005 315 01/01/2007- 3.15 - 2,180 - - (40) 2,140
31/01/2015
01/02/2005 315 01/01/2008- 3.15 - 2,180 - - (40) 2,140
31/01/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/07/2005- 3325 - 1,800 - - - 1,800
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2007- 3325 - 880 - - - 880
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2008- 3.325 - 1,760 - - - 1,760
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2009- 3325 - 1,760 - - - 1,760
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued)
The New Scheme (Continued)

A professional actuarial firm has been invited to perform
an estimation of the expenses for the share option schemes.

According to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
2 ("HKFRS2") to be adopted in the following financial
year, the cost of share-based transactions should be
recognised as an expense over the period from the date of
grant until they are exercisable by the receiver of such
payment. Were this standard to be adopted in this report,
the expense required to be reported for share options
granted on or before 31 March 2005 would be estimated

Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥

BRESE (&)
& (@)

—HEEHERATNERFEARRZBEK
RErEEA -

RIBHKFRS2E R T — B B BUF & 1 F
mo EBRENKEEBENAFEEERER
MEDHRNEN  BHIOAEBEERA
IR o BEREEREFE R AFEHMHKFRS2
BN _ZEZRF A=+ —H=E UMK
HHEREMEENBRR X HEFEHND
™~

as follows:
Financial Year
BHEE
2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 Total
2t
RAaA
P&L expenses (HK$'000) 768 4,718 5,896 1,162 318 - 15,655
BaBExd (FEL) (Note 1)
(B EE1)
Note: Kt
1. No charge is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss 1. RAFENERE B A BRI IRERE

account in respect of the cost of share-based transactions
during the year.

There are several relevant measures that may be considered
to assess the financial impact of the share option schemes,
including the expense of share-based transactions under
generally accepted financial reporting standards (e.g.,
HKFRS2). The expense of the share-based transactions
attributes the expense of share-based transaction over the
period from the original transaction date (i.e., grant date)
to the date when the recipient’s entitlement to the payment
has been fully realized (i.e., vested).

BERH -

R EEETE A AT AEERIEFGE
REFEEHTHERENTE  BEREE
BN A ) B 75 5 AR 4E (AAHKFRS2) T A
BROZHORSGHEBIL - ZRUKRHD
IR SGHERAT LSRN BEERH
WEITREREEN) #H -
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Continued)

In assessing the expense of share-based transactions under
HKFRS2 requirement, the Binomial option pricing model
(the “Binomial Model”) has been used. The Binomial Model
is one of the most generally accepted methods used to
calculate the value of options and expense of share-based
transactions.

The parameters of the Binomial Model include the expected
life of the options, the risk-free interest rate, expected
future share price volatility and future dividend rates of
the shares of the Company, if any. The expected life of
the option reflects both the term to expiry and factors
that may cause the option to be exercised prior to expiry.
The risk-free interest rate makes reference to the yield
rates of the Hong Kong Government Exchange Bills/Notes.
Expected future share price volatility and dividend rates
reflect both analysis of historical experience and future
expectation.

It should be noted that the expense of share-based
transactions under HKFRS2 calculated using the Binomial
Model is based on various assumptions and is only a
preliminary estimate of the cost of share-based transactions
of share options granted on or before 31 March 2005 for
reference only. The Directors considered that the Company
will perform a detail estimation when HKFRS2 is required
to be adopted in next financial year and estimate the
expense required to be reported in the consolidated profit
and loss account for the share options granted.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
P.171 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in Note 13 to the Accounts.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Particulars of bank loans and overdrafts of the Group as
at 31 March 2005 are set out in Notes 18 and 21 to the
Accounts.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming
(Deputy Chairman & Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Tam Wing Hung
Mr. Lee Shu Ki
Mr. Wong Shun Pang (Appointed on 1 June 2004)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. So Wai Chun

Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing (Appointed on 7 December 2004)
Mr. Leung Wai Ho (Resigned on 19 January 2005)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for specific terms and hold office until 30 June 2005, 4
February 2006 and 6 December 2005 respectively, subject
to extension.

In accordance with Bye-Law 86(2), Mr. Fong Hoi Shing will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-Law 87 of the Company, Messrs.
Kwok Wing Kin, Francis and Chan Sui Sum, Raymond will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which any of the Group
companies was a party and in which a Director was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Upon the expiry of the previous lease agreement on 17
November 2003, a new lease agreement dated 14
November 2003 was entered into between Kings Lion
Development Limited (“Kings Lion”) as landlord and Karrie
Industrial Company Limited (“Karrie Industrial”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant for the lease
of a portion (being 26,573 square feet in gross floor area)
of 9th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building, 611-619 Castle
Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories together with two
car parking spaces in the same building at a monthly rental
of HK$106,292 (that is, at approximately HK$4 per square
foot) for a term of two years commencing on 18 November
2003.

Kings Lion is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the reason that Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, a Director of the Company, together with
his wife, control 100% of the voting power in general
meetings and also control the board of Kings Lion. The
transaction therefore constitutes a continuing connected
transaction under rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules. Details
of the transaction are set out in the announcement dated
14 November 2003 issued to the shareholders of the
Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed
the transaction and confirmed that the transaction has
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual
course of its business and on normal commercial terms
which are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders
of the Company are concerned.
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EENBETBRAEZRO#ER
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2005 R-ZFBEFERF=HAH=4+—H

The interests of the Directors and chief executive in the AABZEERERTBRABEARRT (K
shares and the underlying shares of the Company and any Hm LB (BxR(BHFLBAEKRAD
associated corporations (as defined in the Securities and (IR & B 1) B An S B BE IR 0 #E B I
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register BEELRARNBILELFIEHEIS2EMFE
maintained under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to ZERMAE R - RB(ETARE
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the BETEFXHGNRETADE NG RQA]
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of REZPFT 2w T -

Listed Companies are as follows:

(A) Interests in the Company (F) RAERQTF 2R

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
EREMEII0BTZEEREE

Corporate/ % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share
interests interests interests interests capital
EEEER BR
PN RERED Hiti g artER BAL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai BESY:Fi:d 5,158,000 209,650,000 172,200,000 214,808,000 52.68
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Hf s —) (it 3E =)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming MEREE 8,100,000 - 172,200,000 180,300,000 44.22
(Note 2)
(MrsE=)
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis %7k B % & 4,100,000 - - 4,100,000 1.01
(Note 3)
(FrEE=)
Mr. Tam Wing Hung oK 5T 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000 0.27
(Note 4)
(P 5 7m)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FHEAE 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000 0.81
(Note 5)
(P 3E )
Mr. Wong Shun Pang EIEMS 5 & 2,710,000 - - 2,710,000 0.66
(Note 6)
GERY
Ms. Ho Po Chu MERL L 37,450,000 177,358,000 172,200,000 214,808,000 52.68
(Note 7) (Note 7) (Note 2)

(F&Et) (&) (=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

(A) Interests in the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested in (a)
37,450,000 shares held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po
Chu, as beneficial owner and (b) 172,200,000 shares
in which his children under 18 are interested. Such
172,200,000 shares in which his children under 18
are interested are duplicated with his interests as a
founder of the HCF trust in the same block of shares
referred to in Note 2 below.

172,200,000 shares are held by Pearl Court Company
Limited (“Pearl Court”) as trustee for a unit trust
known as Ho Cheuk Fai Family Trust (“HCF Trust”).
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested in these
172,200,000 shares as founder of the HCF Trust. Ms.
Ho Po Chu is interested in these 172,200,000 shares
by virtue of the fact that (a) she controls or exercises
the control of one-third or more of the voting power
at general meetings of Pearl Court; (b) she holds one
unit in the HCF Trust; and (c) she is one of the
discretionary objects of a discretionary trust known
as Ho Wai Leung Memorial Trust (“HWL Trust”), the
trust property of which comprises 9,999 units in the
HCF Trust and in which Ms. Ho Po Chu, Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s children under 18 are
the discretionary objects. These 9,999 units of HCF
Trust are held by HSBC International Trustee Limited
("HITL") as trustee for HWL Trust. Therefore, the
interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, their
children under 18 and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the
172,200,000 shares are duplicated with each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis
comprise 800,000 ordinary shares and 3,300,000
outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Tam Wing Hung
comprise 680,000 ordinary shares and 420,000
outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Lee Shu Ki comprise
1,400,000 ordinary shares and 1,900,000 outstanding
share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Wong Shun Pang
comprise 510,000 ordinary shares and 2,200,000
outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
36,650,000 ordinary shares and 800,000 outstanding
share options. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be
interested in (a) 5,158,000 shares held by her spouse,
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, as beneficial owner and (b)
172,200,000 shares in which her children under 18
are interested. Such 172,200,000 shares in which her
children under 18 are interested are duplicated with
her interests in the same block of shares referred to
in Note 2 above.
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BITRABZ RO ()

() REQTF z#Em: (4)

AIEEEEER AR EQERBMNE
RZtEEEBEZBREAFTEZ
37,450,0008% B 7 ¢ K (b)E KM 185%
B F 2 ¥ 172,200,000 f% 19 2
% ° %5 172,200,000 B 1) = #E 25
W48 B (o] 42 48 5% A VB A HCF TrustAd A
A (AP R Z ATt ) R H R w185 A
FrzHEMESZR— % -

172,200,000/% % 13 & Pearl Court
Company Limited ([Pearl Court]) M
Ho Cheuk Fai Family Trust ([HCF
Trust]) 2B EFEZEZTEARE o [
12 18 % A VB B HCF TrustZ BXSZ A @ 18
B AEFEZE172,200,0000 & 1H 2 #&
wmeoMBERLATIHREARBEEZS
172,200,000 f& 5 2 #E % + B A(a)ith
7 Pearl Courtf% 5 A & 12 #il gk 17 (& 12
Fl=9 2 —skA EIRE# : (b)iniFHE
HCF Trustf) — @ &7 : R(QiER—
&l % AHo Wai Leung Memorial Trust
(THWL Trust]) Y IE 15 sE BB S 5T 5
KR ZEIE{EFERFAHCF Trustz 9,999
B ARBEREEHRBMNERLX
T  WEBREERAIEBEERBIS
PRH)FRAEK o 72%9,999 HCF Trust
2 B AL HSBC International Trustee
Limited ([HITL]) EAHWL Trustfy % 5E
AFEE o Bt - %% 172,200,0008% %
MR HREAMNERELE - (HE
PRZx+ I H O % RO 18R B F 22 KA
FREACZEEBZR M

205k B2 % A 7 {8 A # %5 F3 800,000 4% ZX
AT R 53,300,000 KITE
ZEERIEHEK -

oK % H 7 B B %5 F 680,000% 2K
A E)E AR 2 420,000 K 1TE 2
B AR i AR K o

Z R S A 2 Bl A B %5 E5 1,400,0008%
RN E A & 1,900,000 & 4T
72 IR EARRL -

=S % £ 2 B A # % F510,00088
N B RS RS 1 22,200,000 K 17{E
2R o

o] 2 ¥k 22 4= 2 {8 A 4 % /3 36,650,000
A& A 2 B) 3 i A% B 15 12 800,000 K 1T
FRBREER  WERXZTHERA
BHEQHEEBMNEBLEERERH
B AEE 25,158,000 B8 ¢ F(b)EH
oM 185R A F 2 ¥ 172,200,0008% A%
Dz HEZE > %5 172,200,0000% /5% 15 =
B WRANBERLZ LT (WA
) RERMISEM TR ZEES 2R

— s -
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S BEENEBRSTHAEZRDERS &)
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)
(B) Interests and short positions in associated (Z) REBEZEZEZRKXE

corporations

(i) Karrie Industrial Company Limited (i) S FEmBRA A

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE10ET 2 ERREELERDEE

Corporate/ % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share
interests interests interests interests capital
(Note)
rEEER
BAES RERED Hiti g B itlEE BRES K
(B E)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai  falig#8% & 43,000 - - 43,000 86%
Ms. Ho Po Chu MEKRZ LT 7,000 - - 7,000 14%
Note: The entire issued share capital comprises 50,000 non- BitaE : B E1THD B50,0000% &M% FE(E 1008 T 2 £
voting deferred shares of HK$100 each and 10 KRERRERMD R I10REREEI100E T E
ordinary shares of HK$100 each. AR MR 1 A B e
(i) Karpo Technologies Limited (i) ZEFEER A

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREEIETZERERELRGHE

Corporate/ % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share
interests interests interests interests capital
(Note)
rEERS
BAES XERSR Hit s AR BRESW
(&)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai  fi/2#8% £ 9,999 - - 9,999 99.89%
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming {28 % & - - 1 1 0.01%
Note: The entire issued share capital comprises 10,000 non- BitaE : BETTI B10,0000% &M E(E 10048 T 2 £
voting deferred shares of HK$100 each and 10 KRERBEERD R I0REREEI100E T E
ordinary shares of HK$100 each. AR MR 1 A B e
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S BEENEBRSTHAEZRDERS &)
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)
(B) Interests and short positions in associated () REBLIE2EZERKXR (&)

corporations (Continued)

(iii)  Karrie Industrial Holdings Limited (iii)  Karrie Industrial Holdings Limited

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each

BEREEIAETZERFRELROHE

Corporate/ % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share
interests interests interests interests capital
(Note)

TERERY
BAES RERER Hih & iR BREM K
CiE3)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai  fallg %4 1 - - 1 8.33%
Ms. Ho Po Chu MERRZ L 1 - - 1 8.33%
Note: The entire issued share capital comprises 2 non-voting Wit - BETRGOB2BEREEVETZERZRE
deferred shares of HK$1 each and 10 ordinary shares R RO EREEIAS T2 T BRKRG, 48

of HK$1 each. B o

Save as disclosed above and under the heading “Share br EX KRR THEAR T8 R AT BN

Option Schemes”, none of the Directors, chief executives BEEFE EeaTBRABRHBEBAZRZ
or their associates have any personal, family, corporate or TERF= A=+ —HEARRAHHEHE
other interests and short positions in the shares and the EE (B R(GEHFGOD) ikin ki8R Gk
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated RESAETEAEA KB - ABEHME
corporations as defined in the SFO as at 31 March 2005. mIORA ©
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EENRBETHRABZKROERS #)
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

As at 15 June 2005 R_BEZFRFANHTHHA

The interests of the Directors and chief executive in the AABZEERERTBRABEARRT (K
shares and the underlying shares of the Company and any Hm LB (BxR(BHFLBAEKRAD
associated corporations (as defined in the Securities and ([CE GBI ) B S AE R ARt 2 %A I
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register BEELRARNBILELFIEHEIS2EMFE
maintained under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to ZERMAE R - RB(ETARE
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the BETEFXHGNRETADE NG RQA]
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of REZPFT 2w T -

Listed Companies are as follows:

(A) Interests in the Company (F) RAERQTF 2R

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
EREMEII0BTZEEREE

Corporate/ % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share
interests interests interests interests capital
EEEER BR
AR RERED Hiti g artER BOk
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai A s 48 5 4 5,752,000 209,650,000 172,200,000 215,402,000 52.70
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Hf s —) (M&=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming MEREE 8,100,000 - 172,200,000 180,300,000 4411
(Note 2)
(fit 3 =)
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis %7k B % & 4,100,000 - - 4,100,000 1.00
(Note 3)
(FrEE=)
Mr. Tam Wing Hung oK 5T 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000 0.27
(Note 4)
(P 3 Pm)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FHEAE 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000 0.81
(Note 5)
(P 3E )
Mr. Wong Shun Pang B i 2,710,000 - - 2,710,000 0.66
(Note 6)
(F3E7%)
Ms. Ho Po Chu MEBERZ L 37,450,000 177,952,000 172,200,000 215,402,000 52.70
(Note 7) (Note 7) (Note 2)

(F&Et) (&) (=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

(A) Interests in the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested in (a)
37,450,000 shares held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po
Chu, as beneficial owner and (b) 172,200,000 shares
in which his children under 18 are interested. Such
172,200,000 shares in which his children under 18
are interested are duplicated with his interests as a
founder of the HCF trust in the same block of shares
referred to in Note 2 below.

172,200,000 shares are held by Pearl Court Company
Limited (“Pearl Court”) as trustee for a unit trust
known as Ho Cheuk Fai Family Trust (“HCF Trust”).
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested in these
172,200,000 shares as founder of the HCF Trust. Ms.
Ho Po Chu is interested in these 172,200,000 shares
by virtue of the fact that (a) she controls or exercises
the control of one-third or more of the voting power
at general meetings of Pearl Court; (b) she holds one
unit in the HCF Trust; and (c) she is one of the
discretionary objects of a discretionary trust known
as Ho Wai Leung Memorial Trust (“HWL Trust”), the
trust property of which comprises 9,999 units in the
HCF Trust and in which Ms. Ho Po Chu, Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s children under 18 are
the discretionary objects. These 9,999 units of HCF
Trust are held by HSBC International Trustee Limited
("HITL") as trustee for HWL Trust. Therefore, the
interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, their
children under 18 and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the
172,200,000 shares are duplicated with each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis
comprise 800,000 ordinary shares and 3,300,000
outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Tam Wing Hung
comprise 680,000 ordinary shares and 420,000
outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Lee Shu Ki comprise
1,400,000 ordinary shares and 1,900,000 outstanding
share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Wong Shun Pang
comprise 510,000 ordinary shares and 2,200,000
outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
36,650,000 ordinary shares and 800,000 outstanding
share options. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be
interested in (a) 5,752,000 shares held by her spouse,
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, as beneficial owner and (b)
172,200,000 shares in which her children under 18
are interested. Such 172,200,000 shares in which her
children under 18 are interested are duplicated with
her interests in the same block of shares referred to
in Note 2 above.
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() REQTF z#Em: (4)

AIEEEEER AR EQERBMNE
RZtEEEBEZBREAFTEZ
37,450,0008% B 7 ¢ K (b)E KM 185%
B F 2 ¥ 172,200,000 f% 19 2
% ° %5 172,200,000 B 1) = #E 25
W48 B (o] 42 48 5% A VB A HCF TrustAd A
A (AP R Z ATt ) R H R w185 A
FrzHEMESZR— % -

172,200,000/% % 13 & Pearl Court
Company Limited ([Pearl Court]) M
Ho Cheuk Fai Family Trust ([HCF
Trust]) 2B EFEZEZTEARE o [
12 18 % A VB B HCF TrustZ BXSZ A @ 18
B AEFEZE172,200,0000 & 1H 2 #&
wmeoMBERLATIHREARBEEZS
172,200,000 f& 5 2 #E % + B A(a)ith
7 Pearl Courtf% 5 A & 12 #il gk 17 (& 12
Fl=9 2 —skA EIRE# : (b)iniFHE
HCF Trustf) — @ &7 : R(QiER—
&l % AHo Wai Leung Memorial Trust
(THWL Trust]) Y IE 15 sE BB S 5T 5
KR ZEIE{EFERFAHCF Trustz 9,999
B ARBEREEHRBMNERLX
T  WEBREERAIEBEERBIS
PRH)FRAEK o 72%9,999 HCF Trust
2 B AL HSBC International Trustee
Limited ([HITL]) EAHWL Trustfy % 5E
AFEE o Bt - %% 172,200,0008% %
MR HREAMNERELE - (HE
PRZx+ I H O % RO 18R B F 22 KA
FREACZEEBZR M

205k B2 % A 7 {8 A # %5 F3 800,000 4% ZX
AT R 53,300,000 KITE
ZEERIEHEK -

oK % H 7 B B %5 F 680,000% 2K
A E)E AR 2 420,000 K 1TE 2
B AR i AR K o

Z R S A 2 Bl A B %5 E5 1,400,0008%
RN E A & 1,900,000 & 4T
72 IR EARRL -

=S % £ 2 B A # % F510,00088
N B RS RS 1 22,200,000 K 17{E
2R o

o] 2 ¥k 22 4= 2 {8 A 4 % /3 36,650,000
A& A 2 B) 3 i A% B 15 12 800,000 K 1T
FRBREER  WERXZTHERA
BHEQHEEBMNEBLEERERH
BAEE 25,752,000 081 ¢ F(b)EH
oM 185R A F 2 ¥ 172,200,0008% A%
Dz HEZE > %5 172,200,0000% /5% 15 =
B WRANBERLZ LT (WA
) RERMISEM TR ZEES 2R
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S BEENEBRSTHAEZRDERS &)
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)
(B) Interests and short positions in associated (Z) REBEZEZEZRKXE

corporations

(i) Karrie Industrial Company Limited (i) S FEmBRA A

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE10ET 2 ERREELERDEE

Corporate/ % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share
interests interests interests interests capital
(Note)
EEEER
(5PN £ RERED Hiti s AR BRESWL
(Bt &)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai  fal/g 8% 4 43,000 - - 43,000 86%
Ms. Ho Po Chu MEBERRZ T 7,000 - - 7,000 14%
Note: The entire issued share capital comprises 50,000 non- BitaE : B E1TH B550,0000% &M% E(E 10048 T 2 £
voting deferred shares of HK$100 each and 10 WEREIER D R 10 SR EE 1008 T2 T
ordinary shares of HK$100 each. AR MR 1 A B e
(i) Karpo Technologies Limited (i) ZEPEBARRA]

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE10ETZERTEEERDAE

Corporate/ % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share
interests interests interests interests capital
(Note)
EEREER
PN 37 REER Hith i &5 aitlEE BRES K
(Bt &)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai  fall@i@ % & 9,999 - - 9,999 99.89%
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming i £ B % 4 - - 1 1 0.01%
Note: The entire issued share capital comprises 10,000 BitaE : B EETTI B10,0000% &M E(E 10048 T 2 £
non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each and KRERBEERD R I0REREEI100E T E
10 ordinary shares of HK$100 each. AR MR 1 A B e
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S BEENEBRSTHAEZRDERS &)
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)
(B) Interests and short positions in associated () REBLIE2EZERKXR (&)

corporations (Continued)

(iii)  Karrie Industrial Holdings Limited (iii)  Karrie Industrial Holdings Limited

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each

BREEIAETZERFRELROHE

Corporate/ % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share
interests interests interests interests capital
(Note)

rEEER
PN 37 REER Hit g fitEE BRES K
(B E)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai  falig#8% & 1 - - 1 8.33%
Ms. Ho Po Chu (OF§73 G 1 - - 1 8.33%
Note: The entire issued share capital comprises 2 non-voting Wit - BETRGOB2BEREEVETZERZRE
deferred shares of HK$1 each and 10 ordinary shares R RO EREEIAS T2 T BRKRG, 48

of HK$1 each. B e

Save as disclosed above and under the heading “Share br EX KRR THEAR T8 R AT BN

Option Schemes”, none of the Directors, chief executives BEEFE EeaTBRABRHBEBAZRZ
or their associates have any personal, family, corporate or TZERFANATHRBAEARRA K LB
other interests and short positions in the shares and the B (BxRGEFBRAD) RHD REBERMDF
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated BREAMNBA KB - EZE X HEMmER
corporations as defined in the SFO as at 15 June 2005. FORAE ©

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING EENBRERT RS

BUSINESS

None of the directors of the Company had any interest in KRR B EEMEBEEAEBRERBRF 2%
any business which competes with the Group. BHRESEMEZ -
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRK

As at 31 March 2005 and 15 June 2005 R-ZFEERF=ZA=1+—HAHE-FTZFTAF
NATHHA

The interests or short positions of the persons (other than UTAET(TBEREERARAZEREITHR

a Director or chief executive of the Company) in the shares AB) AR AR MR G5F %E RE

or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the RATHR(EF GO E336FBETRATFE

register of interests kept by the Company under section ZEmEEMoER

336 of the SFO are as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BEREEIIBIZERERHE

Personal Corporate/ Shareholding

Name of Shareholder interests  Other interests percentage
EEEER

IRER & 1B A % 2= H R BFRESL

Pearl Court - 172,200,000 42.99%

(Note 1 FizE—)

HITL - 172,660,000 42.73%
(Note 1 Pif&E—)

Cheah Cheng Hye #)&/8 % & - 40,126,000 9.99%
(Note 2 Mzt =)

Value Partners Limited (“VPL") - 40,126,000 9.99%
(Note 2 ftsE =)

Notes: Kt -

1. These 172,200,000 shares are held by Pearl Court as trustee — - #%%172,200,000% i% 17 H3 Pearl Court{E/ZHCF
for HCF Trust. HITL is deemed to be interested in these TrustZ ZFEARE - HTLER AHEZ S
172,200,000 shares held by Pearl Court by virtue of the fact Pearl Court# B 2 172,200,0000% & 1n 2 #
that 9,999 of 10,000 units of HCF Trust are held by HITL as = EABHITUEAHWL Trustz SsEAEE
trustee for HWL Trust. HITL is also interested in 380,000 and 10,000fEHCF Trust® i1 2 9,999{E B I - 1
80,000 shares as trustees for two other trusts. BRIMEETZIZEA  HTLE D BlE A

380,000 80,000R% f& 17 °

2. VPL is interested in 40,126,000 shares in the capacity of — - VPLIEARE&KIEIEHF40,126,0000% f% 1% o B
investment manager. Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye is interested in RS EFFAVPL31.82% 2 B - Bt
the same block of shares by virtue of his 31.82% shareholding fth 4% 15 B G 52 5 40,126,0000% I 15 A 25 ©
in VPL.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
As at 31 March 2005 and 15 June 2005 (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2005 and 15 June
2005, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO.

ENCUMBRANCES ON SHARES

The Board wishes to disclose the following details for the
purpose of sound corporate governance:

As disclosed in 2004/05 Interim Report, on 22 November
2004, the Company received a written statement (the
“Statement”) dated 22 November 2004 from Pearl Court,
a substantial shareholder of the Company holding
172,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company.

In the Statement, Pearl Court confirms that, as at 22
November 2004, it has not created or caused to be created
nor are there any encumbrances, including without
limitation charges, mortgages, pledges, liens, options,
restrictions, right of first refusal, adverse interests or any
third party rights or claims whatsoever (the
“Encumbrances”), in respect of any of its interests in the
Company. Pearl Court has further undertaken to the
Company that it will inform the Board within 7 calendar
days before the Company publishes its results
announcements for any year, half-year, quarterly or any
other interim period whether any of its interests in the
Company is encumbered by any Encumbrances as at the
date of notification, provided that Pearl Court has the
right to terminate such arrangement by giving to the Board
a notice in writing (the “Notice”) on or before one month
immediately preceding the deadline for the Company to
publish an announcement for its results for any year, half-
year under the Listing Rules, quarterly or any other interim
period (whether or not required under the Listing Rules).
Pearl Court has further authorised the Company to disclose
such information to the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and to the public by any means that the Board
deems fit and to include such information in the Company’s
annual or interim reports or in its results announcements
for any year, half-year, quarterly or any other interim
period.
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FTERR @)
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ERERARB ZRDERIOR B L ©

BihzERER
BEFERMBAREAMIEDLATHE

BIE2004/05F B E < HFE - AAT
ZENF+—A -+ BRI AQF
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F+—A-+-—BzEm@mM&Eu ([
it]) o Pearl Courtis A RQ R =MKRME
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.OEM..
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ZNF+—A -+ _HEBERAR A%
Bz R UERKTXESIBRIA
MEEABEZIS /R E B FER R R
o ikiE - HEH - BERE - HERH
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EARARREMFE - F¥FE FTERETM
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BEEeERELZZHN RN £
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ENCUMBRANCES ON SHARES (Continued)

Without prejudice to the disclosure obligations of the
Company required under the Listing Rules (including the
general disclosure obligation of the Company under Rule
13.09 of the Listing Rules), the Board will publish such
information as from time to time received from Pearl Court
in its annual and interim reports and in its results
announcements for any year, half-year, quarterly or any
other interim period. The Board will also publish a separate
announcement upon receipt of the Notice from Pearl Court.

Subsequently, on 5 March 2005, (being three days before
the 2004/05 3rd quarter results announcement) and 20
June 2005, Pearl Court notified the Company by two
written statements that it has not pledged any of its
interests in ordinary shares of the Company as at both 5
March 2005 and 20 June 2005 respectively. As at 20 June
2005, the number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company held by Pearl Court was 172,200,000 shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended
31 March 2005 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 19%
Five largest suppliers combined 48%
Sales
The largest customer 32%
Five largest customers combined 80%

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted
above.
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Report of the Directors Ex&#H&

CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE
LISTING RULES

Advance to an Entity

In accordance with rule 13.13 of the Listing Rules, an
announcement was made on 9 September 2004 disclosing
the details of the trade receivables (the “Trade
Receivables”) due from Konica Minolta Business
Technologies Manufacturing (HK) Ltd. (“Konica Minolta”)
to the members of the Group as at 31 August 2004 which
exceeds 8% of the total market capitalization of the
Company as at that date.

As at 31 March 2005, the circumstances giving rise to the
disclosure under rule 13.13 continued to exist. In
accordance with rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules, details of
the relevant Trade Receivables due from Konica Minolta to
the Group as at 31 March 2005 are as follows:

As at 31 March 2005, there were 407,766,000 shares of
the Company in issue. Based on the average closing price
of the Company’s shares of HK$3.53 per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
trading days from 22 March 2005 to 30 March 2005 (both
days inclusive), being the five business days immediately
preceding 31 March 2005, the market capitalisation of
the Company was approximately HK$1,439,414,000 as at
31 March 2005 (the “Total Market Capitalisation”). The
trade receivables due to the Group from Konica Minolta
amounted to approximately HK$145,732,000 as at 31
March 2005. The Trade Receivables were resulted from
sales to Konica Minolta by the Group in its ordinary course
of trading business and on normal commercial terms, which
are unsecured, interest free and with payment terms of 60
days, and represented approximately 10% of the Total
Market Capitalisation.
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Report of the Directors Ex&#H&

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 25 July 2005 to Friday, 29 July 2005 (both
dates inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Branch Registrars in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Room 1712-6, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m.
on Friday, 22 July 2005.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST
PRACTICE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
throughout the year with the Code of Best Practice as set
out in appendix 14 of the Listing Rules which was in force
prior to 1 January 2005.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE OF
THE LISTING RULES

During the year, the Company has adopted stringent
procedures governing Directors’ securities transactions in
compliance with the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Specific confirmation has been
obtained from all Directors to confirm compliance with
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2005.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.
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Report of the Directors Ex&#H&

AUDIT COMMITTEE

According to the requirements of the Listing Rules, in
January 1999 the Group has established an Audit
Committee which now comprises three independent non-
executive Directors. They are responsible for dealing with
matters relating to audit which include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process and internal
control to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. In year 2004/05 they have met four times to
discuss and review the performance of the Group, including
the report to the audit committee for audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2005 issued by the external auditors.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the terms and
conditions of connected transactions of the Company
taking place during the year under review.

AUDITORS

The Accounts have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2005
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS
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BB SR AT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 111 to 170 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
of accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing
accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those accounts and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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Auditors’ Report # &R &

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the circumstances of the company and of the group,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts
are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the accounts. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company and of the group as at
31 March 2005 and of the profit and cash flows of the
group for the year then ended, and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2005
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

mEBER

For the Year Ended 31 March 2005 &Z—-=

FHE=A=+—HAI
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2005 2004
—EEEEF —EZENF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 FHB T THE T
Turnover LR 3 2,563,190 1,692,960
Cost of sales iR PN (2,246,021) (1,461,469)
Gross profit E A 317,169 231,491
Other revenue =N 3 12,311 6,585
Distribution and selling expenses S NIHEER (30,543) (26,648)
General and administrative expenses —ERITHER (116,436) (104,901)
Operating profit A% g A 4 182,501 106,527
Share of loss of an associated company & Bf = X 7 &5 18 (10,234) (1,766)
Finance costs B 75 Bk AR 5 (8,720) (6,145)
Profit before taxation B %% Al i A 163,547 98,616
Taxation I8 8 (13,203) (8,176)
Profit attributable to shareholders % B FE 1t )i F) 9 150,344 90,440
Dividends % 2 10 85,920 81,649
Earnings per share B A 11
— Basic — B K HK 37.2 centsi& 1l HK 23.0 cents/&
- Diluted — s HK 36.7 centsi& 1l HK 22.1 cents/&
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As at 31 March 2005 R=ZERFE=A=+—H

Karrie International Holdings Limited

Consolidated Company
=Re b NG|
2005 2004 2005 2004
ZE25F _—TITNE CZEELRFE _—_TITQEAF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 2 THT TET THxT TET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Fixed assets TEE 12 274,308 251,464 - -
Investment in subsidiaries REBARZKE 13 - = 398,660 380,701
Investment in an associated NN
company ZRE 14 - 7,142 - -
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE 23 3,987 2,071 - -
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 278,295 260,677 398,660 380,701
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories BE 15 440,013 166,474 - -
Trade receivables B 5 e Wk 5% 28&16 560,081 291,743 - -
Prepayments, deposits and BAR - kek
other receivables H & W iR 3% 22,618 19,460 200 182
Cash and bank deposits Be RBAFER 17 352,665 245,203 680 1,255
Total current assets RYEERE 1,375,377 722,880 880 1,437
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Short-term bank borrowings, EHRTEE
secured B HH 18 (495,829) (194,004) - -
Finance lease obligations, BEMERMA
current portion ENERER 1 19 (1,091) (3,893) - =
Trade and bills payables BORMNERREE 20 (446,601) (225,060) - -
Accruals and other payables EFERRK
H e IR 3K (126,300) (109,408) (13,808) (7,986)
Receipts in advance 8 IR 3% (16,287) (208) - =
Taxation payable JERTIE (8,726) (197) (31) -
Total current liabilities mBAERE (1,094,834) (532,770) (13,839) (7,986)
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE(BF)FE 280,543 190,110 (12,959) (6,549)
Total assets less current liabilities #ZERTE A E 558,838 450,787 385,701 374,152
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As at 31 March 2005 R—ZEERF=A=+—H Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥
Consolidated Company
e b NG|
2005 2004 2005 2004
ZE25F _—TITNE CZEELRFE _—_TITQEAF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt & THER THET TET TET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Long-term bank loans, REBITER -
secured BHEHA 21 (89,375) (52,500) - =
Finance lease obligations BEHREAR 19 - (1,093) - -
Provision for long service RR% e
payments PR 22 (7,369) (10,142) - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEREARE 23 (11,692) (11,589) - -
Total non-current liabilities ErReadEeE (108,436) (75,324) - =
MINORITY INTERESTS DR RER (424) (424) - -
Net assets BEFE 449,978 375,039 385,701 374,152
Representing: RE&
SHARE CAPITAL N 24 40,777 40,076 40,777 40,076
RESERVES & 26 409,201 334,963 344,924 334,076
Shareholders' equity RRES 449,978 375,039 385,701 374,152
HO CHEUK FAI KWOK WING KIN, FRANCIS
17 J 8 2B K B2
Director Director
- -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 4B 4$REX

For the Year Ended 31 March 2005 HiZ —EZERF=F=+—H 1t

Karrie International Holdings Limited

2005 2004
—EEEF —EZTNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FaET FET
Operating activities EEE
Operating profit i«‘ & A 182,501 106,527
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEEITE 39,105 34,490
Provision for amount due from JE W B & N R FRIB 2
an associated company B IR 3,424 -
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HERBREEE 2 W= (453) (196)
Interest income B WA (3.,964) (1,620)
Operating profit before working %Lé’i\ﬁ@)ﬁﬂz
capital changes A5 s A 220,613 139,201
Increase in inventories FEZE (273,539) (10,170)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e YR 5K 2 18 N (268,338) (24,548)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, AR e hHMmEW
deposits and other receivables MRz (3G ) A (3,158) 10,490
Increase/(decrease) in trade and EHORMNEREEZEZ
bills payables #n CR ) 221,541 (4,093)
Increase in accruals and FEETE R R EMER
other payables R 3K 2 3 hN 16,892 13,246
Increase/(decrease) in receipts TEURIR TR 2 8,
in advance Ort 2) 16,079 (4,846)
Decrease in provision for REIRB© 2 EHE
long service payments 2R (2,773) (1,672)
Decrease in amount due to JE < B8 Bt 1 B IR
a related company Z )FX’J‘ - (273)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow KEER RS
from operations GRd) /mAFEE (72,683) 117,335
Interest paid =ESRANS (8.720) (6,145)
Hong Kong profits tax paid Eﬁi?/%ﬂ TR (7,615) (13,550)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BEREMFHE 1,063 13
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KEETEFH 2R
operating activities R /mAFE (87,955) 97,653
Investing activities REFH
Additions of fixed assets AEBEEE (62,236) (58,842)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets {1} & & E & & 2 A 740 2,279
Investment in an associated company REERNR 2K E (6,000) =
Increase in amount due from JE U B 22 N B FRIE
an associated company Z 0 (516) (2,908)
Interest received B W F B 3,964 1,620
Net cash outflow from REFSH RS
investing activities R (64,048) (57,851)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow MERI 2R
before financing (R /mAFE (152,003) 39,802



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement &4BE4$%7E

For the Year Ended 31 March 2005 HiZ —EZERF=F=+—H 1t Annual Report 2004-2005 4 #f

2005 2004
—EERE —ZTTPF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k= FTHET FHET

Financing il & 27
Proceeds from exercise of share options 7713 B J&# ~ Ug A 7,700 14,818
New long-term bank loans HMERBIEITER 816,000 75,000
New short-term bank loans MRHRITER 912,999 808,392
Repayment of long-term bank loans EERHEITER (775,875) (11,500)
Repayment of short-term bank loans EREHRITER (866,792) (788,920)

Increase/(decrease) in trust receipts #m, CRd) a5
bank loans WEIRITE R 252,488 (50,819)
EBEEmEESEERZ

Repayment of capital element of

finance lease obligations PN Y (3.895) (5,787)

Dividends paid 2K & & (83,040) (94,597)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BMECRS

from financing mA G ) F 5 259,585 (53,413)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and RekBeFED

cash equivalents 2, CR ) 107,582 (13,611)
Cash and cash equivalents, FNzHE Rk

beginning of year ReEED 244,419 258,030
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year FEZHEE KRS EEY 352,001 244,419
Analysis of cash and ReRBELESEY

cash equivalents: 23

Cash and bank deposits BERIBITER 352,665 245,203
Bank overdrafts RITHEX (664) (784)
352,001 244,419
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity &&RFEZEBLEEX

For the Year Ended 31 March 2005 &i2 —EZRE=A=+—H 1 Karrie International Holdings Limited
2005 2004
—EZEEEF —EZENF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 FHB T FH& T

Total shareholders’ equity, FUZBRREEREE
beginning of year 375,039 364,318
Profit attributable to shareholders % B FE 1 )& F) 150,344 90,440

Deferred tax effect on revaluation 5 E B I8 $ & E

of fixed assets BEEMZTE 26 (65) 60
Dividends paid 2R & 26 (83,040) (94,597)
Issue of shares f& AN 2 21T 24 & 26 7,700 14,818
Total shareholders’ equity, end of year FEK Z R EEREE 449,978 375,039
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

1.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these accounts are set out below:

(a) Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of land and
buildings.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“new HKFRSs”) which are effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2005. The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs
in the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2005. The
Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact
of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRSs would have a significant impact
on its results of operations and financial positions.

(b) Group accounting

(i) Consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries, together with the Group’s
share of post-acquisition results and reserves of its
associated company under the equity method of
accounting, made up to 31 March.

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Company,
directly or indirectly, controls more than one half of the
voting power; has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies; to appoint or remove the majority of
the members of the board of directors; or to cast majority
of votes at the meetings of the board of directors.
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

1.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b) Group accounting (Cont’d)

(i) Consolidation (Cont’d)

The results of subsidiaries and associated company acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated profit and loss account from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds of the sale and the
Group's share of its net assets together with any
unamortised goodwill or negative goodwill or goodwill/
negative goodwill taken to reserves and which was not
previously charged or recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

(i) Associated company

An associated company is a company, not being a
subsidiary or a joint venture, in which an equity interest is
held for the long-term and significant influence is exercised
in its management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the
Group's share of the results of an associated company for
the year, and the consolidated balance sheet includes the
Group's share of the net assets of the associated company
and goodwill/negative goodwill (net of accumulated
amortisation) on acquisition.
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(b) Group accounting (Cont’d)

(i) Associated company (Cont’d)

Equity accounting is discontinued when the carrying
amount of the investment in an associated company
reaches zero, unless the Group has incurred obligations or
guaranteed obligations in respect of the associated
company.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates; unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred.

(iii)  Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated at rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising in these cases are dealt with in the profit and loss
account.

The balance sheet of subsidiaries and associated company
expressed in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date whilst the
profit and loss account is translated at an average rate.
Exchange differences are dealt with as a movement in
reserves.
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(c) Fixed assets and depreciation

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost which includes
development and construction expenditure incurred and
other direct costs attributable to the development less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Other fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Land and buildings are depreciated over the period of the
leases, while other fixed assets are depreciated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less accumulated
impairment losses over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Land 2% to 2.2%

Buildings 2% to 4%

Fixtures and leasehold 8% to 10%
improvements

Machinery 10% to 15%

Moulds and tooling 15%
Furniture and computer 15% to 33.33%

equipment

Land and buildings are subject to independent valuations
on a regular basis, with the last valuation performed on
31 March 2002. In the intervening years, the Directors
review the carrying value of land and buildings and
adjustment is made where they consider that there has
been a material change. Any increase in valuation of land
and buildings is credited to the fixed assets revaluation
reserve. Decrease in valuation is first offset against increase
on earlier valuations in respect of the same land and
buildings and is thereafter debited to operating profit.
Any subsequent increase is credited to operating profit up
to the amount previously debited.
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(c) Fixed assets and depreciation (Cont’d)

Maijor costs incurred in restoring fixed assets to their normal
working condition to allow continued use of the assets
are charged to the profit and loss account. Improvements
are capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful
lives to the Group.

Fixed assets held under finance leases are recorded and
depreciated on the same basis as described above.

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess whether
there is any indication that fixed assets are impaired. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss
is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognised in the profit and
loss except where the asset is carried at valuation and the
impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus
for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the profit and
loss account. Any revaluation reserve balance remaining
attributable to the relevant asset is transferred to retained
earnings and is shown as a movement in reserves.
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(d) Assets under leases

(i) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the
leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the
capital and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
long-term liabilities. The finance charges are charged to
the profit and loss account over the lease periods.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease periods.

(i) Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the leasing company are
accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the
leasing company are charged to the profit and loss account
on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

(e) Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, work in progress and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, calculated on the first-in, first-out
basis, comprises materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated
sales proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

(f) Accounts receivables

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the extent
they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts receivable in
the balance sheet are stated net of such provision.
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

1.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet
at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and cash investments with a maturity of
three months or less from date of investment and bank
overdrafts.

(h) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. Where the Group expects a provision
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

(i) Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments wholly due within
twelve months after the balance sheet date are recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made. Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within twelve months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(i) Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(iii)  Retirement benefits
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plans are expensed as incurred.

(iv)  Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method, discounted to its present
value and reduced by entitlements accrued under the
Group's retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The discount rate is the
yield at balance sheet date on high quality corporate bonds
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related liability.

(j) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the accounts. Taxation rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date are used to determine
deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associated
company, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(k) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in
the notes to the accounts when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an
asset is recognised.

(I) Turnover and revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has passed.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis.

Revenue from the provision of management service is
recognised when the service is rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and
the interest rates applicable.

Advance payments received from customers prior to delivery
of goods are recorded as receipts in advance.
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(m) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged
to the profit and loss account in the year in which they
are incurred.

(n) Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
the Group has determined that business segments be
presented as the primary reporting format and geographical
as the secondary reporting format.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment
assets consist primarily of fixed assets, inventories,
receivables and operating cash. Segment liabilities comprise
operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation and
certain corporate borrowings. Capital expenditure
comprises additions to fixed assets.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, turnover is
based on the country in which the final destination of
shipment is located and total assets and capital expenditure
are where the assets are located.
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥

2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 2. BEALXRS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the MEATNZERENEEIHELS S
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or —FEREE B REERERTEERXN
exercise significant influence over the other party in making FEINALT - WHZFEALTXRA—ALZ
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also EHHR—ATZEATE > THEELHE
considered to be related if they are subject to common BAL o

control or common significant influence.

(@)  Significant transactions with related parties are (a) HBEBATZERRZFZBEWT :
summarised below:

2005 2004
—E2HF _—_TITWF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FHET
Rental income earned from MEMBERAR
Kar-Info Company Limited, (ZRRIBARTF
which is beneficially owned EEMEELE
and controlled by the family RGRERBEAR
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, 2z ) WA &
a director of the Company WA (i) - 157
Rental charged by Kings Lion SHHEETHMER
Development Limited, BRAR (A A
which is beneficially owned MARNAES
and controlled by the family Al k2 08 S HE K Tk
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, EnlEa REd)
a director of the Company (i) 1,276 1,269
Machinery rental income earned A Bt & 2 &) Y ER
from an associated company s e WA (ii) 2,347 587
Management service income ) Bk & A R AR
earned from an associated company EEBIMA (ii) 2,512 1,373
Sales to an associated company HE TH 2 QA (ii) 130 551
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Notes to the Accounts 1k B izt

Karrie International Holdings Limited

2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 2. BEALTXRE (&)

(@)  (Cont’d) (@ (&)

Notes: B &E -

(i) In the opinion of the Company’s Directors and the Group's (i) AAREZRASEEEERR L2 H
management, these related party transactions were conducted BATRIURAEEBEEBAEF U
in the normal course of business of the Group and in FEREGRETRAEEEBEBAA LTS
accordance with the terms of the agreements. B & Z R AT o

(ii) In the opinion of the Company’s Directors and the Group's (ii) RAAREZRASEETEERRSZ S HE
management, these transactions with the associated company ERAIZRGERESR %fxiﬁ A KRR
were conducted in the normal course of businesses and at ERATERREZ BB RIGHHELT o
prices and terms mutually agreed by the respective parties.

(b) Details of amount due from a related company (b) BIERNE SRR 2 B EE AR A
(included in trade receivables) are as follows: HBEZFBWOT :

2005 2004

—EERFE _—ZTTNWF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FET

Kar-Info Company Limited RBAR AR - 190
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3. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 3. EXERWA
Analysis of turnover and revenue is as follows: EEERRAZTAET -
2005 2004
—E2EERFE —TTWOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Sales revenue SHE WA
Metal and plastic business heBRBER 1,172,806 963,002
Electronic manufacturing BFEERIER
services business 1,390,384 729,958
Turnover S0 2,563,190 1,692,960
Rental income He A 5,835 3,592
Management service income EBEERA 2,512 1,373
Interest income FEWKA 3,964 1,620
Total revenue LU A 2,575,501 1,699,545

During the year ended 31 March 2005, approximately 80%

(2004: 74%) of the Group's turnover was related to sales

made to its five largest customers.

R_EBEERF=A=1+—HIEFEREKX
HEZHEGEAEE 2 EX£BL80% (=ZF

TPF : 74%)
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

4. OPERATING PROFIT 4. RERA
Operating profit is determined after charging or crediting a2 kR RETATSISIA -

the following items:

2005 2004
—E2ERE _—ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Charging: Bk :
Depreciation of fixed assets BE&EENTE
— owned assets —BEERE 36,601 28,738
— assets held under finance leases —UREHERBEZEE 2,504 5,752
39,105 34,490
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 T A
emoluments) (Note 6) (BREEEM<) (Fizte) 168,742 133,954
Operating lease rental of premises MAMEZREHERS 13,765 9,843
Net exchange loss P& 5 B 1EF R 933 604
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 2B B & 1,013 931
Fees for non-audit services FEZEBRBEER 223 501
Provision for obsolete and RELFHEFE
slow-moving inventories AEE 6,986 483
Provision for amount due from JE W Bk & R B 5RIE 2
an associated company Bk A 3,424 =
Crediting: BErA
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets HEREEEE K= FRE 453 196
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5. FINANCE COSTS 5. BB
2005 2004
—EERFE —TTWMHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on SN
— bank borrowings wholly repayable —RNAFRNEZE
within five years ZIRITEE 8,536 5,728
— finance leases —BEMRE 110 293
— factoring of trade receivables — B RBIERES - 1
— others —Hfb 74 123
8,720 6,145
6. STAFF COSTS 6. BIKAK
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments, consisted of: ETKABRREEENE AKX :
2005 2004
—EERF —ZTETNMOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Wages and salaries BT & 168,415 132,147
Pension costs — defined RRE AR
contribution plans — A EHKEE 2,766 2,488
Write-back of provision for REIAR % & # O
long service payments (Note 22) (BF5E22) (2,439) (681)
168,742 133,954
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

Karrie International Holdings Limited

7. EBERERTBRAEME

EMOLUMENTS
(@)  Details of emoluments paid/payable to directors of (@ ARAEN EHESHE 2FELN
the Company are as follows: T
2005 2004
—EERFE —_TTWMHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees for executive directors HWITESHES - -
Fees for independent BN IEHAT
non-executive directors EEwe 338 330
Other emoluments for HITEEZ
executive directors H i 2
— Basic salaries and allowances —E AR FH & KEB 8,733 7,863
— Discretionary bonus —MIBEB R ZTEL 9,860 6,163
— Pension scheme contributions —RIKEET 8 2 H3 70 60
19,001 14,416

During the year ended 31 March 2005, certain directors
exercised share options, which were granted between June
1999 and November 2002, to acquire 3,300,000 (2004:
10,080,000) ordinary shares of the Company at exercise
prices ranging from HK$0.3 to HK$1.65 (2004: HK$0.3 to
HK$1.65) per share. The market prices of the shares at
the dates of exercising these options ranged from HK$1.8
to HK$3.25 (2004: HK$1.68 to HK$2.85) per share. The
difference between the exercise prices and the market
prices arising from the exercise of the above share options
amounting to approximately HK$5,873,000 (2004:
HK$20,379,000) has not been reflected in the above
analysis and the band analysis below.

No directors waived any emoluments during the year (2004:
Nil). No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid/payable to any
director during the year (2004: Nil).
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 7. EEREHRITHAEME &)
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(@)  The emoluments of the directors fell within the (@) X FEZFzME&BRIMT :
following bands:

2005 2004
—EERF “ETMF
Executive directors HWITEE

- Nil to HK$1,000,000 — 0/ L2 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
- HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 — 1,000,001/ 7t £ 1,500,000/ T - 1
- HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 — 1,500,001/ 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T 2 1
- HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 —2,000,001/%8 7t £2,500,000% T 1 1
- HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 —2,500,0017% 7T £ 3,000,000/ 7T 1 =
- HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 —8,000,001/8 7t £8,500,000%5 T - 1
- HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 —9,000,0017% 7 £ 9,500,000/ 7T 1 =

Independent non-executive directors BUEMTES
- Nil to HK$1,000,000 — 0% 0 £ 1,000,000/ 7T 4 3
10 8

(b)  The five individuals whose emoluments were the (b) AEEFEEEARZRZ=SEHMNA LB

highest in the Group for the year include five (2004: hB(ZTZTWF : IR)EE - EPH
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in SEHR EXDNT - RZZZPEF -
the analysis presented above. The emoluments Ht—Emag AT 2ENBME M
payable to the remaining one individual in 2004 are ™
as follows:
2005 2004
—EERFE _—ZTTNWF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Basic salaries and allowances BEXRE & RER - 797
Discretionary bonus B 15 3 2 FEAL - 667
Pension scheme contributions RIRE 8 2 #HR - 12
- 1,476
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) The emoluments fell within the following band:

Karrie International Holdings Limited

7. EBERERTBAEME @)
(b) ZEMEEANTAR :

2005 2004

“2RIF —EENE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 ;L £1,500,0

00/ 7T 1

No emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and other employees) as compensation
for loss of office during the year (2004: Nil).

8.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit

TAXATION

and loss account represents:

IEsEsHFAL (BREFREMET) N
AEZWEENEAMMEER/RERMLLZ

ME(CSZZTNF &) -
8. HIE
ERABEERIEIHENT ¢

2005 2004
—EEHFE —TTWMHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Current taxation: Hong Kong profits tax IR{TFIE : FE B
— current year —AKFEE 15,619 9,424
— over-provision in prior years —AFE B ERE (538) (554)
Deferred taxation relating to the RERIBEREZR 2
origination and reversal of E A K #E 6
temporary differences (Note 23) (FF5E23) (1,878) (694)
Taxation charge MIAX H 13,203 8,176
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8. TAXATION (Contd)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
profits tax rate in Hong Kong, the Group’s home country,
as follows:

Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥

8. MIHE (&)
AEBEBBRBANERN 2 HERBERA
ARARARTBERHEEMTE 2 BRI R
ZERWT

2005 2004
—EEHE _—ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Profit before taxation B B¢ A& A 163,547 98,616
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% X F £17.5%
(2004: 17.5%) ZTTF : 17.5%) 5 & 28,621 17,258
Tax effect of MIBR &
— income not subject to taxation —EmARB ZBA (19,723) (17,579)
— expenses not deductible for — TR
taxation purposes Z X H 5,314 9,051
Over-provision in prior years EF 2 BEERE (538) (554)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised ERATFRER
tax losses WS E B (471) =
Taxation charge MBS H 13,203 8,176

The Company is exempted from Bermuda taxation until
2016. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year.

Dongguan Yanxun Electronics Company Limited, a
subsidiary established and operating in Mainland China, is
subject to Mainland China enterprise income tax at the
rate of 33% (30% state income tax and 3% local income
tax). However, it is exempted from Mainland China
enterprise income tax and local income tax for two years
starting from the first year of profitable operations, after
offsetting prior years’ losses, followed by a 50% reduction
for the following three years. No Mainland China enterprise
income tax has been provided since Dongguan Yanxun
Electronics Company Limited is in a tax loss position.

AARERGCBREHRE EE_T— X
FARIE - BEBFESHIIBBEARF 2 HETE
RBORAIE17.5% (ZFEZFWNF  17.5%) 2
R IRER -

REBEAEFARAB IR HR B EE
BZMBART - BHN3I3%2HBEEEMN
B BO%/BERF—FMEHR - M3% S
TR o HZ AR E & EMER A ESF
EERRZENFEEMFELBHARLT
BEXGE BRI AER - mMER
= FAIRE50%MAT o 5% 2B RADBE R B
BEZMARN - AL RBERTBEERMARF
Bt R -
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9. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO

SHAREHOLDERS

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders includes
a profit of approximately HK$86,889,000 (2004:

Karrie International Holdings Limited

9. RREMERF

HEBREREEZMABE—SFEEALRRD
AR B 2% 71 #4986,889,000/ 7T (—ZZ /Y

HK$40,085,000) dealt with in the accounts of the % : 40,085,000 7T) °
Company.
10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2005 2004
—E2ERE _—ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Interim, paid, of HK8.5 cents EHEF' Hﬂ — FR% 8.5
(2004: HK8.0 cents) per share ZETMMF - 8.081L) 34,474 32,020
Additional final dividend for EERHRE
the prior year due to exercise FOIR BB T {5 B AR hE
of share options % &7 475 1,538
Final, proposed, of HK12.5 cents BORKH — § AR 12,5810
(2004: HK12.0 cents) per share (ZZ2ZMF : 12.05%10) 50,971 48,091
85,920 81,649

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2005 is based on the consolidated profit
attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$150,344,000 (2004: HK$90,440,000) and on the
weighted average number of approximately 404,472,000
shares (2004: 392,753,000 shares) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2005 is based on the consolidated profit
attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$150,344,000 (2004: HK$90,440,000) and on the
weighted average number of approximately 409,596,000
shares (2004: 408,340,000 shares) in issue, after adjusting
for the potential dilutive effect in respect of outstanding
share options.
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90,440,000 7)) R AFEANE ZEITRGH 2
hnAE 15 B 4)404,472,0000% (—Z EZ Y
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12. FIXED ASSETS 12. BIEEE
(a) Movements were: (a) %8 :

Consolidated

&8
Furniture
and
Leasehold Moulds  computer
Land and Construction- improvements and  equipment
buildings in-progress and fixtures  Machinery tooling B R Total

THREY  ERIR  NREE #% HKERIZ  RERE it
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKFOOO  HKS'000  HKS'O00  HK$'000
Thn T#m Thn T#n Thn ThR Thn

Cost or valuation AR/ fhE
At 1 April 2004 “2EMEMA-A 132,665 1137 46,253 285,811 19,509 37,499 528,874
Additions hE 4,645 15,239 5,545 30,934 2,041 3,832 62,236
Disposals e - - - (14.291) (@) (2,797) (17,002
Transfers g7 6,132 (6,627) 495 - - - -
At 31 March 2005 ZETRE-A=T-A 143,402 15,749 52,093 302,454 21,546 38,534 574,018
Representing: %
At cost B 18,292 15,749 52,293 302,454 21,546 38,534 448 868
At professional valuation ZETCE=R

in March 2002 pAS {3 125,150 - - - - - 125,150

143,442 15,749 52,293 302,454 21,546 38,534 574,018

Accumulated depreciation ZRTE
At 1 April 2004 “ZEMEEA-R 6,394 - 18,776 202,342 17373 32,525 277,410
Charge for the year KEENE 3479 - 3,899 27,142 1,131 3,454 39,105
Disposals il = = - (14,028) 4) 2,11 (16,805)
At 31 March 2005 “SSRE=A=T-H 9,873 - 22,675 215,456 18,500 33,206 299,710
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2005 “SSRE=A=T-H 133,569 15,749 29,618 86,998 3,046 5328 274,308
At 31 March 2004 “SSNEZA=T-H 126,271 1,137 21471 83,469 2,136 4974 251,464
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12. FIXED ASSETS (Cont'd)
(b) Land and buildings:

The geographical location and tenure of title of land and
buildings are analysed as follows:

Karrie International Holdings Limited

12. BIEEE (&)
(b) THREF:

THREFZHERERERITAT

2005 2004

—EERF —ZTTMF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

Hong Kong — medium-term leases BE - HELY 7,887 8,140
Mainland China — medium-term leases  F1 B — A1 BAFA 49 125,682 118,131
133,569 126,271

Land and buildings located in Hong Kong are held under
medium-term leases expiring in June 2047. Land and
buildings located in Mainland China are held under land
use rights of 45 to 50 years expiring in April 2043 to
October 2046.

Land and buildings with a net book value of approximately
HK$116,062,000 (2004: HK$119,144,000) were stated at
open market value on 31 March 2002 as determined by
FPD Savills, independent qualified valuers. Had those land
and buildings been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, their net book value as at 31 March 2005
would have been approximately HK$88,178,000 (2004:
HK$90,552,000).

Certain of the Group’s land and buildings in Mainland
China with a net book value of approximately
HK$16,424,000 (2004: HK$16,825,000) are mortgaged as
collateral for the Group’s short-term bank loan amounting
to approximately HK$15,094,000 (Note 31).
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WhEFIHREAMOTREER T4 (AE
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12. FIXED ASSETS (Cont'd) 12. BEEE (&)

(c) Machinery: (c) Hkz3s

Certain of the Group’s machinery included in Note 12(a) ETEREEUEMFI12@2AEBE#KEST)
above is held under finance leases. Details of these assets HFRHEHEBA ZFEECHFBOT :

are as follows:

2005 2004
—EEHFE —TTWMHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Cost X 2R 16,693 38,348
Less: Accumulated depreciation B BENE (12,520) (26,090)
Net book value i % B 4,173 12,258
Depreciation for the year REFHE 2,504 5,752
13. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 13. RINBRARAZRE
Company
¥ NN
2005 2004
—EEHFE —TTWMHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost IE FT R 2 AR E 193,285 193,285
Due from subsidiaries JE WK Bt /B8 A B kI8 208,462 197,416
401,747 390,701
Less: Provision for impairment of B RHB AR
investment in a subsidiary ®EREE (3.087) (10,000)
398,660 380,701
The outstanding balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, MEBAR M AREERBILEEAR - T5
non-interest bearing and not repayable within one year. ME - WR—FRIHEE -
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

13. RINBLRRAZRE (&)
AEBZETEWNBRRZFHE

13. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Group are:

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and
fully paid

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

Name operations share capital to the Group (i) Principal activities
VS L
MR BERTR HMEREIER
=L R B EHERE B2 L) TEER
Karrie International The British Ordinary US$100 100% Investment holding
(B.V.1.) Limited Virgin Islands ERAR100% T & &R
RERUES
Castfast Industrial Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% Plastic injection
Company Limited BB @A 100/8 T moulding operations
ZEREBRASERA A Non-voting deferred (ii) = BRITE
HK$990,200
AR AR T AR (i)
990,200/ 7T
Castfast Industrial Hong Kong/ Ordinary HK$100 100% Manufacture of computer

(Yan Tien) Limited Mainland China @ A% 10078 It casings, office
EEZEZB O SR BE/F Non-voting deferred (ii) - automation products,
BR AT HK$10,000 video cassette housings,
B Z BRI moulds and plastic and
10,0007 7t metal parts;
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provision of electronic
manufacturing services,
property holding and
investment holding
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WREXREM
BEHIR  RAR
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13. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and
fully paid

Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

13. RNBRARZRE (@)

Name operations share capital to the Group (i) Principal activities
rEHE
EmRL, BRTR MEREESR
=L REmE EHERE BAE() TEXK
Castfast Magnetics Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100% Manufacture of plastic
Moulding Limited o L®mR108 T injection moulds and
REHE Iﬁf Non-voting deferred (ii) - metal stamping dies
AR HK$30,000 BUSTHEAR
B F R TR EEREEA
30,0007 7T
Dongguan Yanxun Mainland China Registered capital 85% Manufacture of computer
Electronics Company H HK$4,500,000 casings, video cassette
Limited (iii) EER = 0N housings, office
REREAET 4,500,000 7T automation products
B R 2 A (iii) and plastic and
metal parts
BEBRINR - BEH
OhER - WRE R
EmRERBE
B
Hong Kong Hung Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% Manufacture and sale
Hing Metal o T mAZ 10078 7T of metal parts; and
Manufacturing Non-voting deferred (ii) - design of switching
Company Limited HK$250,000 power supplies
BEEEsBHEM B F R TR RENHET BB K
B A A 250,000% 7T HErEIRFA
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13. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Place of

incorporation/

Issued and
fully paid

Karrie International Holdings Limited

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

13. RNBRARZRE (@)

Name operations share capital to the Group (i) Principal activities
rEHE
EmRL, BRTR MEREESR
=L REmE EHERE BAE() TEXK
Karrie Industrial Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100% Manufacture and sale of
Limited BB @A 1,000 It video cassette housings,
RNEMARAT Non-voting deferred (ii) - sale of computer casings
HK$5,000,000 and office automation
B ZRBEER(I) products, plastic and
5,000,000/ 7T metal parts, metal
stamping dies, plastic
injection moulds and
provision of electronic
manufacturing services
BHERHEEHT TN
R HEBMIR
WIZENREM
PRLReBEHMG -
TEBHEEA
PRAIRRREHRETF
BEERIRS
Karpo Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100% Investment holding
Limited BB @R 1,000 7T REEK
EERMHEBARAQA Non-voting deferred (ii) =
HK$1,000,000
B F R )
1,000,000/% 7T
RERBETEX Mainland China Registered capital 100% Investment holding
BRRAA mh HK$24,000,000 REER
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13. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 13. RNBRARZRE (@)
Percentage of
Place of Issued and equity interest
incorporation/ fully paid attributable
Name operations share capital to the Group (i) Principal activities
rEHE
EmRL, BRTR MEREESR
=L REmE EHERE BAE() TEXK
Karwin Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100% Design, manufacture and
Company Limited o L®mR108 T sale of computer
RERMIRE Non-voting deferred (ii) - casings, office
BR AT HK$100 automation products;
B ERIEER() manufacture and sale
1007 7T of plastic and metal
parts, metal stamping
dies, plastic injection
moulds and provision
of electronic
manufacturing services
Rit HERHESK
OhER B E
Em HERHEE
ERLEcBEBG -
EERERA -
PRIERREHETF
BEERIRH
Karwin Technologies The United States Ordinary US$100 100% Provision of consultancy
Incorporation of America ERAR100% T services to group
< companies
REER RS T
AEEARA]
Kings Horse Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100% Property holding
Limited B LmiRk108 T RAEME
YEXREBRADA Non-voting deferred (i) =
HK$10,000
AR AR T AR (i)
10,000/% 7T
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

13. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 13. RINBLRRAZRE (&)
Percentage of
Place of Issued and equity interest
incorporation/ fully paid attributable
Name operations share capital to the Group (i) Principal activities
rEE
amEL BRITR HMERAER
8 R EHERAE Bk EEBEE
Karrie Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$30,000,000 100% Provision of electronic
Company Limited BB & 3 A% 30,000,000/ 7T manufacturing services
EMRIRE RUEFEXRKIRE
BRAA
Kings Dragon Investment  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% Investment holding
(HK) Limited BB Emk2E T REEZK

SERE (BB BRAA

Notes: B3

0) The shares of Karrie International (BVI) Limited are held directly () Karrie International (B.V.l.) LimitedZ J& %
by the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held DARNBEERE - AMMB AR ZKRG T
indirectly. RABIHERE -

(ii) The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group. (i) \EFEETROHLIFENEEMESR -5
These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to LRI EIE R - NEESZRE - RIE
dividends, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding FERE A RITEE S I ) E T AR R 28 2 4878
up unless a sum of HK$200,000,000,000 has been distributed ##38200,000,000,000/8 7T ¢ & A& E KK
by the relevant companies to holders of the ordinary shares. BESZEMDIE

(iliy ~ Dongguan Yanxun Electronics Company Limited (“DYECL") (i) REEARETHRDA R R
is a co-operative joint venture established in Mainland China FRIKI 2EERE 88+ =24
with an operating period of 12 years up to May 2007. RZZZTLERAER - BRE—HR—NN
Pursuant to an agreement dated 24 October 1995, the AFTA-HHBRTZHE - REAZ
Mainland China joint venture partner of DYECL (the “joint RHEBAREREES ZREREMEFZ
venture partner”) has agreed to waive its entitlement to share e MR —IBREEZFE - 3|6 &E MK
in the profit of DYECL in return for a pre-determined annual IERE, REBMEGTER ARNESZSER
fee. Upon expiry of the operating period, the Group and the Moz EE °
joint venture partner are entitled to a distribution of assets
in accordance to their respective equity interests.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at REBEE-_ZETRAF=ZA=+—HILFER

any time during the year ended 31 March 2005. EWNBRAIEEAMNEETZEEER o
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14. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATED 14. RBERTAZRE
COMPANY
Consolidated
me
2005 2004
—E2EERFE —_TTWOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Share of net assets of Fr {1 Bt & 2 & - 4,234
an associated company EEFE
Due from the associated company JE Wt Bk & 1 B RIE 3,424 2,908
3,424 7,142
Less: Provision for amount due from B FEUREE & N B R
the associated company 2 BIREE (3.424) =
- 7,142
The outstanding balance with the associated company is ZUEBENRMAEE KB REELR -
unsecured and non-interest bearing and not repayable TErRE IR —FRTHEE -

within one year.
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14. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATED
COMPANY (Cont'd)

Details of the associated company are:

Karrie International Holdings Limited

14. RBBERTZRE (@)

kN A3

Percentage of

Place of Issued and equity interest
incorporation/ fully paid attributable to Principal
Name operations share capital the Group activities
ML =5 &5 rEBAFE
=E: ReE REHRZERET REIEZBEIW FTEXEHR
(Note)
(P 5E)
NEC Nagano Karrie Hong Kong Ordinary 30% Manufacture
Electronics Limited BB HK$20,000,000 and sale of
EHFRAAXEREF AR projectors
EFARRAA 20,000,000/ 7T SERIEERTHK
Dongguan Naganichi Mainland China Registered capital 30% Manufacture

Karrie Electronics =8
Limited
REREZETHRAA

The Group's associated company has a financial accounting
period of 31 December which is not coterminous with the
Group.

Note:

The shares of NEC Nagano Karrie Electronics Limited are indirectly
held by the Company.

Dongguan Naganichi Karrie Electronics Limited is a wholly owned
subsidiary of NEC Nagano Karrie Electronics Limited.
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ERUA=EN
29,600,000/ 7T

and assembly
of projectors
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15. INVENTORIES 15. #&
Consolidated
ma
2005 2004
—E2HF _—_TTWF
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FHT
Raw materials R4 % 204,203 84,788
Work-in-progress F B G 29,521 24,073
Finished goods EEKE m 206,289 57,613
440,013 166,474
As at 31 March 2005 and 2004, all inventories were carried R_EERAFR_FTZENMF=A=+—H
at net realisable value. Included in the above balance is a ZHIBEFEEANERFEIIKR - A LEZ&
provision for slow-moving and obsolescence amounting to HREBSFIHERREEREL 46,937,000/
approximately HK$46,937,000 (2004: HK$39,951,000). T (ZZFZEME : 39,951,000 7T) ©
Further aging analysis of inventories is as follows: MiEERESTAT
Consolidated
ma
2005 2004
—ERRE _—TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
0-30 days 0£F30H 334,280 141,254
31-90 days 312 90H 90,631 24,437
91-180 days 91-180H 15,102 783
440,013 166,474
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group generally grants credit periods ranging from 30
to 120 days. Aging analysis of trade receivables is as

Karrie International Holdings Limited

16. B 5 & Wik

AEBHRTRFPFZHHH30BE1208 - B
S EWIRZRE DT T ¢

follows:
Consolidated
me
2005 2004
—FTHF —TTHEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
0 to 90 days 02 90H 472,358 273,979
91 to 180 days 91% 180H 86,791 26,926
181 to 360 days 181£360H 10,421 1,493
Over 360 days 3608 JA £ 2,034 864
571,604 303,262
Less: Provision for bad and B RIE R
doubtful debts (11,523) (11,519)
560,081 291,743

17. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 March 2005, cash and bank deposits of
approximately HK$4,650,000 (2004: HK$7,547,000) were
denominated in Renminbi, which is not a freely convertible
currency in the international market and its exchange rate
is determined by the People’s Bank of China.
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RZZEZERF=ZRA=+—8 AEBZR
© MIRITIE R H B 44,650,000 T (ZEF
PUE : 7,547,000 70) AARBABEBEA - %
BEETeEREREMESER LB RA L BE
MAEARBITRE
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18. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS,
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18. MHRTHEE  FEH

SECURED
Consolidated
ma
2005 2004
—E2ERE _—ZTETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Bank overdrafts RITEX 664 784
Trust receipts bank loans ERRWEBRITER 296,887 44,399
Short-term bank loans RHERITER 172,528 126,321
Current portion of long-term bank REIRITERZ

loans (Note 21) BIEREB 12 (B9 aE21) 25,750 22,500
495,829 194,004

Short-term bank loan of approximately HK$15,094,000 was
secured by certain of the Group’s land and buildings in
Mainland China with a net book value of approximately
HK$16,424,000 (2004: HK$16,825,000). Other short-term
bank borrowings are secured by the guarantees provided
by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries (Note 31).

#715,094,0008 T 2 IR ITE KRB AR
SERBANTHEEFIEAER  MEW
BEFIRAEELAE16,424,0008 L (2=
P94 : 16,825,000/ 7T)  ME AL BRIRTT
BEEARRAEETHEBERAR 2 A
RIEBEIR (FFE31)
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19. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The finance lease obligations were repayable as follows:

Karrie International Holdings Limited

19. MEMHESEME
MEHERETZEEREDT :

Consolidated

ma
2005 2004
—E2ERE _—ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Within one year —F R 1,099 4,000
In the second year £ F - 1,096
1,099 5,096
Less: Future interest portion W AR RA S EB S (8) (110)
Present value of finance MmEHESRME
lease obligations < RE 1,091 4,986
Analysed as: DR
Current Vi) 1,091 3,893
Non-current ERE - 1,093
1,091 4,986
The present value of finance lease obligations is as follows: BMEHERFZ2REMT -
Consolidated
ma
2005 2004
—FTHF —TTHEHF
HK$'000 HK$000
THET FAT
Within one year —F K 1,091 3,893
In the second year £ - 1,093
1,091 4,986
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20. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
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20, BESZEMNERRERE

Consolidated

ma
2005 2004
—EZERE —_ZTZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
0 to 90 days 0£90H 430,671 209,283
91 to 180 days 91% 180H 13,750 4,615
181 to 360 days 1812 360H 1,072 5,272
Over 360 days 360H A k£ 1,108 5,890
446,601 225,060
21. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS, SECURED 21. REISBITER  FEH
Consolidated
mEe
2005 2004
—EERFE —_FTENRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank loans repayable EERITER
— Within one year ——F R 25,750 22,500
— In the second year —F - F 31,750 15,000
— In the third year —Ef =4 31,750 15,000
— In the forth year —EMF 19,875 15,000
— In the fifth year —FhF 6,000 7,500
115,125 75,000
Less: Amounts due within one year B RBBEY—FNKN
included in current FH e
liabilities (Note 18) (Pff5E18) (25,750) (22,500)
89,375 52,500
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21. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS, SECURED 21. REMRITER  BEA @)
(Cont’d)

The bank loans bear interest at HIBOR plus a certain ZERTERFEBNRITRZER S F =40

percentage as agreed with banks (2004: HIBOR plus a HRTTHEcE TAMH (CTETHEF : 1R

certain percentage as agreed with banks) and are secured TRZEFENEMERTHEZETED

by the guarantees provided by the Company and certain B EE - RUARAE RHEEAETHEAGME

of its subsidiaries (Note 31). R (HFE31) ©

22. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE 22. RERBE %K
PAYMENTS

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet were TEEBGBERBRZ2ER T AAE

determined as follows: iE

Consolidated

ma
2005 2004
—EERE _—ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Present value of unfunded obligations HEEBBEXRANKRIE

and liability in the balance sheet BEfvBECRE 7,369 10,142

Movement in the liability recognised in the balance sheet: EEEERRBRZBEZES :

Consolidated

)

2005 2004

—EBRHFE —TENF

HK$'000 HK$’000

THERT FAET

Beginning of year F 1) 10,142 11,814
Write-back of provision REFEFEEMD

in current year (Note 6) (Bt 3E6) (2,439) (681)

Payments made during the year RNF AT K (334) (991)

End of year FKE 7,369 10,142
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22. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE 22. RUBRBE 2%EHE (&)
PAYMENTS (Cont'd)

The amounts recognised in the profit and loss account are EERRERZEBHOT

as follows:

Consolidated

ma
2005 2004
—EERFE _—_TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Interest cost BB 369 417
Net actuarial (gains)/losses EHRRAZEER
recognised (BA) /BEEE (2,808) 1,199
Decrease in present value of obligations A EF 2R E - (2,297)
Total, included in staff costs (Note 6) a5t GIREIKAA) (H5E6) (2,439) (681)
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FTRAZEEREREZOT -
2005 2004
—EERFE _—_TZNF
Per annum Per annum
BF B
Discount rate FrEX 4.75% 3.75%
Credit rate on mandatory provident of il M i FE & [0 3 X
fund account 4.5% 4.5%
Expected rate of future salary increases 7 2R 37 B = 78 HA 1 & & 2-3% 3%
The Group's obligations of long service payments as at 31 AEER_ZETERAF=A=1T—H2ZKH
March 2005 and amounts recognised in the profit and REeEARZFERBERRERIELHE
loss account for the year were based on the valuation MBYAEBRBEMEEANEREMA
performed by Mercer Human Resource Consulting Ltd., an RARIKARAEMNEREMRKE -

independent qualified actuary, using the projected unit
credit method.
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23. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%).

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

Karrie International Holdings Limited

23. EEH A

BELEHRERBABEINEEREZREER
K175% (ZZTZTWMF : 17.5%) IE2 &%
B o

B HATEREN A SIELEN IR E E EEER
REEERE - MELEMRBHRYMFE— B
e - AR BEEHBREELRREHR AR
BEMEEE - A ABERER - T2
BERAEERBERAIIE :

Consolidated

wma
2005 2004
—EERF —ZTETOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E (3,987) (2,071)
Deferred tax liabilities FRERIEEE 11,692 11,589
7,705 9,518

As at 31 March 2005, the Group had unprovided deferred
tax assets of approximately HK$88,000 (2004: HK$72,000)
primarily representing the tax effect of cumulative tax losses
(subject to agreement by relevant tax authorities) which
can be carried forward indefinitely.
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EEEEREIEE EA88,0008 L (ZFF
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23. DEFERRED TAXATION (contd) 23. EEBIE (&)
The movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities prior BEEMBEENAGB2ES (BEE—HFiH
to offsetting of balances within the same taxation @z AR A AT

jurisdiction is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities: EEHIEAE
Revaluation
Accelerated of
depreciation  fixed assets Total
MERE BEEEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
As at 31 March 2003 —EE=F=A=+—H 10,653 1,689 12,342
Charged to profit and FERE
loss account Hkr 1,261 = 1,261
Credited to fixed asset FEEEESM
revaluation reserve EHEETA - (60) (60)
As at 31 March 2004 —ZEENFE=/A=+—H 11,914 1,629 13,543
Charged to profit and FEEE
loss account B 658 — 658
Charged to fixed asset FETFEESM
revaluation reserve FEMR - 65 65
As at 31 March 2005 —EERF=A=+—H 12,572 1,694 14,266
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Karrie International Holdings Limited

23. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 23. EERHIE (&)
Deferred tax assets: BEEFHIBEE
Provisions Tax losses Others Total
i B8 Hith Mot

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAET TAT TAETT TAET

As at 31 March 2003 —EE=_F=ZA=+—H (1,690) - (380) (2,070)
(Credited)/charged to EEHEERGIA)

profit and loss account BCS (1,551) (448) 44 (1,955)
As at 31 March 2004 —EENF=A=+—H (3,241) (448) (336) (4,025)
(Credited)/charged to EEHEERGIA)

profit and loss account BCS (2,439) 347 (444) (2,536)
As at 31 March 2005 —EERF=A=1+—H (5,680) (101) (780) (6,561)
Summary of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities prior to EXEIE (BE) REBECHE (BRBRE -5
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction il 2 AR EAD AT -
is as follows:

Consolidated

wmEe
2005 2004
—FTHF —TTHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E (6,561) (4,025)
Deferred tax liabilities BEXEMBEE 14,266 13,543
7,705 9,518
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24. SHARE CAPITAL
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24. B
2005 2004
—E2RF —ZETWF
Number of  Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
R % & B EHE KiHEE H 8
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
¥ THET T THETT

800,000 80,000 800,000 80,000

Authorised: EE R
Ordinary shares of TRk e R
HK$0.1 each 15 10781
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHERA :
Ordinary shares of TRRETKR
HK$0.1 each T 15 10781
Beginning of year F 1)

Issued upon exercise of BRITEEREM
share options (Note 25) BIT 2R M5 (H7E25)

400,756 40,076 381,496 38,150

7,010 701 19,260 1,926

End of year FE

407,766 40,777 400,756 40,076
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25. SHARE OPTIONS

With effect from May 2002, the Company has adopted a
new share option scheme, under which it may grant options
to employees of the Group (including executive directors
of the Company) and other third parties (as stipulated in
the agreement of the Share Option Agreement as dated
21 May 2002) to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose any shares issued on the exercise
of options. The exercise price will be determined by the
Company’s board of directors and shall at least be the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant of the options, (ii) an average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options,
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares of
HK$0.1 each. As at 31 March 2005, options have been
granted to employees and directors of the Company. All
options granted under the old share option scheme will
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the rules of the old share option scheme.
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25. R HE

ARBR —_ZEEZ_FHARB—BFER
ExrE o TRERAEEZET (BEARQ
BZHITER)NE=ZE (RN _ZEZT_FF1
AZ+—BzEREFESZHRTE) BEER
BEAERBARARZED  EXRZUAEARQ
BAERERTRARE TEREETERBR
EMEEITZIMG)30% AR o ZBRETHE
BEBAARRCESTEEE - L) AR
BROPBIRER T 2WHE - (i) BEH
FTEREBMAAIZEARBRMDZF
B TE - R Gi) A2 a5 2 EESR10
B ZEFEUARSERE - ARARIRZE
THE-ZA=-+HEREBBRETFTAR
ACEIRES - BEEBEREE 2K
- FMBERKRBREBRESEMETZER
BEBEERRITE -
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25. SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d) 25. BRE @)

Details of movement of share options under the old and SEEREGE CBREREBEZE_TTAH
new share option schemes during the year ended 31 March FZA=T—"HLEFEZEZHFIE :

2005 were:

Number of share options

BREHE
Lapsed as a
Granted Exercised result of
Subscription Beginning during during termination of
Date of grant Exercise period price of year the year the year employment  End of year
rEE KEE HRE L
REBH TEAR BRER £4 2RI BEfiE BAREE ER
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
A7 T T T T T
0ld share option scheme
EBRETE
19 June 1999 19 June 1999 to 0.335 2,700 - (2,700) - -
30 November 2006
—“hWANERATHA “AMAAERRTARE
“ERRRET-A=TH
20 September 2000 20 September 2000 to 0.300 1,020 = (200) = 820
30 November 2006
ETTENACTH “RTETEAACTHE
“ERRET-A=1H
New share option scheme
HERETE
22 May 2002 22 May 2002 to 1.300 1,320 = (920) = 400
21 May 2012
“ZE-FRA-1ZA “ER_FRA-TZHE
ZE-ZFRAZT-H
1 November 2002 1 January 2003 to 1.650 7,840 - (2,090) (300) 5,450
31 October 2012
ZZT_f+-H-H “ZT-f-f-HZ
“E-——ftA=1—H
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25. SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d) 25. BRE @)
Number of share options
BREHE
Lapsed as a
Granted Exercised result of
Subscription Beginning during during termination of
Date of grant Exercise period price of year the year the year employment  End of year
rEE rERE HRALE
REAH TRAR BRER £4 BRH BiiE BAMEE ER
HK$ ‘000 '000 ‘000 '000 '000
BT T F F T F
New share option scheme (Cont'd)
MBREE (2)
1 December 2003 1 August 2005 to 2.475 12,490 - - (630) 11,860
30 November 2013
ZEE=4+ZA—H “ZEREN\A-BZE
ZER-ZE+t-fA=1H
27 April 2004 1 January 2005 to 1.900 - 4,938 (1,100) (96) 3,742
26 April 2014
EEMENA=TLH —ZZhE-R-BZF
“E-WMEMAZTRA
1 February 2005 1 January 2006 to 3.150 = 5,450 = - 5,450
31 January 2015
ZZZRRE-A-A 225 5-F-B%
—E2-Rf-R=1-H
7 February 2005 1 July 2005 to 3.350 - 11,400 - - 11,400
6 February 2015
“ZZRE-AtH “ZZRE+A-BZE
“E-n¥_AKA
25,370 21,788 (7,010) (1,026) 39,122
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26. RESERVES
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26. f#f@

Capital Fixed assets

Share Capital redemption revaluation  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profit Total
BX [EREE
RGEE E4ARE BERE EHEE KREEAN B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THT TET TET TET
Consolidated &a
As at 31 March 2003 —EZ-#=-f=+-H 59,923 5,900 449 30,544 229,352 326,168
Premium arising from issue TRERE
of shares upon exercise & 7R 7
of share options FEE &R 12,892 - - - - 12,892
Profit attributable to shareholders BET - - - - 90,440 90,440
Dividends paid EkRE - - - - (94,597)  (94,597)
Deferred tax effect on revaluation EERBUETEE
of fixed assets (Note 23) Eft 272 (l1323) - - = 60 = 60
As at 31 March 2004 —ZENE=R=1+—H 72,815 5,900 449 30,604 225,195 334,963
Represented by: R&
Proposed final dividend BRA SRS 48,091
Reserves i 177,104
As at 31 March 2004 —ZENE=R=1+—H 225,195
Representing: R&
Company and subsidiaries KRR RMBAF 72,815 5,900 449 30,604 226,961 336,729
Associated company - UNG - - - - (1,766)  (1,766)
72,815 5,900 449 30,604 225,195 334,963
As at 31 March 2004 —ZENE=R=1+—H 72,815 5,900 449 30,604 225,195 334,963
Premium arising from issue TRERE
of shares upon exercise m&TRA
of share options FEEZRE 6,999 - - - = 6,999
Profit attributable to shareholders R R FE A 7 - = - - 150,344 150,344
Dividends paid ERKE - - - - (83,040)  (83,040)
Deferred tax effect on revaluation ERHEHETEE
of fixed assets (Note 23) Bz ¥ 2 (MiE23) - - = (65) = (65)
As at 31 March 2005 —ZERF=f=1—-H 79,814 5,900 449 30,539 292,499 409,201
Represented by: R :
Proposed final dividend BRR SRS 50,971
Reserves i 241,528
As at 31 March 2005 “ZERF=A=1—H 292,499
Representing: R&:
Company and subsidiaries KARRHELR 79,814 5,900 449 30,539 304,499 421,201
Associated company kYN - - - - (12,0000  (12,000)
79,814 5,900 449 30,539 292,499 409,201
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26. RESERVES (Contd)

Karrie International Holdings Limited

26. f## (@)

Capital
Share redemption Contributed  Retained
premium reserve surplus profit Total
X
ROEE HERE SABRK  RKREEAN a4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THT THET THT
Company NN
As at 31 March 2003 —EE=f=fF=1+—H 59,923 449 193,185 122,139 375,696
Premium arising from issue TRERE
of shares upon exercise EGLE
of share options FEEZHE 12,892 - - - 12,892
Profit attributable to shareholders & 3R f& {4 - - - 40,085 40,085
Dividends paid BiRkRE - - - (94,597) (94,597)
As at 31 March 2004 “EENE=A=1+—H 72,815 449 193,185 67,627 334,076
Represented by: K&
Proposed final dividend YN ES 48,091
Reserves @1 19,536
As at 31 March 2004 “EENE=A=1+—H 67,627
As at 31 March 2004 —EENE=A=1+—H 72,815 449 193,185 67,627 334,076
Premium arising from issue TRERE
of shares upon exercise EGL
of share options FEEZHE 6,999 - - - 6,999
Profit attributable to shareholders & 3R f& {4 - - - 86,889 86,889
Dividends paid Bk 8 = = = (83,040) (83,040)
As at 31 March 2005 “EERF=A=1—H 79,814 449 193,185 71,476 344,924
Represented by: K&
Proposed final dividend Rk ARHRE 50,971
Reserves @1 20,505
As at 31 March 2005 “EERF=A=1—H 71,476

REERE-NN—FREEAR(EE) -
BABRBAHDIIKR TR BORAAF
EEMHZMREILEBARKEL S IR
® - DARBTEEXNEIMARE K G)H
EEMNAZRAEBESSAMPIRNERRLK
HE BTRANRERMDEENS AR
AIRRAIAAEH FANEMR - XNHH

of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share K ©

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject
to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate

premium account.
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27. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 27. MAEBRETRER
STATEMENT
Analysis of changes in financing is as follows: MEBEBEE 2HWAT -
Share capital Finance
and share Short-term Long-term lease
premium bank loans bank loans obligations
R A R SR R ME

Be@EE |ITEE RITEE HERE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THT TR TR TAT

As at 31 March 2003 —ZEE=F=HF=+—H 98,073 106,849 11,500 10,773
Exercise of share options aRcd e 14,818 — - -
New bank loans #IRTTE N - 808,392 75,000 -
Repayment of bank loans EBERRITER - (788,920) (11,500) -
Repayment of capital EERE

element of finance HEEEZ

lease obligations PN =) - - - (5,787)
As at 31 March 2004 —ETNFE=HA=+—H 112,891 126,321 75,000 4,986
Exercise of share options Rl e 7,700 - — —
New bank loans #IRTTE K - 912,999 816,000 -
Repayment of bank loans EBERRITER - (866,792) (775,875) -
Repayment of capital EEME

element of finance HEEEZ

lease obligations PN A=) - - - (3,895)
As at 31 March 2005 —ZEERFE=A=+—H 120,591 172,528 115,125 1,091
28. SEGMENT INFORMATION 28. o WEH
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and AEEFEZERERERHEESKINR - B
sale of computer casings, office automation products, video REXEREM  BETIR - KA BB
cassette housings, moulds, plastic and metal parts (together FeBHH (M AeBRBER]) RiI2H
referred to as “Metal and Plastic Business”) and provision EFEERIRB(IEFEERIE
of electronic manufacturing services (“EMS Business”). %) o
In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, KEAEB AT BHEHRE  AEBRE
the Group has determined that major product segments NEBEMDBAEARARERA R E
be presented as the primary reporting format and DERBRERMERANZY -

geographical segments as the secondary reporting format.
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 28. DEER (&)
(a) Primary segment (a) EBEXoH
2005
—EEIF
Electronic
Metal and manufacturing
plastic services
business business Elimination Total
k) ErE%
£ RIEK i af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERL TEL THEL THEL
Turnover EET
External INEB 1,172,806 1,390,384 - 2,563,190
Inter-segment g 63,238 - (63,238) -
Segment results NEEE 123,922 46,268 170,190
Other revenue HEilg A 12,311
Operating profit LR 182,501
Share of loss of an associated company ~ FE{HEE & A A BB - (10,234) (10,234)
Finance costs B TS AR (8,720)
Taxation i1 (13,203)
Profit attributable to shareholders R 3R FE 1 & R 150,344
Other information Htt g
Assets: BE:
Segment assets AHEE 704,987 643,000 1,347,987
Unallocated assets NEEE 305,685
1,653,672
Liabilities: Bk
Segment liabilities NHAaE (114,054) (235,881) (349,935)
Unallocated liabilities ANEERE (853,335)
(1,203,270)
Capital expenditures EXER 44,228 18,008 62,236
Depreciation e 24,588 14,517 39,105
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 28. ZHER (&)
(a) Primary segment (Cont'd) (a) EBEEXHI (&)
2004
—ETQNF
Electronic
Metal and  manufacturing
plastic services
business business Elimination Total
ke TETEX
% RIXH g =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TERL TEL TEL
Turnover =
External (IS 963,002 729,958 - 1,692,960
Inter-segment A 47,561 - (47,561) ~
Segment results NEEE 80,591 19,351 - 99,942
Other revenue HA A 6,585
Operating profit L5 T 106,527
Share of loss of an associate company iRl ANGI ) B - (1,766) (1,766)
Finance costs B BB AR (6,145)
Taxation HE (8,176)
Profit attributable to shareholders &Yl 90,440
Other information Hith g
Assets : BE
Segment assets NHEE 427,360 277,216 704,576
Unallocated assets ADBEE 278,981
983,557
Liabilities: BE:
Segment liabilities AHEE (72,909 (81,125) (154,034)
Unallocated liabilities APDEBE (454,060)
(608,094)
Capital expenditures BRER 34,415 24,427 58,842
Depreciation e 23,295 11,195 34,490
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 28. DEER (&)
(b) Secondary segment (b)y REDI
2005
S LT
Asia
(excluding North Western
Japan Japan)  America Europe Total
=M
HZA& (F8 B ) 4k M & a&H

HK$’000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER THERT THART TER

Turnover S 227,879 1,096,507 429,867 808,937 2,563,190
Segment results D EEE 16,445 51,035 41,442 61,268 170,190
Assets BE - 1,553,365 36,237 64,070 1,653,672
Capital expenditures EXEH - 62,236 - - 62,236
2004
—ETNEF
Asia
(excluding North Western
Japan Japan) America Europe Total
a2 M
AR (RE BAA) 3b =M sl aH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Turnover EERR 159,727 781,751 254,981 496,501 1,692,960
Segment results D EBELE 12,713 27,512 22,761 36,956 99,942
Assets BE - 959,020 8,298 16,239 983,557
Capital expenditures ENE B = 58,842 = = 58,842
Turnover is based on the country in which the final M%%ETJT?% R TE B MM TR B X &t
destination of shipment is located. There are no sales o B A EWEE HEE o

between the segments.

U]]

Assets and capital expenditure are based on the country REER  BERBEAXHNIREERT
in which the assets are located at the balance sheet date. b

o

:‘[}
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29. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The Group and the Company had the following significant
commitments and contingent liabilities which were not
provided in the accounts:

(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following authorised and contracted
capital commitments:

Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥

29. RERIAERE

AEENARBBATREERKE L&
REBIZEEZEFRERIREBE

(a) BEAREIE
REBENTEREREN 2 EREE

Consolidated Company
me ¥ NN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EERFE —TTMF Z—ZTEEFE —TTNOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET THET FHET
Investment in a subsidiary KB /EB A &)
ZRE 24,000 - - -
Acquisition of land use BB P E L
right in Mainland China 1 A #& 7,780 - - -
Construction of factory 7 A B
premises in 8 F
Mainland China - 3,312 - -
Purchase of other BEEEAM
fixed assets BE&E 1,820 1,091 - =
33,600 4,403 - -
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29. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group had lease commitments in respect of land and
buildings under various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements extending to October 2047. The total

Karrie International Holdings Limited

29. RIEERBAEE (&)

(b) REHESHEIE
AEBBEZEMRE_FTHLFTABR
THREFHEZ A AREZKLHER
o BMENERESTHET

commitments payable are analysed as follows:

Consolidated Company
RE PN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EREF _—TTWF ZZFTBIF _—TITWF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T Tis 7 FHBT T# 7
Amounts payable e & &8
— within one year -—FR 2,531 3,770 - —
— more than one year — %R —F
but not exceeding BTER
five years FF 2,472 3,590 - =
— over five years —HFALE 18,731 19,274 - —
23,734 26,634 - _

(c) Other commitments

Pursuant to an agreement dated 24 October 1995, the
Mainland China joint venture partner of Dongguan Yanxun
Electronics Company Limited (“DYECL") waived its
entitlement to share in the profit of DYECL in return for a
pre-determined annual fee from 1 November 1996 to 24
May 2007. As at 31 March 2005, the Group’s commitment
in respect of the total fee payable to the Mainland China
joint venture partner amounted to approximately
HK$518,000 (2004: HK$857,000).
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(c) HibEiE

BE—MHR—NIANAEF+A-THBEETE
ZWE B NANAANF+—HBA—BE_Z
T+tHEFRA-THMA BEENETHR
AREI([REEM) 2HFFEBRABRESZ
ReBalaflzi#Es  WRIRR—EEEZ
FB -RN_ZTTRF=ZA=+—H &%
EpEMNTRERMAZABAZBEE R
Y£#49518,0008 L (ZZEZ M4 : 857,000/
JT) °
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29. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(d) Contingent liabilities

Annual Report 2004-2005 F ¥

29. RIEERBAEE (&)

(d) HREE

Consolidated Company
ma b NN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—2ERE —_TTMFE ZFTFEF —_TTOHF
HKS$ HKS HKS$ HK
FER FAT FTER FAT
Shipping guarantees fir 7% FE (R 6,800 3,115 - -
Guarantees provided by  Ft& THI B A Rl
the Company in respect FrERITRLE
of banking facilities of R
its subsidiaries KA T ZHER - = 443,000 449,868
6,800 3,115 443,000 449,868

The Group’s management anticipates that no material
liabilities will arise from the above bank and other
guarantees which are arisen in the ordinary course of
business of the Group.

30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group and its employees makes monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group's and the employees’ contributions are subject to a
cap of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter contributions
are voluntary.

AEBEEBREH LAKREBEERE IR
TERMEAMERITSELENRERE -

30. RAREEH

AEBELHBERELHEABHMELATES
B ([RESFTE) - RESFTEIBRTE
BERFE  BELRTAETE - BiF&
Beitd  ASEREESAHYLEHAE
B2 BA(EERBHIMERESED) 5%E
ZETEEL R - EFHEEZZAMK
LA1,0008 TR LR - HigE2HRABEEM
ME o
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Notes to the Accounts 1B KisE

30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Contd)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes
approximately 10% (2004: 10%) of the basic salaries of
its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group's
contributions to the aforementioned pension schemes was
approximately HK$2,766,000 (2004: HK$2,488,000).

31. BANKING FACILITIES/PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

As at 31 March 2005, the Group's banking facilities were
secured by:

(i) mortgages over certain of the Group’'s land and
buildings in Mainland China with a net book value
of approximately HK$16,424,000 (2004:
HK$16,825,000); and

(i)  guarantees provided by the Company and certain
of its subsidiaries.

32. APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on
24 June 2005.
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30. RURER/A (@)

RETFBEERRE - AEEAR T EE
EMREZERERKENELHER -
AEBEARETHREEERFEL10% (=
TEOEF - 10%) EHHER - MHUEERE
RERE X HRREENBAELE
Al AE - RNBEZAMARKEH—H
B B R & B 2 R IRET &I AHE -

RAFERAEBR G i RIREIEL 2
H R4 52,766,000 5T (Z T Z 0 F
2,488,000/ 7T) ©

31. $RITRME EEKER

R-ZZZRAF=A=+—H  AEERTT
BMEZEAS

(i) AEEUAFEZE DT RIEFIR
HF{E#16,424,000/ 70 (ZEZ M
%F : 16,825,000/ 7T) &

(i) ARAPARETHEBRBEZREER -

32. IREEB

AREERBENR -_ZTZTRFAA-THEA
HESEES -



Five-Year Financial Summary ZF&#EHE
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The results of the Group for the last five financial years AEBBE_ZTTRF=A=1+—RH1HA
ended 31 March 2005 and the assets and liabilities of the BYBFEzHEE MR _ZEZE—F « —
Group as at 31 March 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005 TE_F _TT=F —ZETTWMFMN=
are as follows: EERFEEBBWUOT ¢
Results ¥
Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—-HLEE
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
—EERE —_TTNFE —TT= —TE-_F —TT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET FET FET FET
Turnover S 2,563,190 1,692,960 1,737,979 1,156,262 892,703
Operating profit 78 5 ) 182,501 106,527 143,475 94,682 46,413
Share of loss of JE G & D A
an associated company EB (10,234) (1,766) - - —
Finance costs B 7% X 7R (8,720) (6,145) (10,401) (9,244) (15,981)
Profit before taxation BR % A1 A 163,547 98,616 133,074 85,438 30,432
Taxation 1% 18 (13,203) (8,176) (13,266) (7,068) (4,064)
Profit attributable P& 2R JE 1 ¥4
to shareholders 150,344 90,440 119,808 78,370 26,368
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Assets and liabilities (consolidated)

Karrie International Holdings Limited

ReEERAR

As at 31 March
BE=A=1+—-HLEE

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
“EERF —_TTNF —ZTT=F ZTT-F ZTET—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT TAET TAEL TAET
Non-current assets FERBEE 278,295 260,677 236,549 237,463 285,632
Current assets MEBEE 1,375,377 722,880 711,911 567,501 424,625
Current liabilities mEaE (1,094,834) (532,770) (547,746) (413,073) (315,578)
Long-term bank loans, RESRITER (89,375) (52,500) (7,500) (11,500) (15,500)
secured PEEiigiii
Finance lease obligations BEMEET - (1,093) (5,032) (10,733) (10,554)
Provision for long FHRBE 2
service payments b (7,369) (10,142) (11,814) (11,094) (6,775)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE (11,692) (11,589) (11,626) (10,737) (4,949)
Minority interests DEHRRIER (424) (424) (424) (424) (424)
Net assets BEFE 449,978 375,039 364,318 347,403 356,477
Representing: K&
Share capital (&N 40,777 40,076 38,150 37,694 37,374
Reserves 1 116,702 109,768 96,816 93,856 106,682
Retained profit R & A 292,499 225,195 229,352 215,853 212,421
Shareholders’ equity PR B 449,978 375,039 364,318 347,403 356,477
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DEE R B K ERT
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Achieving the impossible: this is the spirit how we bring the Group from HK$661,887,000 in turnover in 1999/2000 to HK$2,563,190,000 in 2004/05
(Please also refer to P. 54)
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